
 

 

AB 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 
SUMMONS TO A MEETING 

 
 

You are hereby summonsed to attend a meeting of the Peterborough City Council, which will be 
held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Peterborough on  

 
WEDNESDAY 4 DECEMBER 2013 at 7.00 pm 

 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No. 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2013 
 

3 - 22 

COMMUNICATIONS TIME 
 
4. Mayor's Announcements 

 
23 - 28 

5. Leader's Announcements 
 

 

6. Chief Executive's Announcements 
 

 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT TIME 
 
7. Questions with Notice by Members of the Public 

 
 

8. Questions with Notice by Members of the Council relating to Ward 
Matters and to Committee Chairmen 
 

 

9. Questions with Notice by Members of the Council to representatives of 
the Fire Authority and to the Police and Crime Panel 
 

 

10. Petitions submitted by Members or Residents 
 

 

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS TIME 
 
11. Questions with Notice to the Leader and Members of the Executive 

 
 

12. Questions without Notice on the Record of Executive Decisions 
 

29 - 34 

COUNCIL BUSINESS TIME 
 
13. Executive Recommendations 

 
35 - 36 

Public Document Pack



 

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair. 

 
For more information about this meeting, including access arrangements and facilities for people with 
disabilities, please contact Gemma George in the City Council's Governance team on Peterborough (01733) 
452268or by email at democraticservices@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Gemma George on 01733 452268. 
 

 

 (a) Peterborough City Centre Development Plan Document 
 

37 - 124 

14. Reports and Recommendations 
 

 

 (a) Report of the Independent Members Remuneration Panel 
 

125 - 142 

 (b) Budget and Policy Framework - Revised Budget Timetable 
 

143 - 146 

 (c) Governance Issues - Amendments to Rules of Procedure 
 

147 - 174 

 (d) Governance Issues - Date of Annual Council 
 

175 - 176 

 (e) Governance Issues - Appointment to Fire Authority 
 

177 - 178 

 
 

Chief Executive 

26 November 
2013 
Town Hall 
Bridge Street 
Peterborough 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



���
�

��������	
��	�������������������
��	��	���������

�
���������������� !""���#�����$�%�&�

'��&��$(� �
�

���������	
� �	����
�� �
�� ��
���� ��	�
���� �������� �����
���� ����� ��
���� ������	�����
������	����	��
������	�����������������������������	 �	����		�������������	����������
��!���� ���
���� "���� "�����
�� "	������� #�!��� #����� #����$�	�����$�"�����$���	
��
$�	 ��� %����!�� %������ %�	��� &��	�� '����� ��
�� (���!�	
�� (���)�	��� (������
(������� (�	������ (����	�� (������ (�	 �� (�!��
�� (��*�
�� (��)��� (����
��	��
+�����	���+��������,��
-�
�
�

�)� *+�"�,!�&�-���*.&�� ��
�

� ������
�)�	���
�������	��	��������)	�!����������	
��������(����	
��(��	!�������
,��
-���
�

�)� �� "���$!��&��-���$���&$�
�
� +�	����	����������	�����
��)�����	�
�-��
�
�)� �!��$�&��-�$������$!�,&���"/�������#�"����������#�"�������

�
+��!�����
��)����!������
��������./������0/.1�����1.������0/.1���	����	����������
�������	����	���	��
��2���-�
�

0)� �����1&�*����� �2��$���+��$��
�

$�!��	
������� ���� ������ 	� �	������������ ���$���	3
�������!���
� )�	� ��� �	����
��!!�������4������0/.1����05�(� ��!��	�0/.1-���
�
+��$���	����	�

������!�������)�	��	�����������
�!���)���������
����������
��
)�	-�
�

3)� ���/��1&�*����� �2��$&�
�
+�	����	�������������!���
�)	�!����#����	-�
�

4)� ��!�-��5� �$!6�1&�*����� �2��$&�
� �
� +�	����	�������������!���
�)	�!�������)����������-�
�
�	������7���8	�8�����������
�
9)� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.����2.��&��-�$���'�."! ��
�

%��6��
����
���������	��������)	�!�!�!��	
��)���� �����-�
�

<)� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.����2.��&��-�$������� !"���"�$!�,�$��=��/���$$��&�$��$���
��.!��$���2.��&���/�$����22!$$������!�2����

�
7��
����
� 	�������� ���,�	��!����	
���	�� 	��
��� ���� ��*��� �
� 	���� ��� 	�
 ���� �)� ���

Public Document Pack

3



)��������8�
�

.-� ��9
����#�����������:�
0-� #����������%�	�����(����:�
1-� ������ !����������
��	 �:�
;-� <�
�(�	����
�)	�!�,�����:�
�
���� ��� ��� ��!�� ��!��� )�	� ��� ���!� ������ 	������� 6��
����
� 	�������� ��� ��� )���������
�� ��
���	��	�
 �������������	���������
�������!������8�
�
=-� #����������( ��������������
��	 �:��
>-� �	�

������������)�	!�	�����$��
)�����(����:�
?-� #�������
�
�	����
��������
 ����:�
�
��
�!!�	���)�����6��
����
�������
��	
�	��
�������������������!�4��	�������������
*''����>�*������
��!�����
-�
�

�)� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.����2.��&��-�$������� !"�$����+��&��$�$!6�&��-�$���
!���
*�$���!$����/�'�"! ����/���!2��'���"�

�
%��6��
����
���	��	�������-�

�
��)�� '�$!$!��&���.2!$$�/�.����2.��&������&!/��$&�
�

���������	�����	�
��!�������� ����������������)�	���������#������������
����������<	�����
(�	���-�
�
���������	� #���� 
��!������ ��  �������� )	�!� 	�
�����
� ��� 	�!���� ��  �	*���� ��		��	� ���
�	���	
�-��
�

�>�����8����������������
�
��)����:��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��$��$������/�����/���2.��&��-�$����5� �$!6��
�

7��
����
� ��� ��� #����	� ����$�!��	
� �)� ������������� ��	�� 	��
���� ���� ���� �)� ���
6��
����
���������*����
�	��������	�
 �����)����)��������8�

�
.-� �����������*
:��
0-� #����	����$���)����:�
1-� '	����������)� �
���))����
�	����
:�
;-� �.;����
��������:�
=-� �.;�����
�!���:�
>-� $������ �
���))���
:�
�
���� ��� ��� ��!�� ��!��� )�	� ��
� ���!� ������ 	������� ��� )��������� 6��
����
� ��	��
	�
 �������������	�����8�
�
?-� ����)������:��
4-� '	� �
��� 	����)	������)������	����������
���	�)�	!
:�
5-� ��9
����,�����������:�
./-�(� �	)�
���	������������,�@��:�
..-�A! �����)����)�	��	�)�	!
:�����
.0-�$��������������������-�
�
��
�!!�	���)�����6��
����
�������
��	
�	��
�������������������!�..��	�������������
*''����>��������
��!�����
-�

�
��)�� :��&$!��&�;!$���$���$! �����$����� ��/��-��5� �$!6���� !&!��&�

�

4



$�!��	
�	��������������������	� �	��
�!!�	�
���8�
�
.-� �����
���
���*�����������������$������
��������01������0/.1�����01�(� ��!��	�

0/.1:��
0-� �B
�� �)� ����������3
� ����@���!�����
!������ ��� ����� ����*��� ����� 
����� ���

 	�����
�!������:��
1-� �( ������B	����������,����	��)�����@��� 	���
�������������������������*���
�����

��� 	�����
�!������:������
;-� ���������$�!��	�����
���
� ��*�����	���� ��� �	����.0������0/.1� ���;�(� ��!��	�

0/.1-�
� �
� � :��&$!��&�;�����&%�/��.��$�$���-�""�;!�,(�

�
��!!�������

���+	��
)�	�(�	������
���������	� $�	 �� 6��	���� ����	� !�	�� ��
� ������ 
 ���� ��� 
���	���� 	���������
��������
� ���� ��
� 
 ���� ��� ���  	���
���� �)� '���� ����	�
� ���� ����	� ���
������ !������� ���( ��������
������!��-�����������	�(���������
���������	����
�
����
�))�������)��������������������
��������������	�
�	�!�������� ��������������)����
)������� �	����������������
�
����	�����
������	�
�������
��-�����������	�(������
����������C0/�///�!�������������
 ���������������)�$�	������C.?/�///���������

������������	-�
�
(���������#����
�����)�'	�������������'	� �	���
���������	� "��� 6��	���� ����	� ��� )����� ����
���� ������ ��� ��*��� ��� �������� �	�
����������������	����
���	��������
�����������������������
��!����	�

��������-��
���������	���	�
�������
��� ���� ��� �

������������ )��������
������� ��-� �+��#�����
&))���	�����
����������)���������
������
���)���������)���������
���������
����������
�����*�����	�-��
�
'�

����	�+	��
 �	��D�(��
���
���(�	�����'	���
����
���������	��
�6��	��������	� �����
� �

����� ����!���� ���
�	����
� ������������
 ��� ���  ����-� � ���������	� ��	�
��� 	�
 ������ ���� �)� ������
� ���� )������� ����!��
���������� ��� 
�	����� ������ ��� 	�������-� � ���������	� ������� ������ ���� ��� ����
�		����!���
� ������ ��� 	�������� ��� ��� )���	�� �
 �������� �)� ��	�� ��	�� ����
 	����
 	����!
��� �	������-�
�
$����!�+�	!�����������(�	������
���������	�$���	
�	�6��
��������)����������
�����
�����
������������ ������������
��!�������	
-�����������	�(����������
�������������
�������������������������	��������
������������	
������*����-�
�
���	���)�����	����)�	�������
�	��������)�������
���������������������	�)�	��
!����
���� 	�!��������� �)� ���
����� ��������
� ��� ����!!������ ��� �� ��
���� �)� ����
�����
'	�!�	��(�����
���������	� ����	� 6��	���� ����	� ��� 
����� ��
� ��� ��� �� �	��� (����-� � ���������	�
�������	�
 ������������
�������������������
�-�
�
���������	� $�	 �� 6��	���� ����	� ��� �������� !�!��	� 	��	������ ��� ��

� �)�  	�@

����� ����
����� ���(�	��(��	������	�-� ����������	�������� 	�
 ������ �����))���	
�
�����	*������� �����!!���������� ���
����� �����
�	�� ���������� )�	� ��� 	�2����
��
�����
�����  	� 	������-�
�
$��3
�����(�������!�����������������
�	�������
���������	� ����	� 6��	���� ���� 	��

�	����� ���
���� )�	� ��� ����
�!���� 
����� ���
)�������� ����� ������ ��� ����� ����	�-� ����������	���	�
��� 	�
 ������ ���� ��	����
� ���
���	����������!��������������	���	���������
������-� �������	�� �����������������
���
���������������������)�	��	������� ����	�	������� ���
���������
�!����������
��� 	���� ��� �	������
�������
�� )	�!� ��������!�
�����
� )	�!� ���
�		��������
�	��-�

5



�
�����!���	��
)�	���	��!����E��	���
F�
���������	�$���	
�6��	��������	���	���������������#���������	����
����
���)�����
0/.=-�����������	��������	�
 ������������	�������������������
����
���	��������
 ������-�������!��
���	������ 	�!����������������������������
�)�	�
���������	��	
�
�������	!���-�
�
����	�������
���!��
�	���	�
���������	�����6��	������������	���	�����
�)�	���������������	���
���������	�� 
�
�������  ��-�����������	���	�
�������
����������������
*��))���	
��������
�����������	�
�����)���
-�

�
�	��������������������
�
��)������22!$$����� �22��/�$!��&�
� � �

?�@� ���6!&�/����$�� $���,�"�$!��&�
� � �

�������� 	�������� �� 	� �	�� )	�!� �����������!!������ ���� 	�6��
���� ��
� ��	��!���� ���
�������� ��� ����	���� ����
� ������ ��� ���
��������� ��� 	� ����� ��� ��		���� ����	����
����������
-�����������	�#�!�����	����������	� �	������!��������	���!!��������
-�
+�
���
�
��������������������	��	����
-��
�
��������*�������8�
�
A������� ��� ����	���� ����
� ������ ��� ���
��������� ��� 	� ����� ��� ��		���� ����	����
����������
-�

�
�0)� ��$! �&��-���$!���
�

�)� ���� !""���
�5�2�6�/�$���-�""�;!�,�2�$!��(�
�

+�����
��������8�
�

.-� ��*��������
��������
���������!����
��������
��������	��	������������
��������$�!��	
�����!�!��	
��)���� �����:�

�
0-� ��	��
����������
��������� 	���

G�����G ������
���������	����������	��	���8�

�
�-�  	���������������������
�	�����������))���	
������
�	���������
��������
��	��

����������)���������)��	��:�
�-� 	��

�	�����������	
�����!�!��	
��)���� ����������������������!�������	��

�)����������
������������
�	����
:�
�-�  	��������)�	!������������������	
�����!�!��	
��)���� ������������

���
��������
�����������		��������
������*�����������������������!�*��
��!
����
���	��������������	�����������
�����
��������
:��

�-� ��
�	����������! �����)���������� ������
��
����
����,��)�	����)�	!�������
�
���
���	�����)�	��!�*��������
���
����������
�	����
����� �����:�����

�-�  	������ 	��

�	����� ���� ���
��������� 	�
 ��
�
� �	�� ���
���	��� ����
)�	!��������)�����	���!!��������
-�

�
���������	� ��	�
���  	� �
��� ���� ���  ����� �)� ��� !������ �� �	�� � ��� �
�����
��� ���
����
����� �����-�

�
���������	�������	���������
� 	� �
����
�������
������!����*����������	�� ���
�����
�����������������������
�����)������������!��������
�=�����*=�-�
�
+��#�����&))���	�����
�����������	�� �������	� �	�����*����������������	��	����!�*��
��	���!!�������������������������	��������� �����-���

6



�
�)� ���� !""������+���2�6�/�$���-�""�;!�,�2�$!��(�

�
������������
�����H�	�@��	
�����	���
�!������
���	��������
�	�

�)�	�����!����
'���	��	����)�!����
-�(�!�������
������	���
����������������������������	� ��)�
�����)�	����	��! ����	��������)���	���
������	*-�&��	
��	��	�6��	��������	*�
�����
������)�	������! ����	�����������	�������������������������������	
����
 ����������
-�
��
���������������
�������� 	��������!������	*�	�����	���	
��)�	����
�!���! ����	�
�����
�
���
���������! �������
���	��� �����	�
���	������	*�	
-�,����������
��������������!��������	*
�)�	���	*�	
-�'���	��	������
�����������	����	*�����
����������� �� �����������)����
���	�������	*����� 	���������	*-�����������
�� �����������
���)���	�@��	
�����	���
��
���
�� �����	�
���
-��
��
��������	�
����
����	������������	����	�����	���
���������������!������
��))����
���	��		����!���
�����)�	�������)��������������	�������������������� �	�!���
����
�
�����
�����	���������	����	
���		��������		�����������	*�)�	��������	��������
�! �����
�����������	���	
��������	���
���������
����������������! ����	����
 	��������	*�)�	�����! �����-�
�
��������
��	�������������)����������	����	
��
�������	����	�
��!������
����	�������������!���������
��

�����  	� 	���������
��������������
������
��
��
���

�
-��
�
��	��	�'���	��	���������������������������	�������	��! ����	
���� 	������� �	���	�
����
������	���	����
������������������������������	�����	��
���)���	����	�
����	���
-����

�
+��!��������
�
��������������������	�$�	�������	�
�	�����
�	�������
 ��*�����	����
���������-�
�
���	��)����������
�������������

��
���	��	��
������������8�
�

•� (�!����! ����
�	���������/@��	�����	���
����!������)�������������	*����
:�

•� +�����
���)�/@��	�����	���
�
�����������*������������/@��	�����	���
:�����

•� '	����������'������
����	��! ����	
�!�
����	*�������	����	�
���������

��
-�
�
��������������������������
���*���E0.�)�	��1/������
������.���
�������F��������!������
��
���
�*���-�
�
�)� ���� !""���
�;���2�6�/�$���-�""�;!�,�2�$!��(�
�

,��� ���	��
� �)�  �� ��� ������ 
������ � � ��� ��  �������� ��� 
�  �	�� ��� ����� ���
���	������ �� ������ ����� ������ <	����� (�	����� ���� ������ ��� �������� #����	3
� ����	�
�����	�
� 	���	����� ��������� 
�)���� �

��
� )	�!���!���	���� �)� �����
�
�� ��
���������
	���!!���
�������������������	����������
 �*���������������������
�
�	����)	�!�
�����	���(6��	��������2������������<��	��
�<������	�-�

�
+��!��������
�
��������������������	�(���)�	�����	�
�	�����
�	�������
 ��*�����	�
������������-�
�
��	��������������������!��

��
�	��
�����������8�
�

•� ���
���	������
�������������������
���������� �	�������
������ ���
�	���
:�

•� +	��
�!��������	�!���������!�*������)�	��������������������������:�

•� �����
�
�
���������������)	�!�������������	��� ���
�	�����	��:�

•� ����	�������	����
����
���:�

•� %����
�
���	������������������!�����:�

7



•� (���������!��������
�
����� ���
�	���
:�

•� #������)���!����)�	���������������
���������������:�

•� '���	��	���� 
�����  	�!���� �������� �
�  �	�� �)� ����	��!���� �� �����
�
 �	�����
:�����

•� ��)�	��!���� 	����!
� �	
�
�-�
�
��������������������������
���*���E;�)�	��;>������
������.���
�������F��������!������
��
���
�*���-�
�
���������	�#�����)�����!������-�
�
0)� ���� !""���
��.�&�2�6�/�$���-�""�;!�,�2�$!��(�
�

+�
���������	������
�
��������	���������	*��
����������! �	��������'���	��	��������
���B"3
������!�������
�����������������
�������
����	����	�����!�	��
�
���������
)���	��������
�*�����������!���	�����	����������2����	������������������������	�

�
��������	�-��
�
+�
�����������*��������
�������� 	�
����
�	����	���)����B"�	���������	*����
�����
 	������������)�	�!������	�)��	��

�)�	� �

����	
�������� ���	
-�+��B"��
����
���
��)�	�
������	� ��������������������)�	� 	����������
�!��������� ������
��
����
�����
���������
����� 	�����
�����-���
�
+�
� �������� ����
� �� 
�	���� ��		���� ���� ��� ����
�� 0/.1� ���  ������� )�	!�(�	��������
����)���������=4I��)���� �������������
�����
�����	�!������� ���������
������
�����0.I��������������
��������	�@ 	�����
��-�
�
+�
��������������!�
����#����	�'�	��3
���!!��!�������	��������������
�����
�����
 ���������
���������
� ���� ���)	����
���
�������	���!�	�� ����C>//�!������� ���
����� �	�!����)�	�+	��
 �	��
����������)����� 	������
����	����0//5���������	�C4//�
!������������������)����)������������	-��
�
+�
��������� )�	��	�����
�����*�����	� )������� �	���	
��)� A���	�������
�����
��� ���
��		���� ��������������� �	���	��
�
����

)�����!����������
�����	������� ��!���
�
���*� ��� ����	�!����� ���� ���� ���  ���� ���*� C.??� !������� ��� ��� ����	�!����
��! �	������9�	����+	���
� ��!�����)�C.=>�!�������)�	�,�
�����
�-��
�
������������
���	���������)��
���������� ���	����������� �� ����)�'���	��	����
�
� ������� ��
� �������� ������� ��	��� ���� (����	�� ���*
��� $'3
�  �
������ �)�
�6����������������
�����
�-�( ��*�������'�	���!�������0/������0/.1��$	����*
���
!�
	� 	�
������ ��
�� ���
�3
�  ����������� 
����
���
� ��� �	��	� ��� !�*�� ��!� 
��!�
��	
������������	������������	�������J��� �
� �! �	����������������������� ����@
��	!� 	������ �	���	������������������	����� �
�����	�
���������
�����
��!��������K-�
�
+�
����������������
�$	����*
��3
�����
� �����������)�
�� ����� �������������������
� ��������������
���������)����	�������! ���������
������	�
�
��)�'���	��	��������
��
�	�
�����
-�

�
+��!��������
�
��������������������	�$�	 �����	�
�	�����
�	�������
 ��*�����	�
������������-�
�
���������	��
�!���������!���!�������	�!������	�
�������
�	�����	
��
������8�
�

+�
���������	������
�
��������	���������	*��
����������! �	��������'���	��	��������
���B"3
������!�������
�����������������
�������
����	����	�����!�	��
�
���������
)���	��������
�*�����������!���	�����	����������2����	������������������������	�

�
��������	�-��
�

8



+�
�����������*��������
�������� 	�
����
�	����	���)����B"�	���������	*����
�����
 	������������)�	�!������	�)��	��

�)�	� �

����	
�������� ���	
-�+��B"��
����
���
��)�	�
������	� ��������������������)�	� 	����������
�!��������� ������
��
����
�����
���������
����� 	�����
�����-���
�
+�
�������������
���
�	������		���������������
��0/.1���� �������)�	!�(�	��������
����)���������=4I��)���� �������������
�����
�����	�!������� ���������
������
�����0.I��������������
��������	�@ 	�����
��-�
�
+�
���������
�  �	�
������!�
����#����	�'�	��3
���!!��!�������	������������
��
�����
����� ���������
���������
��������)	����
���
�������	���!�	������
C>//�!��������������� �	�!����)�	�+	��
 �	��
����������)����� 	������
����	����0//5��
�������	�C4//�!������������������)����)������������	-��
�
+�
���������)�	��	�����
�����*�����	�)������� �	���	
��)�A���	�������
�����
������
��		���� ��������������� �	���	��
�
����

)�����!����������
�����	������� ��!���
�
���*��������	�!���������������� �������*�C.??�!�����������������	�!����
��! �	������9�	����+	���
� ��!�����)�C.=>�!�������)�	�,�
�����
�-��
�
������������
���	���������)��
���������� ���	����������� �� ����)�'���	��	����
�
����������
����������������
�����
��! �	��������*�� ���
�����
�������� ������
����	�
�
�����
������ ��������������������	����� �
�����	�
�����������������	���	�����
�)���
 	�)������������ ���	-����������	�������(����	�����*
���$'3
� �
�������)�
�6����������������
�����
�-�( ��*�������'�	���!�������0/������0/.1��$	����*
���
!�
	� 	�
��������
�����
�3
� �����������
����
���
�����	��	����!�*����!�
��!�
��	
������������	������������	�������J����
��! �	���������������������������@
��	!� 	������ �	���	������������������	����� �
�����	�
���������
�����
��!��������K-��
�
+�
����������������
�$	����*
��3
�����
������������)�
�� ������������������������
� ��������������
���������)����	�������! ���������
������	�
�
��)�'���	��	��������
��
�	�
�����
-�

�
+�
���
�
��������������������	�(�	 -�
�
���������� �� 6��	��� ��� #����� &))���	� ����
��� ���� ���������	� ��	��
� ���� ���� ���� ��
 ������	������	�
��������!�����-�
�
�������������	��)�����������������
���*���E.;�)�	�����1=������
�F���������!���!����
��
���
�*���-�
�
+���	�������!��������
��������������

��
�	��
�����������8�
�

•� +�
���
��� ���������������������������!����	:�

•� '	����������
�!������
��)����������:�

•� A)��� 	������������)	����
����
������	����
������������:�

•� ��#���������	�������
�	���!�����������
�����
������	����������:�����

•� +�������� �	���
��������� ���������
�����	���	�
�!������������	�!���-�
�
�� ����� ��
� ��*��� E..� )�	�� 0>� �����
�� ���� ..� ��
�������
F� ���� ��� !������ ��
�
��
�*���-�
�
���������	�#���	���	����������!������-�
�

�3)�� ��+��$&���/��� �22��/�$!��&��
�

�@������������ ��/����-�$����!$���-�'�$��.����,��
�
�������� 	�������� �� 	� �	�� ���� 	�6��
���� ��� �  	���� ��� �  ����!���� �)� �������	�	��
����	��	��)������������)�	��	�������*����������������������������	�!��������	�
������

9



����������������
������(����	�������
��������������	�������	������������������))��	
�����
�����
-� ���������	� ��	�
��� !����� ��� 	���!!��������
� ��� ��� 	� �	�� ���� ��
� ��
�

��������������������	�����������	�
�	�����
�	�������
 ��*�����	�������������-�
�
�������������	��)�����������������
���*���E14�)�	��4������
������;���
�������
F��������
��
����	�8�����8�
�
�  	���� ��� �  ����!���� �)� ��� ����	�	�� ����	��	� �)� ��� ����� ��� )�	��	� ��� ���*�
���������������������������	�!��������	�
����������������������
������(����	�������

��������������	�������	������������������))��	
����������
-�

�
.@����!�������,�2��$���&$�� $����
�
�������� 	���������� 	� �	�� ����)����� ��� �)� ��� �����
� ������)����������� ��������� ���
!�*�� ��� ��� 
����	�!�����!���� 
�	����	�� �
� 	�6��	��� ����	� 
������� ;� �)� ��� #�����
����	�!�����������
��������.545-� �+�����)�������������
�������)�'����(�	������
��� �� ����� ����	� ��� #����� ����	�!���� ���� ���
���� ���� .545� ��� ����	!���� ���

��))�����		����!���
�����

�	�����������	�����������3
�)�������
-�
�
���������	�#�!��!��������	���!!��������
�������	� �	��������
���
�
�����������
���������	�������	���-�
�
��	�������	��)���������

��
�	��
�����������8�
�

•� %��	���������
���	�� 	� �
����2�
����	�@
�))��:�

•� (��������*�����	�����������	������������������������:�

•� %���
�	����	��
��������	�

�)���	����������
:�����

•� (�����
����������������	��������������
�	����	�-�
�
���������� ������� �� �������
� ��*��� E;1� )�	�� =� �����
�� ���� 0� ��
�������
F� ���� �����
�
���	�8�����8�
�
%���� ��� �����
� ���� ��� ���)� ���������� ��������� ��� !�*�� ��� ��� 
����	�
!�����!����
�	����	���)�����������-�
�
 @��*++�!�$2��$��-����!���-�� ��$!�����22!$$���
�
�������� 	�������� �� 	� �	�� 	�6��
����� ��� �  ����� �� ���	� ��� ��� (�
����������	���� L�
����	��!������ �����(�	��������!!������)������������	�
����������)�������
��������	-�
�
���������	���	�
���!����� ��� 	���!!��������
� 	� �
�������������	��	����
��
� ���
�������	��)������!!������������
���
�
��������������������	�������-�
�
���������	� "���  	� �
��� ���� ���������	� +�����	�� ��� �  ������� ���	� �)� ���
��!!�����-��+�
���
�
��������������������	���!��-�
�
���������
���*���E���������	��	����
�14�����
�����	�+�����	��.1�����
F��������������	�
�	����
���
���!����
����	��)����(�
����������	����L�����	��!������ �����(�	������
��!!������

�
�
�
�

+��$���	�
?-// !�D�5-=/ !�

10



*''����>�*�

�����	��������	��	���������

�
����*�7�	
�:�����	���A�*��=����

�
7��
����
���	��	������������	����)���������������	��
8�
�

�
�	������7���8	�8�����������

�

9� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.��2�2.��&��-�$���+�."! �
�

� %����	�������-�
�

<� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.����2.��&���"�$!�,�$��;��/�2�$$��&����$�����.!��$�
��2.��&���/�$����22!$$������!�2���

�

.-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""���������/(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
+������!���)���9
�������#�������������
����
��������

���)�	�!����,������	�
�����
-�
A� 	����
�� �������� ���!�*��������	��
� ���$�		�
��
���������������'�	*����� ��� ����� �
�
���� �������
���������� ����.=������
�� ��� �	*���
� ��������������	����� �������-�
B�)�	�����������
��
�3���  �����-�+�������
���))����	��
�������$�������������������
����	��������������� �	���)�#�������������������
��)�	������������-�(�	������
��
���������
����������������	�	�
�	������
��! �
����������
�	�����)�	���M�+�����
��������	�����
�
)	�!� ��
��������
� �
� ���
������!���� ��� ��� 
�	����	���)�!���� 	� �	���
������� ����

�	���-�A���
���
�����
�������	�!����!�����������������	����
�	)���-�A
���	����������
�)��! �
�������	�
�	������
���
 �����������	���	�
����������$���M��
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
�
���������?-=+�������	�
�	������
�������������������������� �
������������!����
�
 �	!�������������	����	�
�	������������	��������������	�������!�*����������	���	�
�����������)	�!����� 	�!�
�
����������	�
�	�������	��-��&���������������
�!������
�
������	���	���������������������������	�
�	�������	������������	������-��9�����
��	�������	�
	�6��	����������	���	�
�	�������	���������
�	��
��	�����������	���
�����������	���������
�	����
�������
�!��	��������������������	��-�������$�����	���	
��	������
����	�����������	�
�	�����������������������
���� ���	
������)�	���������	�
�	������
��
�
���
�	�
 ��
��������	�
�
��������'�����-�A�����������	���
�	���������'�������	��!����
���	���)���
�������	�
-�
�
+�������������)���	�	���
��
�	�����	���!�����	�����������������������������
�  �	��
������������������
��	�����
�������	�!����!����������	����
�	)������	�
�	����	���
��!������� 	� �	���
-�
�
���� !""���������/��&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
������(�������./>�!����
�����
��������		������
�!���)����	����
�	)�������� ��@����
	� ��	
M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
A����������
��������)���
��
� �

����-�
�

11



0-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""���
�;��(�
�
+�����������	�(���������������$�!��	�)�	���
��	��
�
�
���������	����������������!�!��	� ���
�����)�	!�)�	�!���
�������������������
����
)�������))�)����������������2�������������	�,��*�����������	��	��)�%�	�����(�������
���
�
�����	���
��	����
�(����� 	� �	����	��
���
�
����������������
�����������	���M�
�
���� !""������$�����&+��/�/(�
�
'���	��	��������������������
����)	�������)���������)	�!������	 ��������������
�������*�������	��	��)�0.@00�<�		����������
�������������
�%�	�����'	�!�	��
(������������	������
���
����� �������)����-�
�
+��(�����
����E������������� �������)����F���
��	��
)�		������'���)	�!���!�
��������
�����������/.G/;G.554������������!���������	������	���������������������	�
��������������������
��������	���

��
-�
�
���� !""���
�;����&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
��������
���������� ����������� ���������
�������
������ �������
�
���� !""������$�����&+��/�/(�
�
A���������*��������
�����	�
 �������
�������!������-�
�

1-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""���*&�(�
�
+�����������	�%�	�����������$�!��	�)�	�����	��!������ ���������%������	���
�
�
�������������������!������������������$�!��	���	����������
��!���������	���
���
��	 ����
��! �	���������!���������-���������������������
������	*����)�	��	�
�� �����������
�	�6��	�����������
����������
���	��-����������������$�!��	����)�	!�
����!�����������������������)�	���� 	�2���������)���������������)��������
����������
���
���	����	�������������������
���	��M���
�
���� !""������$����&+��/�/(�
�
�
����)�	!��������������)�	��	��� �����������
����������
���	����
� �	���)����0/.;G.=�
�������
������� 	���

-�
�
�
������������	����
����
��������������������
���	��������
��������*�	������)����

����)������)�����������������
������������
��	��)�����-�
�
A��!�
�	���������	��
��
�)�!����	���������������
������� 	���

�������!�
����
�������
�
��������)�����
-����������� ��������	����)�	��	�� 	� �
��
�)�	����
�������������	���
�
���	-�+������
����������������
��
��������������  �	�������
�)�	�������!��������
$�!��	
�� 	��	�����  	����������
���!��	-�
�
���� !""���*&���&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
,����)�������������
� 	�����
�����	�������	��	�
�����
�������������M�
�
���� !""������$����&+��/�/(�
�
+����
���)�������	���� 	�2������������� ��������������������������������������������
	������)�
 ���������	��!���
-�
�

12



;-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""������/-��/(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
(�����.�&�����	�����	���	�
�����
����,��������	������������	���	������
�
�	�����������
�������
 ���������	��������������������
���
������	���������
�
������
������
�	��
 �	������	���)	�!�<	������������9�����	�(����-��+�	���
��������������
�
�	�����
������(����
������!������������������
� ����������������
�
��		������������
(����
�����?�!�����?-=/�!�D���)�����	�����	
���)�	���������!������������ ��
-��
�
���������	����������������!�!��	� ���
���� ����������
����
�
�	��������
��	��������
���������������	��
���������	��� �� �������
���������	������
��������
�!����!��
 	��������������
�	����
��������3���  ��	����!�*������
��
�M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
����������)��������� �
������������������
����������������� 	��������	���������
�

�	���������������������	
��
�!����)����'���	��	�����	����
� �

����-���	�
�����
 � ��
��	���������)	�!�<	������������9�����	����
��
���2��	��������	�1�!���
�������������
������	�
������	��
 �	�� ����������� ����!���
�	��!�
������	��
����� � ��
�������*�
�	�������������
�����-�'� ��
�
������������� ������)��	��������������
������������������	��
����������������9�����	-�
�
9�����	�(������
����*������� 	��������
�����
�	����������))���	
������))�	�������

�
��
����� ������!��	������� 	���	�!���� 	���

-�
�
+������
�	����
������������
�������	������������
��)��������	���������)�	���������
����	����������������	�)�	����	��2��	���-�A! �	��������,������	�
�����
�����
���������������
������
 ������������������������������������������	�-�<�)�	����������
���!�������
�))��������!�2�	�����)� �� ����������	�����	����������	����������������������	������������
�������������
��������
 ����-�
�
&���������!���

�������0.���
�	��������
� �
���������!�-�A�����!�	����
����
����!��
�� ��������������
������ �

����	
�������!!���	
����������
����
�� 
�2�
�� �
��
�������!�-������
����!�
����
�	������
�)�	���!!���	
���	*���������
���������������)�	�
 �� ���������������������������!�-�#���	����������������������!���
�� ������
�� �
���������
������ �

����	
����������������

��������!�-�
�
���� !""������/-��/��&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
�	��������
�������
�	����
���
 	� �	�������������))�����������	�����������	������
!�
�M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
%�-��A����������� 	�)�	������������!�*��������
�������
���
����������������	��������
���
-�
�

=-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""������+��(�
�
+�����������	�%�	�����������$�!��	�)�	�����	��!������ ���������%������	���
�
�
���������������!�!��	�)�	�E�������	���
F�	��

�	��!�������������( ������'����
����	��<�������
������ ��� �����	��
���������
��	 ����������������	����
�	��������
��
� ��������
�	������G� ���������������!�������������
���

�	��!������ ������
������������
�	������
���� ������������	�)��������
���� 	�!�
�
�����������	� ����
�6�� !���M�
�

13



���� !""������$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+�
�����������!!������
�!����!�����������	*����������!!������
�����	�������
�	������
���)�	!�	� �������	����������
��	��	��������)�	���!!�������
����������������� 	��	�

�
�
������!����
��)�	����*
��������))�	�
��)����������	
�������!!������
-�
�
����������
��	����������	��������������������	�������)�������)�	�	���������
�
�)�	�
��
���������������
�������$�	��0/.;�
������
����

)�������
�
����������	��
)�	
����
��!!�������	�� 
�������*�� ����-�
�
N������������
�������	������ ���������)������������	�)�	��
!�����)����( ������
 �������	�������A���������*���������!�����*
���������)����	
�)�	��������	�
�����)���	�
��!!������
�������
���

�
���������������
���	�������!������	�
��	������!�*����
�
�  ��-�
�
+��( �������������������������������������
�	��������������������������������)�����	�
�����������	��
������	�)��������������	�)�	��
���
����
-�A���
���*��������#������$�	����
������
�����*�������������
���)��������������
� �	���)������		������!!�������

����	��
)�	�
 	��	�!!���������������!������������

���������	�����)������������������!!����������
!�����!������!!�����-���
�
���������������	�
 ��
�����)�	�����������
����� ������
������������
�	���������������	����	��������	���)���
-�
�

>-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""����!���&(�
�
+�����������	���
������������$�!��	������	������	�����������,�
���$�����!����
�
,����
�����	�

���������!����������� 	��	�!!��)�	��������	��	��������	��
������
�

�������������������$��
)�����(��������!�������
���
����,�
��	�������������
'� ��	��������D��
���
 ����	� ������	�6��
�
�)�	����	�)�����������������������	
�
�����������
��
��	
M�
�
���� !""����"&���2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+���	�������!��	�������� 	���

��)� �������������	��� 	��	�!!���)��	�

���������
������	���  ��������������	�!!��������)�����!����������-��		����!���
��	����
��
������ ������ �����������	��
������!������)�
������
 ������
�����	��	����������)������
��	�� �

������	��������������@
����������������)�	����! ���)�����  ���-��+�����!������
����)�����
��	 ��,�	�����������	
��
��������		����!���
�����������	
�-�A�����������
���������������������	� �	�� 	��	�

�!����������� 	� �
���
�����)������)���
��
���
�
!����
����������������	������
�����)����)�	!�	���	���!��
�������'����+	������
�-�
�

?-� � :��&$!���-��2����� !""�����6!/&��(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	��	�����(�	�������'������������
����������!���
������ !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
+����

��)���	������
�
�	����
�)	�!������	 �����,�		�����������	��)	�!�.�&�����	-��
+��;/>�����	�������������
����	�������� �	���)������	 �������������������	����
������������	� ����!������
�E������)���2��	���
��������F�	�6��	�
� �� ���������*�
��������������	���������-����	�
�!����
�����������������*������)��������,�		�������
��)�	��������������������
-�+�� 	����!������	�
�
�)	�!���
���	��������
�	������
�
���������
�
�	������������
������	��
 �	�� �� ����������
 �������	���������
������	�
������� � ���������)�,�		������������
���������  ����!���
������
�	��
��������	�
����
	�
�����
����
������;/>��
�������������

���-�����������������$�!��	� ���
���� �����
�����������������
M�
�
���� !""�������&$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+�������
�������!�������������
��������������
�	�����������

�!�����)	�!�

14



����	�!���-�+��������������	��������)���	�����
��
���
���
�	����
�������������
��C.-5�
!������� �	����	��������������������
������������
�C>//�///-��
�
,��������
������������� �� ������������������������������� 	�����������������

�	�����)�	��
�!����)����'���	��	�����	����
���������-�,�����������������������
*�� ������)���������������
�	����
������! �	������� �� �������
���������

�����
 ����-�
<�)�	����������
���!��������))��������!�2�	�����)� �� ����������	�����	���������
�	����������������������	�������������������������
��������
 ����-�
�

�� :��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��.����2.��&�$������ !"���+��&��$�$!6�&��-�$���
!���
*�$���!$����/�'�"! ����/���!2��'���"�

�

� %����	�������-�
�

�

15



*''����>���

�
�>�����8����������������

�

���������:��&$!��&�;!$����$! ��$��$������/�����/���2.��&��-�$����5� �$!6��
�

.-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""������"� �(�
�
+�����������	�(���������������$�!��	�)�	���
��	��
�
�
A�������0/.0����6��
�������
��
*��������
���!��	��
��������	��������������
�
	�����������
����*�����		����!���
����������
�
����
�������������������
�����!�������
��!���������*�
����
������@� -�+�
���
�����! �����������	���������	���������������
��
�
����
���������������
�����!��������������A�6������O������O�<��*���*�������@� -�
���������������$�!��	�)�	���
��	��
� ���
����������� ����������� �
�����M�
�
���� !""������$�����&+��/�/(�
�
A��	�
 ��������������6��
������A�������������������������
��������������������
��������
���� 	������������������ ���	
3�!����-�+���������)����*��
����	����������!�����)���
�
����-�
�
,������*
�����	�����������
���
�����������������	��
�	��!�����!����
�	�������
�  	����������������������������	-�+�
�
 ���)��
����!���!�!��	�����	���������������*�
!�
������)�	����������������
����!-�
�
<��*���������0/.0�������@� ����*���������!������	�!���!�!��	�����	�������
�����������
�����
����!-�
�
+��
��
�6����� 	����!
���������@� ����*�!������������������
���������
�����	��������	��	�����	���������2��*�
����
-�
�
+��	� 	� �
���	�
���� �����
�����������	����
�����
�!����������������	����*����!����
��

�
�)�	�����
��	
-�+����@� 3
�������	
��������)�	!�������������������!�	������
��2��������)��� ������������*��������������	�����������������	�-�
�
A)���������*������
����
�����	��
��������
��������@� ��
���	����*�	
���������������
���)���������)����������

��
8�

•� +�� �

���������)���

�
��������
�!���
�

•� %����������)��������	����������*�	
����������! ����������
����������������	�
	�
�����
���
 ��������)�	�������
�� �� ������!�*�� ��!���
���������������)�	�
����������������	���
���

�	���
�

�
A���������������������	� ����-��+����@� ����*��
����)����������	!��)������@� �	������
�	�� �������
��  ������*���
��
��������)���
�)	�!�������*������� �
����������
 	�������4/I��)����)������������
� ��������������������� �	������'�	��-����$�!��	��)���
�
��������	������
�)�������)	�!������� �	������'�	�������������� ��������������	�����)�	���
�
�����������!������������� �<��*�����
����
���������6��
��������)����������������������

�-�������*�����������������	�
����P ���
�������	���
������
���

�	�
*�3-��A���
���)���������
��	����
�3����M�
�

0-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""���������/(�
�
+�����������	���
������������$�!��	�)�	������	������	�����������,�
���$�����!����
�
A��)�������*��������	*���������A��  	����$���)���������������)������	������������	�������
�
�  ������-�A�	����
�������!�)	�!�����	 	�
������	�� �����!�	�����������
������*��

�
��
*-�,���������������!�	����
���))��������������	�����	� ��	��
���������L��������������
��� �	 ��	���	
������

���	�
 �������)���
M�&	���
���	���	���������)�����	��
�����������

16




�	�����������������
�������� �������������	
��������	�� ����������	����
�������	�
 	�!�
�
��	�����	���)���M��
�
���� !""����"&�����&+��/�/(�
�
+������������������	 	�
��'���	��	������������������	*����
����������	�������*������
 	����!
��

�����������������	������� �	�
��)���	�����������������$���)����-�#����	���������
�
��!!������
������	����
�������������!���������	�
�	���
�����������������������	*�
������	��������������������	
��)����!���	�����)� �� ���������*���
��
����� �����-�
�
+�����������! ���
�=��))���	
��������	��*���������	������)�����	��!��������)�	��!����
���������
���	�

���������������������
�)������������	����������������

����.�/;/�)�����
 �������������
�)�	������	������	�

�'���	��	���-�
�
A�������������))���	
��	����		�������� ��	������� �

���������)�!�	��������������)�	��!����
��������������
� �	���)�'���	��	����������)���	�������������������	������ �	���	
� �����
����	 	�
��'���	��	������������	�� �	�����)�	��!�����	����
�����-�
�
�����
������
�������
� �	���)����& �	���������@��� 	��	�!!�������! �������!������
��	*������������������������
���

�����	
����$���)�������������	��������	�������
&�����	��������������������	*�������*��������	����)	�!����	� 	�!�
�
-��
�

1-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""����!���&(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
'����
�
���������	������
��)������	
�)���������'�
��&))�������
�	�
�����
�  �	������
 	�
�	���'�
��&))����
�	����
�)	�!����	���!!������������
���	�)�	������
����#����	�
��������'���
����������� ���)�	!� ��������� 	��������
�� �
���))����
�	����
��)���������
����������$����
���@�))M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
+�
����������
���!!���������������	������� 	���� ��
��)�������
!���������	������
�����
�! �	�����	����������	������)���))�	����
�	����
���������������'�
��&))����� ���������	�
��!!������
-�
�
<����
���)���
������
�����������3
�������������
�	�)��������������� �����(�	���������������
��!!��������)	�
�	����	����������������	����
������� 	���� ����)�P��@��������3���))�	����

�	����
��������
��������������-�B
������
��  	�����
 �������������
���)�����������
����	 �	������	������)���))�	����
�	����
�
����
������� ���������!!������)��������
��
*���
�
�������	�	��
�	����
-�+�
��������
����
�	��������
�
��	��!���!�
��-�
�
+�
���
���
���������
����������	������
����	���
����	��
������ �
���))����
�	����
�
������������
���������	 �	���������������!!����������)����)���������������
���

�!�����
�����������-�
�
�
�)�	��
����
�����'�
��&))���
��	�������	����������������������2������������	*����
	�������
� ��������'�
��&))����!�����!�������!�������������
�����������
�������
��	����	���
��
����
��)����������
���� �
���))���
����'���	��	���������A������������
����
����	�������
� ����������
���	�
�����)����������� !���
�����'�
��&))����
�	����	���
�		����!���
-�
�
���� !""����!���&��&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
A
����#����	�
�		�����
����� �	���)��
��	������
�������$�������
M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�

17



�
A��!���	�������	���������	�������

��
�������
���

�
���
�������������!���	��
�������
����
�����������
��������	����'�
��&))���������
�	����-�
�

;-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""������".����(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
��
�'����������� ��������������
��������������� 	� �
��������
��������.;������)�
��
������
���	�����	�������M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
�
�#����	�A�������*�������������	�������
�  �	���������.;����
�	���!����
����

)�����
�������������	�!����)�	�����
�!���������
��	��������	��
 �	����		���	-��$����'���	��	����
��
���

�
�	���������
�
�	�������	�������������
��

��������������������*
����������
�����
�	��	�!���������	��	���������*����)���������!��� ����������)���	�#���������	 	�
��
'�	���	
� ��	��-�����	�!����!�����������	�)	�!�������
�����������������	�������
�������
���!��������	�
������
���)����
��!��������������������������������

�	�-�(��2�������
�  	������	������	�������� 	���

��A����� ����������������)�C.-=!����	�0=����	
�
����	�
����C.-=�����
���)����
��!�������)���	�������!�!��	
���
����������)������
)	�!�)���	����!!������A�)	�
�	����	��#����	���� �
-�
�
���� !""������".������&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
(�!��)������*��
������������������� 	� �
���� �	���������������
��	�������%�	�G(����
��������������	��M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
+����������������)������*���!��)	�!�(�))��*-��'���	��	�����
� �	���)������
��	�	������
����!������
��)� ����
�ECF��	����
���������.;-��'���	��	����
���������)���)	�!��������

��!�-�
�

=-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""������/-��/(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
A�������������������'���	��	������������������
� ��������������	�������	�����C=/�///�
����	�
������
���)���� 	� �
����.;�� �	���-����������������	��)���������������)�	!�
����	���
��
���		����������)�����
�������
��������������� �	
��������������
��������
������������)����	� ���������
��������������
�������
��!�����'���	��	����
��������	�
	�
�����
�������
��������
� 	� �
��������������	�
��������M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
A���������*�����	��

�	�����	�(���)�	����������������� ��������������	������C=/!�
����	�
������
���)���� 	� �
����.;�� �	���-�A����� �������������������	���������)�
C.-=!����	�0=����	
�����	�
�����
��!�����C.-=�����
���)����
��!��������)������)	�!�
)���	����!!������A�)	�
�	����	��#��������!����)���	�������!�!��	
��	��������������

������� 	���

-�
�
�����������������
���������
�)���
�����
� ���������
��������������
����!!������
�
�������������������������!�	������������������	�������))������������ �
������ �	����
�)����	��������������
�	��
��)� ���������������
-�'���������
���������	��
�������.1�&�����	�
����)����������
��)����
��!��������������!!�����	�����������������	����
���-��
�

18



���� !""������/-��/��&%�/�$���-�""�;!�,�&�++"�2��$����B��&$!��(�
�
(�����'���	��	����������������
�����������
��� ������	���
 ���������
���������
���	��
��2��	���������
��������	�������������������	���M�
�
���� !""�������&$����&+��/�/(�
�
+����		�����	��������������������
�����
�)�������������
��!������
��)� ����
�ECF����
 	� �	���	� ��	-�����
�����������
���		��������������!!������
�������!����)����������
�)����	���-�
�

>-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""�����6!/&��(�
�
+�����������	�%�	�����������$�!��	�)�	�����	��!������ ���������%������	���
�
�
+��'�
��&))�������,�		�����������	�����
�
����.>��&�����	������������'�
��&))����
���
������ ������������.4��&�����	������
�������������������
���������������������
�! �������������������
��������!!�������)�,�		��������������������
��������
������
���
����������������������������	�)�	���������!������
�!������
�����'�
���))�������
��	��(�������������,�		��������	���-�+�
�	��
�
������	�
�
����
��  	� 	����� �	*����
�	���������������*��)� �	*����)��������
�����������'�
���))���������������������! ��������
�����	�������!����� �	*����
 ���
�)�	����	�
�����
�����������	�-��
�
A��!���	�������	����������
�
������������������������ 	���������������	�
�����
��)�
,�		���������������������������������������

������'�
��&))�����������������	���	�����
,�		�����������	������	��	����������	�����*��� 	���
���
�QQQ��
�������	����������������$�!��	� 	���������� ����������	���	�������
��	��
�������
���������
����
���,�		�����������!��������������M�
�
���� !""������$����&+��/�/(�
�
A���
���
��������������������������)���
������������!�*������ �	���)�'���	��	��������@���
��������	����
������������	��� �
���))����
�	����
���
��)-��
�
������	���������������
�����������������'�
��&))����%����	*����� 	��������)�	!��
�����
������	�������	����������� �
���))���� 	���
�������,�		�����������	����
�� �	��������
����! �	�	��
��@ �
�!�
��	���������������	������	�
�	��������������!�-�������
�
�  ��������
�����������	�
������������ 	���
����)�	�
�!�����
���	�������!�����
�����
����	������������������
�
����-�������
�!����!������'�
��&))����%����	*����)�	!�������
������	������
��������������� �
���))���� 	���
�������� 	�
������������	����	����
�  	��������������'�	���'������!����������� 	�����
����	-��
�
( ���)����������	����������� �
���))����
�	����
����,�		�����������'�
��&))����%����	*�
��)�	!����
����������������	��
�������  �	�������)�	����	�	������ 	�!�
�
����
,�		�����������	���������	����������!��������������)�	����� �	!������ �
���))����
 	���
�����������������)�	!����  �������������	����������
�)	�!����'	�!��	�
������������(��	���������
���������-�
�
+�	��)����������>@���*����
������������	��
���	���������'�
��&))����%����	*����)�	�����
)���������
�������	���������������
������������
�!���-�+��	�
�����
����� �	!������
 �
���))���� 	���
����)�	�,�		������3
���!!���������������	�)�	��
��� 	�!�
�
�����

����)�������������	�� ��������	
-�+�� �
���))�������,�		��������	����	�!���
�
���))�����-�
�

?-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""���
�;��(�
�
+�����������	�%�	�����������$�!��	�)�	�����	��!������ ���������%������	���
�
�
A��	���������*
��A��������������)�����)���
��!�������	��
����������!��	��)�����)�������

19



��������
����������(����,�		�����������%�	�������	 ����	�-���������������������
�
�����	� �	���������A������	��)����	����������������!�!��	�����������!��*����������
�
��!���
�	�������	������������� �	����������)���������������
�  �	�������	���))�	��������
���*�	
������
�	��������	���
�����������������
 �
����)���		�����M�
�
���� !""������$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
�
���������)�	!��)������	���������)���������)�������	�
�	���
��
����������� ����������
���������-��
�
+�	���	����		������.�5//����
����'���	��	���������	����!����	���)����������	���������
)����������
�������)�������������
���)�	�	�
�����
����������� ��)��	����	����
-�
�
����	 	�
��'���	��	�����	����		�����������������	�
����
��)�!�  ���������)���
�����
����
��
�	�������	��������!�
���))���������������
�������������	����������������	��	�6��	��-��
�
+������	 	�
��'���	��	����(�	����������������!������
��	����� 	��	���
��������� 
�����
����	������6��
������
��	�����
����
�� �����	��
��������	������	������	��
-��
�
+���������3
�����	��!��������)�	��!�����))���	
���
�� ��	����	��
�*�������������
 ��
�
)�	�����)���������������)�������	�	��������	
���	���� ��	��
�!�*������)�	��!����

�������
������
���		�
 ��
�������������	
���������-�
�
������������	����������	���
����
��)���	*�����������
�+	�
������B"3
���	��
������
��	���������	�������	���

�	��
������	��������������	���� 	�)���������
����������������� �
����������������	
��)��		�
 ��
�������������	
-��
�

4-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""������+��(�
�
+�����������	�(���������������$�!��	�)�	���
��	��
�
�
��
������������$�!��	���*�������������������	�������� 	� �
������	��� 	������ �)	�!�
0/.=�������
��! ��������������!��
�	��!�)	�!�������	��� �	*� 	�2���������

�!��������
���	��� 	���
�����������	��
�����
��
�6������! ����������)��������������������)����

��!�M�
�
���� !""������$���2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+��	��������������!���
������	����� ��������� �	���
�	���	�����������	��� 	������ ���)�
�! ��!�������������! �������	������
�����)����<���>�����������! ����
���	�����-�A���
� �

�����
������� ���	� �	��
����	��!����E''�F� 	���� ����)�	�	�������������	���������������
�! ������������ 	� �
����� �����	�������
�����������! ����
���������*����������
�
�
��
���	�-�+��''���
������	��!����������������	���	
�E�-�-�����������F��������
������	 �	�������!����	�!���������������)����<���>-�
�
+�����������
������
��

���
�����������	
��	������)�������	 �	���
�����
�����)����<���>��
����������������! ��������	������������ 	� �
������	��� 	������ -�A��
�������
�����
	�!�!��	����������
�����)���� ���	��
����������	�������
�	��!�����	�����������
 	� �
������	��� �	*
�����������	��������������������&����������E�&�F����������-�
������	��������������
������ 	�������������

�! ����
�!�����	�������� 	�������)�
 ���	-��
�
A��
�!!�	����)��! ��!�������������	����� ����������)�����������
�	����	!����������
��*��������������������	��
��
����������������������
�����)����������� 	������ �������
�! �����������@��	!������������)����
��!�-��
�

5-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""���*&�(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����

20



�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
+�	�����������
���	�����! �����
����	�
�����
�������������
���
��)�,�������	����
���������
�����	��
���������
��������
����������  �	�������	��
����������!��	��)�
�����������
�����������������	�������
����)	�!����
�����-�-��������	�
���������
�������
�)�,������������	���	�������������;?�G��.>�2�������-��
�
�����������������!�!��	� ���
����*��
�� 
������
�	����������  	� 	����������
�����
�� �	�!���
���	*�������	�����	����������
� 	����!M�
�
���� !""�������&$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
��?-=+���������!������
�
����������)�����������)�,������������������
���9
������	��
!�*����������	��
��	�����������
�)	�!�����������	�������	���������	�
�	��������	����������
������
�-��A���
������
����
�����������!�2�	�����)���9
����
������� 	����!����������

*� ��	��
 �	��	
����������(�)�	�'���	��	����+��!����������'�������	���  	�������
������
���

�������	��������
��*����	���@� �	����������
��������;?�G��.>�2��������	���	�
�������	�
���������
������-��(�������
��������	��!������

��������������	�������� �����
������������
��*���
���������	�������
������	�� 	���

�������������	���������������
���������)������������!���
�������������������	
����	�
����������	����)�,�����������-��
������	�!�����������	!����� ������)����������	�
�	����������	�	����	�
���������

��������������	�
�������������9���������	
�,������������)	�!�����;?�����������������
��	����	���������������������		������	�������	�
����������	�����������������!�*�����
 	����!���	
�-��A��������
�	��������	��))���	
����
����!�����	���
��! �	������

�������
*�� ����	��
���)�	!����)� 	��	�

-�
�

./-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""���'�� �(�
�
+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
���������#����	��)������������ ���
����������� ������������������������!�	����
�	��
(� �	)�
��<	�������� 	�2����)�	�'���	��	�������������@)�� 	�2����)�	�������������	�M��	��
��
����������	��*��������������M�
�
���� !""�������&$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+���������������!�	����
�	�� 	��	�!!����
�
���� ����0/..������
�	������

����

� �	)�
���	��������)�	�������
��5/I��)��!�
�������
���

�
����������	��	��������)�	�
�������	� 	�!�
�
���	�

���!�	����
�	������'���	��	���-��
����
��������������! �������� 	���	�!���� 	���

��<+���
�
������������
���������!���
�����
����	�������$�	��0/.1�)�	����	���@�����)�
� �	)�
���	����������	�

�����������������
�����)�0/.=-�+�
�	���������
�����	��������
���������	��*�������������������	�
� �	)�
��
�	�����������5/I��)��!�
�������
���

�
��������������	�)��	����
����	�����������54I�
�)��!�
�������
���

�
���������������	�������������-��
��
+������	���������!�*����!�	����
�	������'���	��	���������)������
������������
�	��
�������B"������������)�0/.=-�
�
+�����������	����@)�� 	�2�����������������(� ��!��	�0/.1�����	��������	
���	���	�����A�
���
������������������������	�����-�A3����*��������*����#��@��!
�)�	� �������������������
����*�������	����
����)�	����������	���)����������	����@)�-�A�����������	����	��
��������	�?//�
���
�	�!�����������������*�������
���
�������	��-�+�
���
�������	�����������������
�
�����)������@)���
�������!�����	��������������������*�������	��������  �	�������
�����
��������������	���-�
�

..-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""����!���&(�
�

21



+�����������	���	�
������������$�!��	�)�	��	�����(�	�������'������������
�����
�����!��������� !��������<�
���

�������!����
�
%���������	�����������
�������<���)���(�
��!�������	�
�������C1=!��������  	���!������
��������
������������!�
��)����
���
��)�'���	��	���� �� �������
����#����	G��������
$�!��	�����������
�����������	
�����))���������	*���		����������������	��*�������'����
���
�  �	����������	�����B���������(����	�(�� �����������$�	*�������M�
�
���� !""�������&$��2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+�
����������
���	�������	*���������	������)� �
���������� 	��������!��
�	�
����
�  �	��
)�!����
���������������
�����	���))������������)�	��	�)�	!-��������������������	���������
�	��������	�������'���	��	������!!�������

�
������(��!��������
�� �	���	
� �����
����!��	��)���))�	�����������
�� 	����������	����
�  �	����� �� �������������-�
�
,��	������
������! �	�����	����������������	�����B���������(����	�(�� � ���������	�
����������2�
��)�	���
���))���������	�)�	!
�����)�	����	
������������
�����	���������

�
����))�	��������		��������	������������)����������)�	!�������	�!����� �����)	����
-�&�	�
��!!��!�����������	�����B������������(����	�(�� ���
�������
�������	� 	�2���
�����
�	����
�����
�
�  �	�������
����
�
����
��������3
�������������B"���A�#�����$A%��
�
�!�������������	������� ���������!�������������! ���
��)����)�	��	�)�	!��
�������
����

�  �	�� �� ���������	��������	��! ���!���-�
�
'���	��	���3
������!����
����������
�����	�����������	���� �	��������
�!���)����
����
�����! ���!����	���
-�
�
�����)���
�������!������
�����������
��������)�������������	���!!��!����������*�����
����! ���
��)����)�	��	�)�	!��
� ��������������
�������������������������
�-�
�

.0-� :��&$!���-��2����� !""������+���
�
+�����������	�������	�������������$�!��	�)�	�������(��������	��
�
���������������$�!��	�)�	�������(��������	�����)�	!��)�����������������
����� ��������
��*��� ����!�����������������������������
�����! ����)�	�'���	��	���M�
�
���� !""���
!$C,���"/�2�����6����&+��/�/(�
�
+�
���������� 	�����
��� �
������	�������!�����������)�	������������!�!��	-�$�����)�
���������
��	����	���������������	��*������!�
��)��
������������$�!��	�)�	��(��
������	�������	�������))���	�)�	�!����������-�+�
����������������������
����	��))�	�
�
��	�

��������	���-�+�*������
�)�	��	���������������������
�	����	����������
����
'��������������	����������
�  �	�����+�!��+�������� ������������	�����������
���������
���	�������	������ �
������!��������������
����
-�
�
&�	������� ����$������������(�	������������)��
�������
������*��)�	��	�� �	���	
� �
��	*������	�

���
���������! ���!���-�+��	����������	����(?=���	��!����	���)�	��
�
��	����������
��)�
���	���������	�����������	���)�!�������������	�-�
�

�

�

�

22



FULL COUNCIL 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 
MAYOR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
1.    PURPOSE OF REPORT: FOR INFORMATION   

 
This report is a brief summary of the Mayor’s activities on the Council’s behalf during the 
last meetings cycle, together with relevant matters for information. 
(Events marked with * denotes events attended by the Deputy Mayor on the Mayor’s 
behalf).  
 

2. ACTIVITIES AND INFORMATION – From 30 September to 1 December 2013 
 
Attending Event Venue 

Mayor Telephone interview with Felicity Evans - Feature 
Proposal 

 

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor 

Opening of Bridge Fair and Annual Sausage 
Supper 

Reception Room 

Mayor Department visit to Children's Services with Chief 
Executive 

Bayard Place 

Mayor Visit by the Village Turners to meet the Mayor The Parlour and 
Council Chamber 

Mayor  25th Anniversary Celebration of Clifton Court Clifton Court 
Communal 
Lounge 

Mayor Visit Parents United 100A Central 
Avenue 

Mayor Freedom of the Borough to The Northamptonshire 
Fire and Rescue Service 

The Great Hall, 
The Guildhall 

Deputy Mayor 53rd Nigerian Independence Anniversary 
Celebration 

Millfield 
Community 
Centre 

Mayor and Mayoress The High Sheriff of Cambridgeshire - The Justice 
Service and lunch 

Ely Cathedral 

Mayor Local Democracy Week Picture Competition 
Judging with Senior Governance Officers 

The Parlour 

Mayor Meeting regarding the proposal regarding an 
Honorary Recorder for Peterborough 

The Parlour 

Mayor Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Preparation meeting for Full Council The Parlour 

Mayor Preparation meeting for Full Council  The Parlour 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Full Council meeting Council Chamber 

Mayor Leighton Primary School Grand Pond Opening 
Ceremony 

Leighton Primary 
School 

Mayor World Mental Health Day Cathedral Square 
/ Guildhall 

Mayor Charity Committee meeting Forli Room 

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough's Environment Capital Workshop Town Hall  

23



Attending Event Venue 

Mayor and Mayoress Navratri Festival The Cresset, 
Bretton 

Mayor and Mayoress Induction service for new minister Westgate Church 

Mayor and Mayoress Durga Puja / Autumn Festival 2013 Longthorpe 
Village Hall 

Mayor and Mayoress Perkins Great Eastern Run The Embankment 

Mayor Promote poppy seed scheme with schools Ravensthorpe 
Primary School 

Mayor Local Democracy Week Picture Competition 
Afternoon Tea with the Mayor  

The Parlour and 
chamber  

Mayor Welcome meeting - NQT's and new teachers to 
Peterborough (approx. 100 teachers) 

Parlour and 
Reception Room 

Mayor Peterborough Future City Clean Energy Award 
2013 – Meet Professor Jon Gibbins 

The Parlour  

Mayor Peterborough Future City Clean Energy Award 
2013 

Council Chamber 

Mayor Visit to Peterborough Sailability Watersports 
Centre  

Mayor Business Focus 2013 Peterborough 
Arena 

Mayor Legal and Governance departmental visit with 
Chief Executive 

Town Hall 

Mayor and Mayoress Better Together & YMCA Volunteer Awards 
Evening 

Town Hall 

Mayor  Service of Thanksgiving for The Revd Canon 
Malcolm Griffith 

Ely Cathedral 

Mayor  Forty Years On – Exhibition Peterborough 
Museum  

Mayor Quiz Night (Mayor's Charities) The New England 
Club 

Mayor and Mayoress British Red Cross volunteers forum, Cambridge The King's School 

Mayor and Mayoress Celebrating Diversity in Peterborough Millennium 
Building 

Mayor and Mayoress 3rd Traditional Karate European Children's Cup Bushfield Leisure 
Centre 

Mayor and Mayoress The Royal Society of Saint George End of Year 
Dinner 

Dining Room of 
the Barn 
Restaurant 

Mayor and Mayoress Collation and Induction of Rector  St Mary’s Church  

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Bangladeshi Community 
Association celebrating the festival of Eid 

Focus Community 
Centre 

Mayor and Mayoress Young People of the Year Awards Ceremony Priory Centre 

Mayor Peterborough Station – update meeting Great Northern 
Hotel 

Mayor  Opening of the refurbished Victoria Gardens, 
Millfield 

Victoria Gardens 

Mayor and Mayoress The Chairman of South Cambridgeshire District 
Council - Annual Reception 

Imperial War 
Museum Duxford 

Mayor and Mayoress Celebrating Diversity in Peterborough Peterborough 
Town Hall 

Mayor  Free Church Choirs Festival of Church Music Peterborough 
Cathedral 

Mayor and Mayoress Royal British Legion Annual Re-Dedication 
Service 

St Mary’s Church 

24



Attending Event Venue 

Mayor  Multicultural Showcasing Event Millennium Centre 

Mayor and Mayoress Launch of the Peterborough Poppy Appeal Poppy Caravan 

Mayor Visit NSPCC Peterborough Service Centre Unit 12, Flag 
Business 
Exchange 

Mayor Judge poppy wreaths made by students and lunch Peterborough 

Mayor Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber 

Mayor Schoffields Dry Cleaning/Launderette –  
30th Anniversary Celebration 

25 Herlington 

Mayor and Mayoress Turkish Buffet – charity event with the Mayor of St 
Ives 

Meze Restaurant 

Mayor Departmental visit to Strategic Resources with 
Chief Executive 

Various Offices 

Mayor NSPCC Peterborough Service Centre celebration 
event and ribbon cutting 

Unit 12, Flag 
Business 
Exchange 

Mayor and Mayoress Human Dog Race Night (Mayor's Charities) Greyhound 
Stadium, 
Peterborough 

Mayor Meeting with Peterborough Neighbourhood 
Champions 

The Parlour 

Mayor and Mayoress Dobbies Halloween Dobbies Garden 
World 

Mayor and Mayoress Reception for Perkins GER Fun Run participants Reception Room 

Mayor Diwali Celebrations Cathedral Square 

Mayor and Mayoress Firework Fiesta Peterborough 
Arena 

Mayor Meeting with the Marriott Hotel regarding ball 
planning 

Marriott Hotel 

Mayor Peterborough and District Family Mediation 
Service AGM 

City College 
Peterborough 

Mayor Department visit to Enterprise  Enterprise 

Mayor Visit by School Council at Ravensthorpe Junior 
School 

The Parlour and 
Council Chamber 

Mayor and Mayoress Presentation of the Marshall Trophy to  
115 (Peterborough) Sqn 

Squadron 
Headquarters 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Mayor’s Charities Coffee Morning Reception Room 

Mayor and Deputy Mayor Charity Committee Forli Room 

Mayor Run through for Remembrance Sunday The Cathedral 

Mayor The Peterborough School GCSE Awards 
Ceremony 

The Peterborough 
School 

Mayor 25th Anniversary of Orton Wistow Primary School Orton Wistow 
Primary School 

Mayor Charity Awareness event Serpentine Green 
shopping centre 

Mayor VIP Re-opening of The Whittle Public House The Whittle 

Mayor and Mayoress Ashura Candle Light Peace Vigil Cathedral Square 

Mayor and Mayoress A Festival of Remembrance Peterborough 
Cathedral 

Mayor, Mayoress, Deputy 
Mayor and Deputy 
Mayoress 

Remembrance Sunday  
 
Curry lunch 

Peterborough 
Cathedral &  
TA Centre 

Mayor, Mayoress, Deputy 
Mayor and Deputy 

Armistice Day - 2 minutes silence War Memorial & 
Town Hall; 

25



Attending Event Venue 

Mayoress 

Deputy Mayor Peterborough Art Society Annual Art Exhibition – 
Preview Evening 

St Johns Church 

Mayor and Mayoress Station Commander, Royal Air Force Wittering 
Dinner Party 

Kestrel House 

Mayor and Mayoress Putting the star on top of the Christmas Tree Cathedral Square 

Mayor DIAL Peterborough AGM Eagle Wood 
Neurological Care 
Centre 

Mayor Department visit to Adult Social Care with Chief 
Executive 

Adult Social Care 

Mayor and Mayoress The Rotary Club of Peterborough 82nd 
Charternight 

Holiday Inn 
Peterborough 

Deputy Mayor Mayor of Stamford's Charity Quiz Night Stamford Town 
Hall 

Mayor  New Specsavers Store Opening Unit 12b, 
Serpentine Green 
Shopping Centre 

Mayor 1940s Themed Table Top Fair Welbourne School 

Deputy Mayor Induction of new minister Park Road Baptist 
Church 

Mayor and Mayoress Christmas Lights Switch on Guild Hall 

Deputy Mayor Peterborough Choral Society Concert St John's Church 

Mayor and Mayoress Opening of Prisons Week Exhibition Peterborough 
Cathedral 

Mayor and Mayoress The Rudolph Fund Christmas Party PUFC Executive 
Suite 

Mayor Department visit to Serco  Manor Drive 

Mayor Meeting with the Poet Laureate The Parlour 

Mayor Citizenship Ceremony Council Chamber 

Mayor and Mayoress Busy Bees 30th Birthday Celebrations Busy Bees Day 
Nursery 

Mayor Park House School Coffee morning Park House 
School 

Mayor The Dedication Service to Jimmy The Donkey Peterborough 
Central Park 

Mayor and Mayoress Visit to Army Cadets TA Centre 

Mayor Funeral - past Deputy Mayor’s Consort St John's Church 

Mayor Take Over Day at Peterborough Museum Peterborough 
Museum 

Mayor City Market Christmas Lights Switch On The City Market 

Mayor and Mayoress The Peterborough Gang Show 2013 The Key Theatre 

Deputy Mayor Annual Peterborough Telegraph Business 
Awards, Ceremony and Dinner 

The East of 
England 
Showground 

Mayor and Mayoress Street Pastors 5th Anniversary Celebration St Mary's Church 

Mayor Telephone interview Heart FM  

Mayor Meeting with Governance Director The Parlour 

Mayor, Mayoress and 
Deputy Mayor 

The Voyager Academy students - The Taming of 
the Shrew 

The Voyager 
Academy Theatre 

Mayor Attend the Crown Court at Peterborough Rivergate 

Mayor Jark Home Care Open Day 54 Broadway 

26



Attending Event Venue 

Mayor Meet with winner of the Special Award from the 
annual PiXL Club Awards Ceremony 

The Parlour 

Mayor and Mayoress D of E Presentation Evening Reception Room 

Deputy Mayor Thanksgiving Service and Pie Social The Alconbury 
Chapel 

Mayor and Mayoress Human Dog Race Night for the Mayor’s Charities Greyhound 
Stadium 

Mayor Meeting Students and Tour of Ormiston Bushfield 
Academy 

Ormiston 
Bushfield 
Academy 

Mayor Celebration of Students' Work City College 
Peterborough 

Mayor and Mayoress Vivacity Arts - Private View of "Landed" by Sue 
Shields 

Peterborough City 
Gallery 

Mayor and Mayoress Netherton Friendship Club Christmas Sale St Andrew's URC 
Church 

Mayor and Mayoress Fundraising day event The Fleet 

Mayor and Mayoress POSH Match  

Mayor and Mayoress Mayor’s Charity Event - Vintage Fashion Show Reception Room 

Mayor and Mayoress Peterborough Lions Fund Raising meal Maharanis 
Restaurant 

 

 

 

3. BACK GROUND DOCUMENTS (IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ACCESS  
TO INFORMATION ACT 1985) 

 
 None. 
 
4. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBLE  
 
 Director of Governance, Kim Sawyer. 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 
 
AGENDA ITEM No. 12 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

EXECUTIVE REPORT – FOR INFORMATION 
RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
1. DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING ON 4 NOVEMBER 2013 

 
STATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERSHIP 
 
Cabinet received a report following a referral from the Executive Director Strategic 
Resources seeking its approval to enter into a partnership arrangement with CityFibre 
Holdings, referred to in the report as CFH, to enable Peterborough to meet its aspiration to 
provide wider access to digital services. 
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

 
1. Approve a strategic partnering agreement with CityFibre Holdings in order to endorse 

CityFibre Holdings strategy for fibre infrastructure projects in the City of Peterborough 
funded through private sector investment by CityFibre Holdings. 

 
2. Authorise the Executive Director of Strategic Resources in consultation with the Cabinet 

Member for Resources to deliver future work streams for connectivity to the fibre 
network. 

 

3. Agree to a Change Control Notice for the Council’s existing ICT Managed Service 
Contract with Serco to enable: 

 

• The provision of connectivity to the Council of a dark fibre network 

• Serco to enter into a contract with CityFibre Holdings for the provision by CityFibre 
(at CityFibre’s own cost) of a dark fibre network with connectivity 

• Serco to implement a new model of provision of the Council’s current network 
infrastructure to a dark fibre model 

 
4. Authorise the Executive Director of Strategic Resources to agree changes to the ICT 

Managed Service contract with Serco resulting from provision of the dark fibre network. 

 
DECISIONS FROM CABINET MEETING ON 18 NOVEMBER 2013 

  
 EARLY YEARS SERVICES INCLUDING CHILDREN’S CENTRES 
 

Cabinet received a report seeking its approval to go out to public consultation on a set of 
proposals on how early years services are provided in the future including children’s 
centres. It followed a review of the early years services provided by Peterborough City 
Council and other organisations following changes to Central Government policy on how it 
funded services and supported families with children aged from birth to five-years-old.  
 
Cabinet considered the report and RESOLVED to: 

  

1. Approve the proposals to begin consultation on the proposed changes to early years 
services including the consultation document ‘New Vision for Early Years Services 
Including Children’s Centres’; and 

29



2. Agree to receive a further report on the outcome of the consultation prior to making 
any decision on the delivery of the early years service including children’s centres.  

 
 
2. CALL-IN BY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OR COMMISSION 
 

 Since the previous report to Council, the call-in mechanism has not been invoked.   
 
 
3. SPECIAL URGENCY AND WAIVE OF CALL-IN PROVISIONS 
 

 Scrutiny Procedure Rule 14 and Executive Procedure Rule 7 require any instances where 
the Council’s special urgency provisions have been invoked, and/or the call-in mechanism 
was not applied, to be reported to the next available meeting of the Council, together with 
reasons for urgency.   

 
 Since the previous report to Council the urgency provisions have been invoked once in 

relation to the decision, Termination of Development Agreement and Compulsory Purchase 
Order Agreement in Respect of North Westgate - OCT13/CMDN/084.  The decision invoked 
special urgency provisions due to the pending sale of Queensgate and was related to the 
Development Agreement which was an encumbrance on the sale of the property. If not 
resolved immediately it was considered that the pending sale would be jeopardised and that 
this would have had a detrimental impact on the redevelopment of the city centre and to the 
inhabitants of Peterborough directly. 

 
 
4. CABINET MEMBER DECISIONS  
 

CABINET 
MEMBER AND 
DATE OF 
DECISION 
 

REFERENCE 
 

DECISION TAKEN  

Councillor 
Cereste 
 
1 October 2013 

OCT13/CMDN/080 A1139 Fletton Parkway Junction 17 A1(M) - Junction 
2 Widening Scheme - Appointment of Site 
Supervision and Contract Administrator 
 
The Cabinet Member approved the award of a contract 
to URS Infrastructure & Environment Limited relating to 
the duties of site supervision and contract administrator 
for the A1139 Fletton Parkway Junction 17 A1(M) to 
Junction 2 Widening Scheme for the sum of £584,230. 
 

Councillor 
Holdich 
 
2 October 2013 
 

OCT13/CMDN/081 Appointment of Authority Governor - Matley Primary 
School 
 
The Cabinet Member appointed Mrs Elaine Kiernan as 
authority governor nominated by the school. 
 

Councillor 
Holdich 
 
2 October 2013 
 

OCT13/CMDN/082 Appointment of Authority Governor - Winyates 
Primary School 
 
The Cabinet Member appointed Ms Tina Whitehead as 
authority governor nominated by the Local Authority. 
 

Councillor 
Seaton 

OCT13/CMDN/083 Delivery of the Council's Capital Receipts 
Programme through the sale of a surplus office 

30



 
7 October 2013 
 

building at 11 Commerce Road, Lynch Wood, 
Peterborough 
 
The Cabinet Member in consultation with the Executive 
Director of Strategic Resources and the Leader of the 
Council authorised the sale of a surplus office building 
known as 11 Commerce Road, Axon Business Park, 
Lynch Wood, Peterborough. 
 

Councillor 
Cereste 
 
14 October 
2013 
 

OCT13/CMDN/084 Termination of Development Agreement and 
Compulsory Purchase Order Agreement in Respect 
of North Westgate 
 
The Cabinet Member agreed to:  
1. Terminate the Development Agreement relating to 

the North Westgate Development; and 
2. Terminate the Compulsory Purchase Order 

Indemnity Agreement relating to the North Westgate 
Development. 

 

Councillor 
Holdich 
 
16 October 
2013 
 

OCT13/CMDN/085 Award of Contract for the extension and remodelling 
of existing buildings to accommodate the expansion 
of Orton Wistow Primary School 

 
The Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 
University, in consultation with Cllr Seaton, Cabinet 
Member for Resources and the Executive Director - 
Children’s Services ; Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources and Head of Legal Services: 
1. Authorised the construction of an extension and 

remodelling of existing buildings to accommodate the 
expansion of Orton Wistow Primary School which 
shall also include funding for Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT), all site surveys 
and project management and technical advisers 
fees, subject to the school governors obtaining 
consent pursuant to s77 of the School Standards 
and Framework Act 1988; and 

2. Authorised the Executive Director of Children’s 
Services to award the construction contract within 
the approved budget to the contractor representing 
the best value for money following a tender process. 

 

Councillor 
Holdich 
 
17 October 
2013 

OCT13/CMDN/086 Award of Contract for the extension and remodelling 
of existing buildings to accommodate the expansion 
of Woodston Primary School 
 
The Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and 
University, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Resources and the Executive Director - Children’s 
Services; Executive Director – Strategic Resources and 
the Head of Legal Services: 
1. Authorised the construction of an extension and 

remodelling of existing buildings to accommodate 
the expansion of Woodston Primary School up to 
the value of the budget sum of£2.5m. This sum 
shall also include funding for Information and 

31



Communications Technology (ICT), all site surveys 
and project management and technical advisor 
fees, subject to consent pursuant to Section 77 of 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1988; 

2. Authorised the award of the construction contract to 
Kier Construction under the terms and conditions of 
the London Housing Corporation Schools and 
Community Buildings Framework; and 

3. Authorised an Early Works Agreement to be 
entered into with Kier Construction should it be 
demonstrated that there will be benefits to the 
programme. 

 

Councillor 
Seaton 
 
24 October 
2013 

OCT13/CMDN/087 Technical Financial Advisory Services for the 
Energy Services Company (ESCO) "Blue Sky 
Peterborough" and Related Projects 
 
The Cabinet Member: 
1. Approved the award of a contract to Deloitte LLP 

relating to the delivery of Technical Financial 
Advisory Services for Peterborough City Council 
and the Energy Services Company (ESCo), ‘Blue 
Sky Peterborough’ on a ‘call-off’ basis. The 
duration of the contract will be for an initial two year 
period with extension provision for a further two 
year period; and 

2. Authorised the Executive Director of Strategic 
Resources to award any call-off assignments 
against the contract as and when required. 

 

Councillor 
Cereste 
 
31 October 
2013 

OCT13/CMDN/088 Bourges Boulevard Improvement Scheme: Bright 
Street to Crescent Bridge 
 
The Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic Planning, 
Housing, Economic Development and Business 
Engagement, in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Resources and Executive Director Strategic 
Resources: 
1. Approved the re-profile of funds allocated in the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy; and 
2. Authorised the Executive Director of Operations to 

award a contract relating to works to be carried out 
as part of the Bourges Boulevard Improvement 
Scheme under the Midlands Highway Alliance 
Medium Scheme Framework, subject to the works 
not exceeding £4m. 

 

Councillor 
Fitzgerald 
 
7 November 
2013 
 

NOV13/CMDN/091 Commissioning a Dementia Resource Centre 
 
The Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care approved the 
award of a 3 year contract to run a Dementia Resource 
Centre to the Alzheimer’s Society at a total cost of 
£1,005,000 with the option to extend for a further 2 
years. 
 

Councillor 
Holdich 

NOV13/CMDN/092 Appointment of Authority Governor - St John's 
Primary School, Orton 

32



 
7 November 
2013 
 

 
The Cabinet Member appointed Mr Jonathan Dennis as 
authority governor nominated by the governing body. 

Councillor 
Holdich 
 
12 November 
2013 

NOV13/CMDN/093 The Expansion of Fulbridge Academy to four forms 
of entry 
 
The Cabinet Member, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Resources and the Executive Director - 
Children’s Services ; Executive Director – Strategic 
Resources and the Head of Legal Services authorised: 
1. The construction of a new school building on a 

separate Council owned site (currently leased to 
Belvedere Bowls Club) and the refurbishment and 
remodelling of existing school buildings to 
accommodate the expansion of Fulbridge Academy 
up to the value of the budget sum of £3.5m. This 
sum shall also include funding for Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT), all site surveys, 
project management and technical advisers fees, 
costs associated with the access rights across 
adjacent land owned by Accent Nene and the 
relocation of Belvedere Bowls Club; and  

2. The Executive Director of Children Services to vary 
the design and build lump sum option contract with 
Carillion Construction Ltd to include the 
construction of a new school building and the 
refurbishment and remodelling of existing buildings 
to accommodate the expansion of Fulbridge 
Academy.  

 

 
 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
COUNCIL 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 13 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
 

EXECUTIVE REPORT – RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
(a) PETERBOROUGH CITY CENTRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT 
 

Cabinet at its meeting of 4 November 2013 received a report following approval of the 
Consultation Draft version of the City Centre DPD (from now on referred to as the City 
Centre Plan) on 10 December 2012, and following public consultation and further 
evidence gathering since that date.  

  

 
IT IS RECOMMENDED that Council approves the Peterborough City Centre DPD 
(Proposed Submission Version) for the purposes of public consultation and submission 
to the Secretary of State, subject to the following amendments: 
 
i) References to ‘disability forums’ to be amended to ‘disability forums and other 

disability organisations’; 
ii) Page 72 of the Development Plan Document, implementation detail for Policy CC1 

to include ‘and accessibility issues for disabled’; and 
iii) Ensure the provision of drop off and pick up areas for coaches and buses by 

including the following wording at 6.1.20 of the DPD: 
 “The council will encourage provision of coach parking facilities to attract visitors to 

the city centre. Within the Opportunities Areas where there is a mix of uses 
including leisure (D2) the developer will be required to provide coach or bus 
parking spaces as set out in Appendix A (PP13) of the Planning Policies  DPD.  
Individual parking requirements will be assessed for each application based on the 
mix of uses proposed.” 

 

 
The original Cabinet report and updated Development Plan Document follow this 
report. 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
CABINET 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 4 

4 NOVEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Cllr Marco Cereste - Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Growth, Strategic Planning, Housing, Economic 
Development and Business Engagement 

Contact Officer(s): Simon Machen – Head of Planning, Transport and 
Engineering  

Gemma Wildman – Principal Planner  

Tel. 453475  

 

Tel. 863824 

 
PETERBOROUGH CITY CENTRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT (DPD) 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Paul Phillipson – Director of Operations  Deadline date : 4 December 2013 

 

 
That Cabinet recommends the Peterborough City Centre DPD (Proposed Submission Version) to 
Council for approval for the purposes of public consultation and submission to the Secretary of 
State. 

 

 
 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 
 

1.1 This report is submitted to Cabinet following approval of the Consultation Draft version of 
the City Centre DPD (from now on referred to as the City Centre Plan) on 10 December 
2012, and following public consultation and further evidence gathering since that date.  

 
 
2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

2.1 The purpose of this report is to enable Cabinet to consider and recommend to Council the 
Peterborough City Centre Plan. If it is approved by Council, it will be published for public 
consultation and then submitted to the Secretary of State. 

 
2.2 The recommended City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission version) is available at 

Appendix 1 along with the accompanying Policies Map and Summary Map and copies 
have been placed in each of the Members Group Rooms. 
 

2.3 This report is for Cabinet to consider under its Terms of Reference No. 3.2.1, to take 
responsibility of the delivery of all strategic Executive functions within the Council’s Major 
Policy and Budget Framework and lead the Council’s overall improvement programmes to 
deliver excellent services. 

 
 
3. TIMESCALE  

 

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

YES If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting 

This meeting  

Date for relevant Council  
meeting 
 

4 December  Date for submission to 
Government Dept 
 

DCLG 
(Approximately 
April 2014) 

 

37



 
4. CITY CENTRE PLAN 
 

4.1 The overall strategy for the development of Peterborough to 2026 has been established by 
 the Peterborough Core Strategy, which was adopted by the Council in February 2011. This 
 established broad growth and development principles, including for the city centre. The City 
 Centre Plan sets out more detailed policies, in conformity with the requirements of the 
 Core Strategy. 
 
4.2 Peterborough will undergo significant growth over the next 10 to 15 years, including the city 
 centre which is set for widespread improvements, growth and regeneration. This will see 
 the city centre ‘offer’ expanded, its population base increased, and a general greater range 
 of facilities.  
 
4.3 To ensure that this planned growth in the city centre takes place in a way which meets the 
 needs of the city’s growing population now and in the future, there is a need for an overall 
 plan, vision and strategy to guide new development and help create a diverse, lively and 
 successful place.  
 
4.4 The Plan sets out the council’s long-term vision and objectives for the city centre; it sets out 

the policies and proposals that will help direct how new development and regeneration will 
be achieved and how the council’s vision for the city centre will be met. The Plan identifies 
and addresses a number of key themes which affect the strategy for the city centre as a 
whole, such as: 

 

• Sustainable Development; 

• Retail; 

• Leisure; 

• Office development and employment; 

• Housing; 

• Historic environment; and 

• Transport and other infrastructure . 
 

4.5 Within the Plan, the city centre is divided into eight distinct segments or “Policy Areas”; 
 each one with its own policy setting out the vision, potential developments and planning 
 requirements for the area.  It identifies land that might be available for new development 
 and, in some cases, “Opportunity Areas” where there is real scope for transformation of the 
 area through some form of comprehensive redevelopment. The eight Policy Areas are 
 shown on the Summary Map, together with a summary of the main emerging proposals for 
 each Policy Area. 
 
5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 Extensive public consultation has already taken place on the emerging Plan, including the 
consultation draft version in February/March 2013. All comments received have been 
carefully logged, considered and subsequently influenced the final version of this 
document. A summary of all comments received and the Council’s recommended response 
can be viewed at: http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/pdf/env-plan-cc-
Summary%20of%20comments%20&%20responses.pdf 

  
5.2 The main changes to the Plan since the consultation draft stage are: 

 

• The Transport policy (CC11) has been updated to include reference to the Council’s 
policy for car parking standards within new residential development; 

• The Northminster area of the city centre has been identified as an Opportunity Area 
and policy CC3 now includes specific requirements for the regeneration of this area; 

• The Culture, Leisure and Tourism section has been updated and includes a 
summary of potential projects for the city centre; 

• A new section has been included about Drainage and Flood Risk as there are 
issues that need to be addressed throughout the city centre; and 

38



• All housing numbers have been updated (at 31 March 2013) to take account of 
latest completions and planning permissions.  

 
5.3 Other minor changes have also been made to the document. Whilst, obviously, we have 

not been able to meet everyone’s requests, we have attempted to prepare the document 
on a collaborative basis, whilst at the same time ensuring it conforms to the overall guiding 
principles of the Core Strategy and National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

 
5.4 The City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission) was presented to Sustainable Growth and 

Environment Capital Scrutiny on 15 October 2013 and Planning and Environmental 
Protection Committee on 22 October. Both committees endorsed the City Centre Plan.  At 
the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny committee it was recommended 
that two changes should be made to the plan. 

 
(1) The reference to the Greenback Yard as a ‘Community Allotment’ should be 

changed to the wording ‘Community Asset’. 
(2) The reference to the Council consulting with ‘DIAL’ regarding accessibility should be 

changed to consult with the ‘Disability Forums’. 
 
Future consultation 

5.5 If approved by Full Council, the City Centre Plan will be published for six weeks public 
consultation in early 2014. This will provide an opportunity for the public to lodge formal 
representations on the ‘soundness’ of the plan. The City Centre Plan and any 
representations made will be submitted to the Secretary of State, who will arrange for a 
public examination by an independent inspector from the Planning Inspectorate. The 
inspector will produce a report setting out their recommendations. The Council can then 
make any necessary changes to the plan and adopt it in late 2014 or early 2015.  

 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 

6.1 It is anticipated that Cabinet will recommend the City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission 
version) for approval by Council.  

 
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

7.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission version) 
for public consultation and submission. This is because it will help deliver the city’s growth 
targets set out in the Core Strategy, it will help to encourage and coordinate further 
investment in the city centre and the regeneration of a number of large brownfield sites in 
the City Centre such as the former hospital site, the railway station and North Westgate. 

 
8. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

8.1 The Council is required to produce a City Centre Plan in accordance with its approved 
 Local Development Scheme (LDS) (April 2012) and Core Strategy. The option of not 
producing a City Centre Plan would mean that the Council would not be working in 
accordance with its LDS and would not be in a position to deliver the growth and 
regeneration for the city centre. Therefore the alternative option of not producing the City 
Centre Plan was rejected.  

 
9. IMPLICATIONS 
 

 The City Centre Plan will have implications for all sectors of the community and visitors to 
the city.  

  
9.2 Legal Implications - The Council must follow due Regulations in preparing the City Centre 

Plan. Eventually, once the final document is adopted in 2014/15, the Council has a legal 
duty to determine planning applications in accordance with the plan. 

 

39



9.3 Financial Implications - There are no immediate significant financial implications flowing 
from the approval of the City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission Version) other than costs 
associated with consulting on it and carrying out the public examination, which can both be 
covered by existing budgets. However, Members should be aware of two future financial 
implications: 

 
(a) The Council owns land within the city centre and there could be financial implications 

on the value of that land. To be clear, all Council owned land has been assessed and 
treated like all other proposed areas for development.   

(b) There could be indirect financial implications arising from the development of sites (e.g. 
provision of infrastructure and services for the new residents, s106 arrangements, and 
increased council tax or other receipts).   

 
 
10.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

  

• Peterborough Core Strategy (February 2011) 

• Local Development Scheme (April 2012) 

 

40



Peterborough Local Development Framework

Peterborough City Centre 
Development Plan Document

Proposed Submission 

(Full Council 4 December 2013) 

Peterborough City Council 
Stuart House East Wing
St John's Street
Peterborough 
PE1 5DD 

Telephone: (01733) 863872 

www.peterborough.gov.uk

41



42



Peterborough City Centre Plan

This is the proposed submission version of the Peterborough City Centre Development Plan Document

(DPD), which is also referred to as the City Centre Plan. The document represents the council’s final

version after taking into account the views from previous public consultations and considering a range

of alternative options.

This DPD has been published to enable anyone to make comments (“representations”) before it is

submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government. Any representations

made will be taken into account by an independent planning inspector appointed by the Secretary of

State to conduct a public examination into the DPD. This is your final opportunity to influence any

changes to the document.

How to Respond

We welcome formal representations on the City Centre Plan Proposed Submission version. If you

would like to submit representations you can view the document at:

www.peterborough.gov.uk/citycentreplan where comments can be made online or you can download

a representation form at: www.peterborough.gov.uk/citycentreplan

Alternatively, paper copies of the document and representation forms are available in all local libraries

and the council offices at Bayard Place.

You can send written comments to:

Strategic Planning, Housing and Environment

Peterborough City Council

Stuart House (East Wing)

St John's Street

Peterborough

PE1 5DD

Or email planningpolicy@peterborough.gov.uk

You must submit your representations within the six week consultation period, which ends at 5:00pm

on ? February/March 2014.Only those who have submitted their representations within the statutory

consultation period will have the right to have their representation considered by the planning inspector.

Any representation made at this stage must relate to the legal compliance and/or soundness of the

document and how it meets (or not) the tests of soundness. In order for the City Centre Plan to be

found sound it must be justified, effective, consistent with national policy and have been positively

prepared.

Before making any representations please read our proposed submission soundness guidance note

at www.peterborough.gov.uk/citycentreplan. This is also available in local libraries. The guidance

note sets out clearly how to fill in the representation form and how to make comments.

For further information about the City Centre Plan, including the earlier consultation version and

evidence document please go to www.peterborough.gov.uk/citycentreplan.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Preface

143



OS Map - Copyright Note

The maps within this document are reproduced from Ordnance Survey Material with the permission

of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (c) Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright andmay lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Preface

2 44



51 Introduction

51.1 Introduction

72 Summary Maps

93 City Centre Vision and Objectives

93.1 Our Vision for the Future of Peterborough City Centre

134 City Centre Strategy

134.1 City Centre Strategy

144.2 Sustainable Development

164.3 Retail

184.4 Economy and Employment

194.5 Housing

214.6 Leisure, Culture and Tourism

234.7 Townscape and Heritage

254.8 Green Spaces and the River Nene

274.9 Drainage and Flood Risk

295 Policy Areas

295.1 Policy Areas

305.2 City Core Policy Area

345.3 Railway Station Policy Area

375.4 Rivergate Policy Area

395.5 Riverside South Policy Area

425.6 Riverside North Policy Area

445.7 Fengate South Policy Area

465.8 Boongate Policy Area

485.9 City North Policy Area

516 Transport

516.1 Transport

557 Infrastructure

557.1 Infrastructure

578 Implementation and Monitoring

578.1 Implementation and Monitoring

Appendices

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Contents

45



Appendix A: Local Plan Policies to be Replaced 65

67Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

71Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy Requirements

75Appendix D: Glossary

77Appendix E: Submission Policies Map

List of Policies

14Policy CC1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

17Policy CC2 Retail

32Policy CC3 City Core Policy Area

36Policy CC4 Railway Station Policy Area

38Policy CC5 Rivergate Policy Area

40Policy CC6 Riverside South Policy Area

43Policy CC7 Riverside North Policy Area

45Policy CC8 Fengate South Policy Area

47Policy CC9 Boongate Policy Area

49Policy CC10 City North Policy Area

52Policy CC11 Transport

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Contents

46



1.1 Introduction

1.1.1 Peterborough city centre is set for widespread improvements, growth and regeneration. The

Peterborough City Centre Development Plan Document (DPD), also referred to as the City

Centre Plan, sets out the council’s long-term vision and objectives for the city centre; it sets

out the policies and proposals that will help direct how new development and regeneration

will be achieved and how the council’s vision for the city centre will be met.

1.1.2 This document forms part of the council’s statutory development plan and sits alongside the

adopted Peterborough Core Strategy (2011) and other adopted development plan documents.

It will be used to promote and coordinate investment, and to help reach decisions on planning

applications within the city centre.

What area is the “City Centre”?

1.1.3 The area forming the city centre and covered by this plan is shown on Map A. The city centre

extends from the former District Hospital site in the west to Fengate in the east. It includes the

residential areas in the vicinity of Lincoln Road and Bright Street in the north and the

Peterborough United football ground in the south, as well as the principal shopping, office and

entertainment areas and Cathedral Precincts in the very centre.

The City Centre Plan

1.1.4 The Plan starts by identifying issues and then presents the overall vision and objectives for

the city centre. Chapter 4 then sets out an overall city centre strategy, with a focus on a number

of issues such as shopping, housing, employment and the historic environment, which apply

across the city centre.

1.1.5 The city centre area is then divided into eight “Policy Areas”; each one has its own policy

setting out the vision, potential development opportunities and planning requirements for the

area. They identify land available for new development and, in some cases, “Opportunity

Areas” where there is real scope for transformation of the area through some form of

comprehensive redevelopment. The eight Policy Areas are shown on Map B.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Introduction 1

547



City Centre Issues

1.1.6 Peterborough city centre is a successful, lively and diverse place with many positive attributes.

It is a major focus in the region for shopping, leisure and employment opportunities, attracting

visitors from an extensive catchment area. Peterborough has a strong historic environment

and cultural heritage and at the heart of the city centre lie the cathedral, many other important

listed buildings and heritage assets.

1.1.7 To ensure the continued success of the city centre, the following issues are addressed through

this Plan.

City Centre Issues

Issue 1: Low levels of housing - Currently the city centre has relatively few houses and flats,

resulting in a low city centre population, which results in an area that is not well used once the

shops and offices have closed.

Issue 2: Cultural offer - The cultural offer is not fully developed and there is a significant

opportunity to attract visitors into the city centre, particularly in the evening.

Issue 3: Declining retail ranking - Although the city centre has a wide-ranging retail offer, until

very recently there had been relatively little investment in new retail development for many years.

As a result, Peterborough’s retail ranking has declined in the face of competition from other retail

centres, other cities and internet shopping.

Issue 4: Lack of high quality office development - There has been little new office development

in the city centre for many years. The city centre has not been able to successfully compete for

investment with business parks located on the edge of the city.

Issue 5: Limited evening economy - The evening economy has improved in the last few years

with new restaurants, particularly around Cathedral Square and linked to the wider public realm

improvements. However, this is still a limited offer when compared to other towns and cities of

a similar size.

Issue 6: River Nene - The River Nene is one of the city’s most important assets but it currently

fails to maximise its potential for leisure and is poorly connected to other parts of the city centre.

Issue 7: Access and movement - The transport network in and around the city centre currently

prioritises accessibility by car at the expense of pedestrians and cyclists. For example, Bourges

Boulevard acts as a barrier to easy and attractive movement for pedestrians seeking to make

their way between key locations.

Issue 8: Drainage networks - Capacity in some sections of the city centre's network is currently

limited due to the use of combined (foul and surface water) sewers. There is a need to improve

this situation and ensure long term resilience of the city centre against heavy rainfall and flood

events.

1.1.8 This Plan aims to address these issues by promoting land uses that support businesses and

shops, whilst creating new residential neighbourhoods that benefit from a diverse mix of uses,

cultural activity and amenities that are available throughout the day and evening. Ensuring

people are living within, and using the city centre at all times of the day will enhance the safety

of city centre users and provide an attractive and vibrant location.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Introduction1

6 48



M
a
p
A
:
C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
P
la
n
A
re
a

LONDON ROAD

R
IV

E
R

G
A

T
E

R
IV

E
R

G
A

T
E

B
O

U
R

G
E

S
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

B
O

U
R

G
ES B

O
U

LEV
A

R
D

BO
U

RG
ES B

O
U

LEVA
RD

A
L
B

E
R

T
 P

L
A

C
E

VIERSEN PLATZ

WENTWORTH STREET

TRINITY STREET

P
R

IE
S

T
G

A
T

E

P
R

IE
S

T
G

A
T

E

C
O

W
G

A
T

E

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

T
H

E
D

R
A

L
S

Q
U

A
R

E
 

KING STREET

QUEEN STREET

LONG CAUSEWAY

M
IN

S
T

E
R

 P
R

E
C

IN
C

T
S

N
E
W

 R
O

A
D

B
R

O
O

K
 S

T
R

E
E
T

BROADW
AY

BROADW
AY

BROADW
AY

BROADWAY

PARK R
OAD

PARK R
OAD

C
H

U
R

C
H

 W
A

L
K

M
A

N
O

R
 H

O
U

S
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
H

U
R

C
H

 W
A

L
K

F
IT

Z
W

IL
L

IA
M

 S
T

F
IT

Z
W

IL
L

IA
M

 S
T

C
R

A
IG

 S
T

R
E

E
T

CROMWELL ROAD

CROMWELL ROAD

GLADSTONE STREET

BOURGES BOULEVARD

PETERHOUSE C
LOSE

EDW
ALTON A

VENUE

GREEN

ALMONERS LANE

NICHOLLS AVENUE

PRIORY ROAD

GRANGE ROAD

F
IN

C
H

L
E

Y

F
U

L
H

A
M

 R
O

A
D

H
A

D
D

O
N

 R
O

A
D

W
IL

L
IA

M
S

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

ALDERMAND’S D
RIV

E

MID
LAND R

OAD

THORPELEA ROAD

T
H

O
R

P
E

L
E

A
 R

O
A

D

V
E

R
M

O
N

T
 G

R
O

V
E

F
L

A
M

B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

L
O

S
E

W
A

R
E

L
E

Y
 R

O
A

D
B

A
L

D
W

IN
 D

R
IV

E

G
E

D
D

IN
G

T
O

N
 R

O
A

D

GEDDIN
GTON R

OAD

H
A

N
S

E
L

 C
L

O
S

E

C
A

N
D

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

D
EA

R

ROAD

VALLEY

W
YE V

ALLEY R
OAD

SU
GAR W

AY

IR
IS

 D
R

IV
E

R
O

B
IN

S
 C

L
O

S
E

T
O

W
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
L

O
S

E

A
6
0
5

A
6
0
5

A
6

0
5

WHARF ROAD

JUBILEE STREET

GEORGE STREET

A605

CUBIT STREET

G
L

E
B

E
 R

O
A

D

STAGSHAW DRIVE

H
A

D
R

IA
N

S
 C

O
U

R
T

A1139

GROVE STREET

BREW
STER A

VEN
U

E

EA
R

L S
P
EN

C
ER

W
IN

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 

F
A

IR
M

E
A

D
 W

A
Y

R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
 W

A
Y

KIRKWOOD CLOSE

THE DRIVE

THE DRIVE

SOUTH PARADE

C
L

IF
T

O
N

 A
V

E
N

U
E

W
E

S
T

 P
A

R
A

D
E

V
IN

T
E

R
S

 C
L

O
S

E

P
E

R
C

IV
A

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

T
H

O
R

P
E

 R
O

A
D

H
O

L
D

IC
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

M
A

Y
O

R
 W

A
L

K
M

A
Y

O
R

 W
A

L
K

M
O

O
R

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

GLADSTONE STREET

B
R

IG
H

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

DEACON STREET

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

BEECH AVE

R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

C
O

B
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

D
Y

S
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

LIN
COLN R

OAD

N
ORTH

 S
TREET

LINCOLN ROAD

G
E

N
E

V
A

 S
T

R
E

E
T

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

 

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

 

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

 

F
O

O
T

B
R

ID
G

E

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

C
R

E
S

E
N

T
 B

R
ID

G
E

RIV
ER L

ANE

R
IV

E
R

 L
A

N
E

L
E

A
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

L
E

A
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

T
H

O
R

P
E

 R
O

A
D

STATIO
N

 R
D

PARK R
OAD

C
H

A
P

E
L
 S

T
R

E
E
T

C
IT

Y
 R

O
A

D

M
ID

G
A

T
E

CATTLE M
ARKET   

   
   

   
   

ROAD

CROSS S
TREET

PRIESTGATE

BRIDGE ST

BRIDGE ST

ST PETERS ROAD

V
IE

R
S

E
N

 P
L

A
T

Z

B
IS

H
O

P
’S

  
  

  
R

O
A

D

B
IS

H
O

P
’S

 R
O

A
D

B
IS

H
O

P
’S

 R
O

A
D

STAR ROAD

STAR ROAD

SAXON ROAD

CHARLES STREETP
A

D
H

O
L

M
 R

O
A

D

W
H

A
L

L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
A

D
H

O
L

M
 R

O
A

D

WHIT
SED STREET

EASTFIELD ROAD

B
O

O
N

G
A

T
E

FRA
N

K
 P

ERK
IN

S P
A

RK
W

A
Y

B
O

O
N

G
A

T
E

SAXON R
OAD

PARK LANE

B
U

R
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

A
R

 M
E

W
S

G
L

E
N

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
T

K
IN

S
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

E
A

S
T

G
A

T
E

H
E

R
E

W
A

R
D

  
R

O
A

D

N
E

N
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

WAKE ROAD

NURSERY LANE

FIRST DROVE

H
A

R
V

E
S

T
E

R
 W

A
Y

SOUTH STREET

VINEYARD ROAD

ST JO
H

N
’S

 S
TREET

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 S

T

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
 S

T

G
R

A
N

B
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

ST JO
HN’S STREET

G
R

A
V

E
L

 W
A

L
K

E
M

B
A

N
K

M
E

N
T

R

O
AD

C
R

A
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

R
O

A
D

WESTMORELANDG
D

N
S

N
O

R
T

H
M

IN
ST

ER

P

P

B
U

S
S

T
A

T
IO

N

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
E

X
C

H
A

N
G

E

S
T
A
T
IO
N

P
A

S
S

P
O

R
T

O
F

F
IC

E

C
IT

Y
 H

E
A

L
T

H
C

L
IN

IC

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

’S
C

H
U

R
C

H

S
T

U
A

R
T

 H
O

U
S

E

M
O

N
K

S
T

O
N

E
H

O
U

S
E

B
A

Y
A

R
D

 P
L

A
C

E

M
A

R
K

E
T

C
IT

Y
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
L

IB
R

A
R

Y

T
O

W
N

 H
A

L
L

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L

i

C
R

O
W

N
 &

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
R

T

P
O

L
IC

E
 S

T
A

T
IO

N

R
IV

E
R

G
A

T
E

N
V

R
 S

T
A

T
IO

N

M
A

G
IS

T
R

A
T

E
S

C
O

U
R

T

M
IL

L

W
O

R
K

S

W
O

R
K

S

F
O

O
T

B
A

L
L

 G
R

O
U

N
D

(P
E

T
E

R
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

U
N

IT
E

D
 F

C
)

W
C

W
C

W
C

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

T
h

e
 E

m
b

a
n

k
m

e
n

t

P
la

y
in

g
 F

ie
ld

C
O

A
C

H
 P

A
R

K

T
H

E
 L

ID
O

S
W

IM
M

IN
G

P
O

O
L

K
E

Y
 T

H
E

A
T

R
E

S
ta

n
le

y
 R

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

G
ro

u
n

d

D
e

a
n

e
ry

T
h

e
 P

a
la

c
e

B
IS

H
O

P
 C

R
E

IG
H

T
O

N
P

R
IM

A
R

Y
 S

C
H

O
O

L

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 P

O
O

L

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

A
R

C
A

D
E

Q
U

E
E

N
S

G
A

T
E

R
C

 C
H

U
R

C
H

B
A

P
T

IS
T

C
H

U
R

C
H

W
E

S
T

G
A

T
E

C
H

U
R

C
H

S
P

IR
IT

U
A

L
IS

T

C
H

U
R

C
H

G
R

E
A

T
 N

O
R

T
H

E
R

N
 

H
O

T
E

L

P
O

S
T

 O
F

F
IC

E

R
IV

E
R

N
E

N
E

R
IV

E
R

N
E

N
E

FOOTBRIDGE

FOOTBRIDGE

T
h

o
rp

e
 M

e
a
d

o
w

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

G
ro

u
n

d

R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d

R
iv

e
rs

id
e

P
a
v
il

io
n

B
is

h
o

p
’s

 G
a
rd

e
n

s

S
T

L
E
O

N
A

R
D

S
S
T

R
E
E
T

P

P

CUMBERGATE

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

O
F

F
IC

E
S

F
O

R
M

E
R

H
O

S
P

IT
A

L

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
C

H
O

O
L

S
C

H
O

O
L

C
E

M
E

T
E

R
Y

C
IT

Y
 R

O
A

D

P
E

T
E

R
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

M
U

S
E

U
M

 &
 A

R
T

 
G

A
L

L
E

R
Y

H
E

R
E

W
A

R
D

 C
R

O
S

S

E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

F
E

N
G

A
T

E

T
R

A
D

IN
G

E
S

T
A

T
E

G
R

E
Y

H
O

U
N

D
S

T
A

D
IU

M

U
N

D
E

R
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

RIVERSIDE
M

E
A

D

S
T

 J
O

H
N

 T
H

E
B

A
P

T
IS

T
 C

H
U

R
C

H

P

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Summary Maps 2

749



M
a
p
B
:
S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
f
P
o
li
c
y
A
re
a
s

P
ic
tu
re
1

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Summary Maps2

8 50



3.1 Our Vision for the Future of Peterborough City Centre

3.1.1 This chapter sets out the overall vision for Peterborough city centre in 2026. It also includes

a number of key objectives which will help in achieving this vision.

Our Vision for the Future of Peterborough City Centre

By 2026 Peterborough city centre will have become an even more attractive, vibrant and

distinctive place to visit, work and live, with a greater range of attractions and facilities.

Peterborough City Centre will have regained its position as a top retail centre and

will be a strong regional destination for shopping, leisure, culture, business and

entertainment throughout the day and evening.

It will be easy to walk and cycle around the city centre with improved connections

to the river and railway station along pleasant, safe streets and paths.

Those buildings and places that we love for their heritage value, for nature

conservation, or simply for their sense of place, will be conserved and enhanced.

The city centre will include a thriving riverside setting with bars, restaurants and

housing, with continuous riverside walks, an improved river environment and an

iconic pedestrian and cycle bridge across the river to the Embankment.

The city centre will be the centrepiece of an exemplary "environment capital". New

development will embrace sustainability principles in key areas such as travel options,

use of technology, the management of surface water and river environments, energy

use and resource efficiency.

The city centre will include new high-quality housing, offering a sought after place

in which to live that meets 21st Century lifestyles.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Vision and Objectives 3

951



Objectives

3.1.2 The following objectives will help to deliver the vision for the city centre. The table shows the

fit with the objectives of the Peterborough Core Strategy, to demonstrate the consistency

between the two documents.

Table 1: Objectives

Link with Core

Strategy

objectives

ObjectiveObjective ref

OB13To strengthen Peterborough city centre as a regional shopping

destination, maintaining and improving its position within the

top 50 retail centres in the UK.

1 - Shopping

OB13, OB21,

OB22, OB23

To enhance the city centre as a hub for culture, tourism and

leisure, complementing other land uses throughout the day

and evening.

2 - Culture,

Leisure and

Tourism

OB10, OB11,

OB12, OB13

To enhance Peterborough as a location for business and skills,

providing the facilities and setting for a range of businesses

from start-ups to multi-nationals, with a particular emphasis

on the environmental sector.

3 - Economic

Prosperity

OB6, OB7,

OB8, OB13,

OB18

To deliver a sustainable mix of complementary uses, which

ensure vibrancy at different times of day, boost the night-time

economy and assist in reducing travel demands. Uses must

include residential (including affordable housing), retail,

businesses, cultural and leisure facilities.

4 - Mixed Uses

OB9, OB13,

OB25, OB26

To secure development with high standards of urban design

and ensure that design issues are fully considered from

inception to completion.

5 - Design

Quality

OB5, OB13,

OB16, OB22,

OB26

To encourage opportunities to facilitate healthy and active

lifestyles, with plentiful opportunities for people to walk, cycle

or play in the open air and participate in indoor sports; and to

create environments where people feel secure and their safety

is not compromised.

6 - Health,

Safety and

Wellbeing

OB2, OB13,

OB19, OB20,

OB24

To contribute to Peterborough’s ambition to create the UK's

“Environment Capital”, with new development striving to be as

environmentally, socially and economically sustainable as

practically possible and addressing or adapting to issues

presented by climate change.

7 -

Environment

Capital,

Sustainability,

and Climate

Change

OB3, OB13,To promote the distinct urban character of the city centre,

including the protection and enhancement of the natural,

archaeological and historic environment.

8 - Local

Distinctiveness
OB20

OB13, OB15,

OB16, OB17

To reduce, where possible, the need to travel (particularly by

private cars), maximising the potential of sustainable transport

modes; to enhance connectivity within the city centre

9 -

Accessibility

and

Connectivity

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Vision and Objectives3

10 52



Link with Core

Strategy

objectives

ObjectiveObjective ref

(particularly to the River Nene and railway station) and to

adjoining areas; and to ensure equality of access for all city

centre users.

OB1, OB13,

OB27, OB28,

OB29

To ensure all proposals are capable of being deliverable,

including provision of appropriate utilities and taking account

of flood risk issues.

10 - Delivery

3.1.3 Of the 29 Core Strategy objectives, 28 are listed above alongside a comparable objective for

this City Centre Plan. The remaining Core Strategy objective not listed is OB14 which relates

to district centres, and is therefore not applicable to the city centre.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Vision and Objectives 3

1153



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Vision and Objectives3

12 54



4.1 City Centre Strategy

4.1.1 The overall strategy for the city centre is to encourage and enable new development that will

maintain and enhance the vitality and viability of the centre, whilst preserving and enhancing

the quality of the local environment. This will undoubtedly involve changes: widening the retail,

leisure, tourism and cultural offer, creating new jobs, making the best use of land that is

currently vacant or underused and improving the experience and convenience for pedestrians

and cyclists.

4.1.2 This chapter addresses the key features of this strategy via a number of topic areas:

Sustainable Development

Retail

Economy and Employment

Housing

Leisure, Culture and Tourism

Townscape and Heritage

Green Spaces and the River Nene

Drainage and Flood Risk

4.1.3 As transport issues are of such critical importance to the future of the city centre, they are

addressed through a separate chapter of the Plan (chapter 6).

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

1355



4.2 Sustainable Development

4.2.1 Peterborough has the ambition to create the UK’s “Environment Capital”. Policy CS10 of the

Peterborough Core Strategy states that development proposals will only be supported where

they make a clear contribution to this aspiration. The City Centre Plan can assist through the

promotion of sustainable growth in the city centre and, particularly as part of the new

development proposed for the Opportunity Areas, by creating cleaner, greener, healthier and

more vibrant places to live, work and visit. Such an approach fits well with the overarching

national policy in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) towards sustainable

development.

Policy CC1

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Development in the city centre should contribute to Peterborough’s ambition to create

the Environment Capital of the UK including, where appropriate, taking steps to address

the following principles of sustainable development:

Achieving a mix of land uses

Adopting best practice in design and construction standards

Protecting and enhancing the existing environment

Promoting sustainable modes of transport and reducing the need to travel

Supporting the creation of jobs

Contributing to healthy lifestyles

When considering development proposals in the city centre, the council will take a positive

approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained

in the National Planning Policy Framework. It will seek to work proactively with developers

and investors to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever

possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, social and environmental

conditions in the area.

Planning applications that accordwith the policies in this Local Plan and other development

plan documents in the Peterborough Local Development Framework (and, where relevant,

with policies in neighbourhood plans) will be approved without delay, unless material

considerations indicate otherwise.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

14 56



4.2.2 The requirements of policy CC1 can also be met by taking into account Core Strategy policy

CS16 (Urban Design and the Public Realm) and Policy PP2 (Design Quality) of the Planning

Policies DPD, which set out the broad principles required to secure the highest design standards

and quality in new development. This will ensure the delivery of attractive, lively, distinctive,

safe, healthy and sustainable communities.

4.2.3 For the city centre, it is expected that urban design principles included in policies CS16 and

PP2 could be supported by further documents such as design briefs or codes that will provide

more detailed design guidance for Opportunity Areas or particular sites.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

1557



4.3 Retail

4.3.1 For many people, the primary role of the city centre is that of a destination for shopping. It

provides the greatest retail offer in the city, serving not only the residents of Peterborough but

also those of surrounding villages and market towns well beyond the local authority boundary.

Peterborough has an extensive range of well known “high street” shops. The Queensgate and

Rivergate Shopping Centres are linked by a network of streets and public spaces, with an

offer that includes a wide variety of cafes, restaurants, bars and financial and property outlets

as well as retail shops and a market.

4.3.2 However, in recent years the city centre has experienced a decline in its overall retail ranking

when compared to other towns and cities. Competition from internet shopping, out-of-town

retail parks and neighbouring cities has reduced some of the trade that might otherwise have

come to the city centre and there is an urgent need to extend and enhance the retail offer.

4.3.3 Until very recently there had been little investment in the heart of the retail area, but this is

changing with improvements to the public realm around Cathedral Square, Bridge Street,

Cowgate and King Street which have attracted new retailers, restaurants and bars to this part

of the city. Extensions to the Queensgate Shopping Centre have accommodated national retail

and restaurant operators.

4.3.4 Our strategy is to continue the focus of new investment into the heart of the centre, with the

emphasis largely on consolidation within the existing shopping area. It is important that new

retail developments complement and strengthen the main shopping area, which is defined as

the Primary Shopping Area (PSA) in accordance with policies CS4 (The City Centre) and

CS15 (Retail) of the Core Strategy.

4.3.5 The Primary Shopping Area, as shown on the Policies Map, includes the Queensgate Shopping

Centre, the principal shopping streets around Westgate, Long Causeway, the Market and

Bridge Street, extending south of Bourges Boulevard and into the Rivergate Shopping Centre

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

16 58



and adjoining supermarket. The defined Area offers scope for physical expansion into the

North Westgate Opportunity Area, as well as scope for intensification where there are existing

unused or underused premises.

4.3.6 The main shopping streets which attract the largest footfall and act as linkages to other areas

of the centre are defined as Primary Retail Frontages. In order to protect their function and

character, premises in these streets will remain primarily in A1 and A3 use except where an

alternative use would provide an active street frontage and maintain or enhance the vitality

and viability of the area.

Policy CC2

Retail

The extent of the City Centre Primary Shopping Area and Primary Retail Frontages are

defined on the Policies Map.

Proposals for retail development inside or outside the Primary Shopping Area will be

determined in accordance with policies CS4 and CS15 of the Peterborough Core Strategy

DPD.

Within the Primary Retail Frontages, development for uses within classes A1 and A3 will,

in principle, be acceptable; in particular, the council will support A3 uses (such as cafés

and restaurants) around Cathedral Square. Development for any use outside classes A1

or A3 will only be acceptable if the development would maintain a built frontage with a

window display, would be likely to maintain or increase pedestrian footfall along the

frontage and would not result in a concentration of non-A1 or A3 uses in that location.

4.3.7 The references to ‘Primary Retail Frontage’ in policy CC2 apply to the ground floor of the

frontages defined on the Policies Map, except in the Queensgate Centre, where Primary Retail

Frontages exist at ground and first floor level. Elsewhere, the use of upper floors above shops

for a wide variety of uses, whether retail or other, is encouraged. In particular, the council

would welcome proposals that make use of vacant property above shops for residential use,

as part of the overall objective to increase the number of dwellings in the city centre.

4.3.8 Outside the Primary Shopping Area, the council may be prepared to permit additional

small-scale convenience retail provision to meet the needs of residents in new residential

areas, as well as ancillary retail uses in the Station East Opportunity Area. Details are contained

in each of the relevant Policy Area statements in chapter 5.

4.3.9 Core Strategy policy CS15 (Retail) identifies five Local Centres which are located in the City

Centre Plan area. The boundaries of these are defined on the Policies Map.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

1759



4.4 Economy and Employment

4.4.1 Peterborough has a diverse economy, with a range of businesses and types of employment

opportunities. It is an overall objective for Peterborough to enhance the city as a prime location

for business investment and skills development. The city centre will be the focus of this and

the Plan has an important part to play by ensuring the provision of modern office space in the

right location to encourage inward investment and enable the expansion of existing businesses.

4.4.2 The city centre already offers a wide range of office provision, includingmany large purpose-built

offices, particularly located in the Northminster area, as well as small-scale offices such as

those in converted premises in the Priestgate area.

4.4.3 However, the city centre office stock is generally ageing and some is of poor quality, with

increasing vacancy rates. Over the last 15 years there has been little investment in new office

development in the centre and this has made it difficult to compete with out of town business

parks.

4.4.4 Policy CS3 of the Core Strategy

(Location of Employment

Development) provides for the

equivalent of at least 3.5

hectares of new employment

land to be made available in the

city centre, as part of

Peterborough’s overall provision

for new employment

development. This area of land

would be capable of delivering in

the region of between 52,500

and 87,500 square metres gross

floorspace for development

within the B1 use class (primarily

offices), depending on the

average plot ratio that might be

achieved.

4.4.5 It is expected that the majority of new office development will take place through the

comprehensive redevelopment of the Opportunity Areas, particularly the Station East

Opportunity Area. The policies for each Policy Area (see chapter 5) identify suitable locations

for new office and business development.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

18 60



4.5 Housing

4.5.1 There are a number of existing residential areas in the city centre with a predominance of flats

and apartments. However, when compared to other towns and cities of a similar size and

scale, Peterborough has relatively few properties in the city centre, and particularly in the city

core.

4.5.2 A key element of the strategy for the city centre, linked to the wider Core Strategy growth

ambition, is to increase the number of homes in the city centre to help improve activity outside

normal shopping and working hours.

4.5.3 There are already two new schemes under construction: the Carbon Challenge site, off London

Road (295 dwellings), and at Potters Way, Fengate (272 dwellings); and there are further

opportunities to significantly increase the number of dwellings. This will take place through

the comprehensive regeneration of several large areas of vacant and underused land, such

as land around the railway station and south of the River Nene, as well as through incremental

change throughout the next fifteen years and beyond. Each Policy Area identifies suitable

areas for new housing development, sometimes as part of a mix of other uses.

4.5.4 New housing development within the city centre will be encouraged to provide a mix of housing

types and sizes, including affordable housing, in accordance with Core Strategy policy CS8

(Meeting Housing Needs), although care will be taken to ensure a balanced housing offer

taking into account the existing tenure mix of a particular area.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

1961



Student Accommodation

4.5.5 The University Centre Peterborough (UCP), part of Anglia Ruskin University, formally opened

in 2009, offering 30 degree courses for approximately 600 students. The University will expand

over the next 15 years and the number of students living and studying in Peterborough is

expected to increase. Therefore, there is a need to provide student accommodation, much of

which could be in the city centre.

4.5.6 Student accommodation can be provided by the private rented sector (and accredited landlords)

as well as being purpose built. The council will support the provision of student accommodation

in the city centre and particularly within the Northminster area, as city centre sites are

sustainable locations, providing easy access to the campus buildings. This will help to achieve

the objective of increasing the city centre population.

The Scale of new Residential Development

4.5.7 The Peterborough Core Strategy anticipates the provision of approximately 4,300 additional

dwellings in the city centre over the period from 2009 to 2026. Appendix C updates this figure

and shows how sites allocated in this Plan will contribute towards meeting the Core Strategy

dwelling requirements for Peterborough as a whole.

4.5.8 The following table presents the approximate number of dwellings that are planned from each

Policy Area. Further details of the available sites and areas proposed for new housing

development are included in the policies for each Policy Area (see chapter 5) and there is an

explanation of the assumptions behind the table in Appendix C.

Table 2: Scale of Residential Development

TotalOpportunity AreasNew Allocations
Committed

at 1 April 2013
Policy Area

704 - 709500120 - 12584City Core

650 - 750650 - 75000Railway Station

10001000Rivergate

826400175251Riverside South

250250Riverside North

510 - 6100300 - 400210Fengate South

700700Boongate

190019City North

2904 - 31091550 - 1650790 - 895564Total

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

20 62



4.6 Leisure, Culture and Tourism

4.6.1 The overall vision for the City Centre Plan is to create an attractive, vibrant and distinctive

place to visit, work and live with a greater range of attractions and facilities. The provision of

cultural, leisure and tourism facilities can have a major part to play in delivering this vision, as

successful cities usually have strong cultural and leisure offerings.

4.6.2 Peterborough city centre has a rich and diverse heritage and currently provides a wide range

of cultural and leisure facilities which attract many visitors to the city centre and help to boost

the wider economy. Some of the main attraction include: the Cathedral, PeterboroughMuseum,

Key Theatre, Regional Pool, Lido and sports facilities, Peterborough United’s football ground

and a range of restaurants, bars and night clubs.

4.6.3 In recent years there has been investment in the Museum and Art Gallery as well an extension

and improvements to the Key Theatre. The enhancement of the public realm around Cathedral

Square has also helped to improve the overall image of the city for visitors and the increased

range of restaurants in this area have helped to make the city centre more vibrant and inviting.

4.6.4 However, despite the existing range, the recent improvements and investment, there is still a

need for the city centre to expand its cultural offer. Firstly, more needs to be made of the

existing assets such as the river and the embankment and the range of festivals and open air

concerts held there. Secondly, there is a need to attract new facilities such as new built leisure

uses, particularly a centrally located cinema and more bars and restaurants.

4.6.5 The city centre also provides an ideal location to establish a new Bronze Age museum to

display the internationally significant collection of boats found at Must Farm, along with other

items relating to Peterborough’s Bronze Age history. The council will work with Vivacity (the

organisation responsible for managing many of Peterborough’s cultural and leisure facilities

on behalf of the council) to identify a suitable location.

4.6.6 The provision of new cultural, leisure and tourism facilities will be delivered in accordance with

Core Strategy policies CS4 (The City Centre) and CS18 (Culture, Leisure and Tourism) and

relevant policies within this plan. Policy CS18 specifically states that new cultural and leisure

facilities in the city centre should:

Make the most of existing facilities

Aim to promote a flexible multi-use arena which is suitable for hosting a range of events

Improve the evening economy.

4.6.7 Peterborough’s Cultural Strategy sets out how culture and leisure activities will be promoted

and delivered in the city. It also includes the vision “To ensure that culture is at the heart of

the city’s growth so that those who live here now and in the future will enjoy a great place to

live, work and play”.

4.6.8 Culture and leisure uses are defined as main town centre uses through the NPPF and therefore

the city centre should be the first choice and focus for such uses. The Plan identifies suitable

areas for future culture and leisure uses as part of wider mixed-use developments. Chapter

5 includes policies for the eight Policy Areas and, where relevant, these include requirements

for cultural and leisure uses to help deliver the overall vision for the city centre. In summary,

the main areas for these uses are:

The City Core Policy Area is seen as the heart of the city. Cathedral Square and

surrounding streets will be a focus for bars and restaurants, and the square will be used

for events and performances throughout the year.

The North Westgate Opportunity Area has been identified for a mixed-used development,

including retail and leisure uses.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

2163



The Northminster Opportunity Area currently includes a number of bars, clubs and leisure

buildings. It is seen as a main area for the night time economy; this will be enhanced

through incremental development proposed within this area, and by making more of the

links with Stanley Recreation Ground.

The Riverside South Policy Area includes existing cultural and leisure facilities such

as the Peterborough United football ground which attracts many visitors to the city centre

on match days. There are plans to redevelop the stadium to an all-seater venue. The

Policy Area also includes the Railworld visitor attraction.

Policy CC6 identifies the Fletton Quays Opportunity Area, which is proposed as a

mixed-use area, including cultural and leisure uses. It will include a riverside walk with

bars and cafes. A bridge linking to the Riverside North Policy Area offers the opportunity

to create a cultural quarter. This Policy Area could be a suitable location for premises to

display the Must Farm boats. This Opportunity Area may also include a hotel.

The Riverside North Policy Area is currently a prominent area for leisure and culture,

with the Key Theatre, Lido and other sports facilities (including the athletics track). The

embankment also provides an important area of open space which is used to host festivals,

concerts and the fair.

The River Nene is an important asset for the city centre which must be enhanced. The

council will support improved access and facilities for angling and boating including the

provision or newmoorings to help boost tourism; this is discussed in more detail in section

4.8.

Policy CC7 sets out proposals for the expansion of the leisure, cultural and sports facilities

for this area.

4.6.9 Over the next 15 years there are a number of projects that will help to improve and enhance

the city’s cultural and leisure offer, with the potential to attract more visitors to the city. These

could include the following:

A new sports village and the redevelopment of the Regional Pool and sports facilities to

possibly include a new 50 metre swimming pool.

Creating a Cultural Quarter which straddles the Riverside North and Riverside South

Policy Areas, incorporating the Key Theatre.

The creation of a museum or exhibition centre for the Must Farm boats.

Improved access to the river.

A city centre cinema, helping to improve the evening economy.

More pieces of public art, linked to wider plans for improving main streets and routes

through the City Core.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

22 64



4.7 Townscape and Heritage

4.7.1 Peterborough is a historic settlement, containing a wide range of historic buildings and

archaeological assets; most notably, the Norman Cathedral and surrounding precincts and St

John the Baptist Church.

4.7.2 Today’s city centre lies at the heart of the city’s historic core and includes parts of the original

medieval town centre and street pattern. Although the centre has seen significant modern

development over the last 30 years, many of the historic buildings and places remain. Therefore,

it is important that during the next phase of growth, the historic environment is both protected

and enhanced.

4.7.3 There are two conservation areas in the city centre, identified on the Policies Map. The City

Centre Conservation Area covers the heart of the city centre and the vast majority falls within

the City Core Policy Area. The Park Conservation Area falls partly within the City North Policy

Area and extends northwards beyond the city centre boundary.

4.7.4 There are many buildings of heritage value, including over 100 listed buildings and 100 buildings

of local importance. Again, the majority are located in the City Core Policy Area, with almost

50 protected buildings within the Cathedral Precincts alone.

4.7.5 Investigations carried out within the city centre, particularly excavations and recording prompted

by the Public Realm works in Cathedral Square in 2008, has identified a series of archaeological

remains dating from the creation of the market square in the 12th century through to the 19th

century. The archaeological deposits and remains, where present, survive in good conditions

of preservation. Therefore, development proposals in the city centre have to be carefully

assessed in order to protect the buried heritage assets.

4.7.6 Policies CS16 and CS17 of the Core Strategy DPD and policy PP17 of the Planning Policies

DPD set out the council’s policy for urban design, the public realm, the historic environment

and heritage assets. They apply throughout Peterborough and require high quality and inclusive

design and the protection and enhancement of the city’s historic assets, including listed

buildings, conservation areas, scheduled monuments, historic parks and gardens, and locally

designated assets. CS17 establishes a presumption against development that would

unacceptably detract from critical views of Peterborough Cathedral by virtue of its height,

location, bulk or design.

4.7.7 Policy PP11 of the Planning Policies DPD protects historic shop fronts and ensures replacement

shop fronts are appropriate to the character of the historic building. Further guidance is

available in the Peterborough Shop Front Design Guidance SPD (2013).

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

2365



4.7.8 These policies, along with the policies of this plan, form the basis for delivering the townscape

and heritage strategy for the City Centre.

4.7.9 The strategy is to preserve and enhance the centre’s heritage assets and their setting in a

manner commensurate with their significance. There will be an emphasis on a high quality of

design in all new development. The overall character and quality of the built environment of

the city centre will continue to be improved through the implementation of the proposals set

out in the council's Public Realm Strategy. Good quality, well designed new shop fronts and

refurbishment of historic shop fronts, together with attractive street furniture, public art and

green spaces all help to create a strong sense of place and a safe, welcoming environment.

4.7.10 Opportunities should be taken through the wider regeneration of the city centre to restore any

heritage assets identified on the Heritage at Risk Register.

4.7.11 The plan proposes development on a significant scale over the next 15 years, with the potential

for considerable changes to the townscape, including buildings with a ‘city’ scale and mass.

Therefore, it will be important to ensure that the design of new developments responds with

care and attention to the historic context and the setting of heritage assets, particularly the

Cathedral.

4.7.12 In this respect, when considering development proposals within the city centre, careful

consideration will be given to the impact that their height, scale and massing would have on

strategically important views of the cathedral, particularly those from key transport corridors

and key open spaces (e.g. the Embankment and Stanley Recreation Ground).

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

24 66



4.8 Green Spaces and the River Nene

4.8.1 A key part of the strategy for the future of the city centre is the maintenance and improvement

of green spaces and the River Nene for public enjoyment and the enhancement of the natural

environment.

4.8.2 The city centre has a number of public green spaces which serve a variety of functions, ranging

from places for relaxation and play to places for festivals and events. Of particular importance

are:

The Embankment

The Cathedral Precincts

Stanley Recreation Ground

Bishops Road Gardens

St John’s Square

4.8.3 The Cathedral Precincts form a distinct and clearly defined area within the city centre and

include large areas of green open space. Their heritage value is protected through their

inclusion in English Heritage’s Register of Historic Parks and Gardens, their designation as a

scheduled monument and their inclusion within the City Centre Conservation Area, but their

open space value needs to be acknowledged in its own right.

4.8.4 The council has taken steps to improve the availability of public open and green spaces through

the recent creation of St John’s Square, but our strategy is to secure further areas of green

space as an integral part of new developments to meet the needs of future residents and other

users of the city centre. These may include ‘pocket’ parks, gardens, terraces, squares,

courtyards and green roofs, all in accordance with the open space standards set out in policy

PP14 of the Planning Policies DPD. Wherever appropriate, the council will encourage new

tree planting in accordance with the Peterborough Trees and Woodland Strategy.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

2567



4.8.5 An improved natural habitat area, known as Embankment End Marsh, is being delivered as

part of the Potters Way development within the Fengate South Policy Area.

4.8.6 Wherever possible, new and existing green spaces in the city centre should help to improve

connectivity for pedestrians and function as part of the wider green grid network, providing

access to, and linking habitats across, the Nene Valley and the open countryside.

4.8.7 Reconnecting the River Nene with the City Core, by improving the links for pedestrians and

cyclists, and making the most of this important asset are also key elements of the strategy for

the city centre. Riverside locations have the potential to create highly attractive settings for

new development, but it is generally acknowledged that the potential of the river and surrounding

area has not been fully exploited. Much of the development during the course of the 20th

Century served to isolate the river front from the remainder of the city centre and, with the

notable exception of the Key Theatre, there are few leisure uses that take advantage of the

riverside.

4.8.8 The council’s overall approach to the River Nene is presented in policy PP15 of the Planning

Policies DPD. This addresses the Nene Valley as a whole, seeking to balance the competing

pressures on the waterspace itself, the banks of the river and its townscape and landscape

settings. Amongst other things, it supports development which would enhance recreation or

bring landscape, nature conservation, heritage, cultural or amenity benefits. There is a

significant opportunity for the river corridor to become a much improved environment that

residents and visitors will enjoy and that provides higher quality habitats for wildlife in line with

the Nene Valley Nature Improvement Area designation and the principles of the Peterborough

Flood and Water Management SPD. Improved access and facilities for angling and boating,

such as new and improved moorings, will also be sought in conjunction with environmental

improvements as part of an integrated approach to the Nene. PP15 also seeks greater public

access and the achievement of continuous publicly accessible paths and cycle routes alongside

the river.

4.8.9 Thesematters are addressed in more detail in the relevant Policy Areas in chapter 5, particularly

the Riverside South, Riverside North and Fengate South Policy Areas.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

26 68



4.9 Drainage and Flood Risk

4.9.1 In the city centre, there are two main flood risk issues which the planned regeneration of a

number of large brownfield sites offer an ideal opportunity to help address.

4.9.2 The first relates to the location of new development, as a number of development sites and

Opportunity Areas are located along the banks of the River Nene and have site-specific flood

risk issues. The second issue relates to increased surface water runoff in areas where there

are drainage capacity issues, particularly in areas with combined foul and surface water sewers.

4.9.3 Core Strategy policy CS22 (Flood Risk) sets the overall policy approach for flood risk, which

will also apply to development in the city centre. This policy is further supplemented by the

Peterborough Flood and Water Management SPD, which provides advice and guidance to

help reduce flood risk either through the location of development or through on-site drainage

and management.

4.9.4 A sequential test has been carried out for all development sites and Opportunity Areas within

the city centre, which has taken into account the outcomes of the Strategic Flood Risk

Assessment (level 1 and 2) as required by policy CS22. However, a site-specific flood risk

assessment will still be required for any sites located in flood zones 2 or 3 or in areas of special

drainage interest, to demonstrate that development will be safe without increasing flood risk

elsewhere. Any requirements for a site-specific flood risk assessment are set out in section

5, within the relevant policy, and chapter 4 of the Flood and Water Management SPD.

4.9.5 The design and layout of a site is also important and therefore a sequential approach should

also be used to ensure that development with the highest vulnerability from flooding, such as

housing, is located within areas of the site that are at lowest risk of flooding.

4.9.6 To ensure effective surface water management on site, open spaces and sustainable drainage

systems must be built into designs at an early stage. Measures to control run off quality and

quantity at source must be used. Management of surface water should produce multiple

benefits for a site, by reducing flood risk and improving water quality as well as providing for

amenity and biodiversity. Chapter 6 of the Flood andWater Management SPD provides further

information.

4.9.7 The drainage network capacity in some areas of the city centre is currently limited due to the

use of combined foul and surface water sewers. The Flood and Water Management SPD

states that no new surface water connections to the combined sewer system will be permitted.

This particularly applies to redevelopment sites such as the Hospital and Station Opportunity

Areas, where surface water has historically drained into combined sewers. Section 6.9 of the

SPD provides further information and explains how the priority should be for rainwater to

discharge into the ground through soakaways and other infiltration systems, rather than into

the sewer.

4.9.8 Management of water is important not only from a flood risk point of view but because of the

need to improve the status of Peterborough’s water bodies under the Water Framework

Directive (WFD). Where new activities or schemes have the potential to cause deterioration

and lead to failures in achieving ecological objectives, sites will require a WFD assessment.

Chapter 8 of the SPD provides further detail on the local impacts of the WFD, the assessment

and reasons for which it might be required.

4.9.9 By incorporating the flood and water mitigation and management measures into the

development of Opportunity Areas or development sites within the city centre, the future impact

of flood risk can be reduced for the benefit of all.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy 4

2769



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

City Centre Strategy4

28 70



5.1 Policy Areas

5.1.1 This chapter focuses specifically on individual parts of the city centre, with policies and

proposals which set out what the council would expect to happen in each one. There are eight

distinct Policy Areas; the location and name of each one is shown on the following map.

Map C: City Centre Policy Areas

5.1.2 Each area has its own policy with specific planning requirements for that particular area. Where

appropriate, the policies identify Opportunity Areas, which are large areas of underused or

vacant land that have the potential for comprehensive redevelopment.

5.1.3 Although each area has its own policy, any development should not take place in isolation,

but as an element which contributes towards the wider success of the city centre. It is also

important to improve the links between areas so that pedestrians, in particular, can make their

way between different destinations safely and conveniently.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

2971



5.2 City Core Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.2.1 This Policy Area is the heart of the city. It forms the established retail, commercial and civic

focus, as well as the historic centre. It is the area most likely to attract visitors to the city. It is

a special area which we should be very proud of, but there is always room for improvement.

5.2.2 The area forms the main shopping area. It includes the Queensgate shopping centre, and

other shopping streets such as Bridge Street, Westgate, Long Causeway and Cowgate, as

well as the Market. It will continue to be the primary focus for new retail development.

5.2.3 The City Core area has a street pattern which originates from medieval times, with many

streets forming part of the City Centre or Park Conservation Areas. The Cathedral, Guildhall,

St John’s Church and the new public realm around the transformed Cathedral Square form

the central focus point for the whole city.

5.2.4 To the north of the Cathedral is an area known as Northminster. This area includes offices,

retail, a hotel, nightclubs and bars as well as the Market, with some temporary surface car

parks. There are opportunities for redevelopment of individual sites to achieve more efficient

use of land, and improve the setting of the Cathedral.

5.2.5 There may be opportunities to better reveal and connect the Cathedral with the City Core.

This could include residential use adjoining the Cathedral Precincts, along City Road and

Midgate. This will be explored through a future development brief or SPD for the area.

5.2.6 Towards the south-west is Priestgate, which contains many historic buildings. This area has

a predominance of office use but also includes the Peterborough Museum and housing.

5.2.7 To the north, the area between Queensgate and Bright Street is currently an underused part

of the city and it has been identified as the NorthWestgate Opportunity Area. There have been

proposals in the past for substantial new retail-led developments, but changes in the nature

of retailing and the wider economic context have meant that a more modest and mixed-use

development solution is now more likely. It is proposed for redevelopment for a mix of uses,

including retail, leisure, community and residential.

5.2.8 This Policy Area, and particularly the proposed North Westgate Opportunity Area, provides

an important transition between the central commercial core and the inner city residential area

to the north, which is characterised by comparatively high levels of deprivation and inequality.

Development proposals here will have to be very carefully designed to better link these two

areas, provide local commercial opportunities and avoid the scheme ‘turning its back’ on that

adjacent residential community. It is anticipated that existing street patterns will be retained

to maintain continuity. The council will use its compulsory purchase powers where necessary

for land assembly to ensure the optimum redevelopment solution.

5.2.9 The area is bounded to the west and south by Bourges Boulevard, which currently acts as a

physical barrier for pedestrians, so that connections with the station (Railway Station Policy

Area) and to the River Nene (Riverside South Policy Area) are very poor.

5.2.10 This City Core Policy Area matches the City Core area identified in the council’s Local Transport

Plan 3.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

30 72



Map D: City Core Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.2.11 The City Core Policy Area will see high quality, mixed-use development and further

improvements to the public realm. Opportunities to better integrate the Cathedral with the

wider city centre will be explored.

5.2.12 There will be new retail and leisure provision, particularly further improvements to the

Queensgate shopping centre and the North Westgate Opportunity Area. This will help to

strengthen Peterborough’s sub-regional role as a shopping destination.

5.2.13 Elsewhere, there will be more incremental new development, including residential, retail, cafes,

bars and restaurants, combined with high quality public spaces. The evening economy will be

diversified, for example through provision of a new cinema, to help create a more lively and

attractive environment where people want to visit, work and live and which offers a wide range

of uses for everyone of any age.

5.2.14 Building frontages will be protected and enhanced so that they remain active with a high footfall

of customers during both the day and evening.

5.2.15 The transition between the area and inner city residential areas will be enhanced, with better

connections more generally to other parts of the city centre, such as the station and the River

Nene.

5.2.16 Despite these changes, the key feature of the area will continue to be the historic core and all

opportunities to protect and enhance these features and heritage assets will be taken.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

3173



Policy CC3

City Core Policy Area

Within the area designated as the City Core on the Policies Map, the city council will seek

development of the highest quality which, in overall terms, strengthens the area as the

retail, leisure, tourism and civic focus for Peterborough and its sub-region, broadens the

range of land uses to include more city centre living and enhances the visitor experience

for all.

New development must, where appropriate:

improve the quality of the townscape, architecture and public realm;

protect important views of the Cathedral;

preserve or enhance the heritage assets of the area, and their setting, in a manner

appropriate to their significance; and

protect and enhance existing retail areas.

The following sites, as identified on the Policies Map, are allocated primarily for residential

use:

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

11Sites of less than 10 dwellings with planning permission at 31 March 2013

10NS37 - 39 Brook StreetCC3.1

39NSUnex Group car park, Brook StreetCC3.2

24NS49 - 55 PriestgateCC3.3

20 - 25

NAWheel Yard (to be delivered in

accordance with an agreed

development brief)

CC3.4

100

Including flats above shopsOther locations

within Policy

Area

204 - 209Sub Total

The following sites are identified on the Policies Map as Opportunity Areas for mixed use

development:

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

200NANorth WestgateCC3.5

300

NANorthminster (to be delivered in

accordance with a development brief

or SPD for the area)

CC3.6**

500Sub Total

704 - 709Total

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

32 74



* Status at 1 April 2013. O = Outline. NS = Not started, with full planning permission. UC = under

construction. NA = New Allocation. ** the indicative number of dwellings does not included

committed sites CC3.1 and CC3.2.

Within the North Westgate Opportunity Area (CC3.5) planning permission will be granted

for comprehensive mixed-use redevelopment including retail, housing, office and leisure

uses, which is well integrated with the existing retail area. This must also include

improvements to pedestrian connectivity between the site and the railway station. The

design, layout and access arrangements must enhance the transition between the

residential area to the north and the city centre.

Individual proposals which would prejudice the comprehensive redevelopment of this

Opportunity Area will not be permitted. Any proposals for North Westgate should

complement existing community regeneration projects coming forward in the City North

Policy Area.

Development proposals within the Northminster Opportunity Area (CC3.6) should deliver

a range of uses that provide high quality office development and approximately 300

dwellings including student accommodation. Development in this area should protect

and enhance any historic assets, including in particular the Cathedral Precincts and

Peterscourt.

The council will support proposals to improve the market or, if necessary, work with

market traders to identify a new location.

Elsewhere in the City Core Policy Area, the city council will expect and support, in principle,

proposals that would help to deliver the following:

a net increase in dwellings, including apartments above existing commercial or new

commercial development and the provision of student accommodation;

improved connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists within the Policy Area and with

surrounding areas, particularly improved access to the railway station and riverside;

mixed-use development with active street frontages;

development which encourages trips into the city centre for shopping, leisure

(including a cinema), social and cultural purposes;

additional high quality office space; and

the conservation and restoration of historic shop fronts.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

3375



5.3 Railway Station Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.3.1 This Policy Area is located to the west of the city centre and primarily comprises the former

hospital site (which relocated to a new site in 2011), the railway station and associated

operational railway land.

5.3.2 The Policy Area is bounded by Bourges Boulevard to the east, which creates a physical barrier

between the railway station and the City Core Policy Area. Current access to the City Core

for pedestrians is either via an underpass or a footbridge, neither of which are attractive, clear

or easy options.

5.3.3 The area comprises large areas of under-utilised railway land, together with low density and

derelict industrial land. This offers a significant opportunity for major mixed-use development

and regeneration of a prominent part of the city.

5.3.4 Within this Policy Area there are three distinct Opportunity Areas: the site of the former hospital

and the two station areas either side of the railway.

5.3.5 The railway station is undergoing significant investment and enhancement. Peterborough

station is on the East Coast Main Line, approximately 45 minutes from London and 1 hour 30

minutes from Leeds and York. The Railway Station Policy Area is an excellent strategic location

for new investment.

Hospital Site

5.3.6 A Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted for this site in 2010; it sets out the

main requirements and land uses for the redevelopment of this area. This City Centre Plan

does not seek amendments to that SPD (although some elements have been superseded by

the Planning Policies DPD, which was adopted in December 2012).

5.3.7 The majority of the site is now vacant and forms a large area of underused brownfield land.

The site is bounded to the south by Thorpe Road, which is a main arterial road to the city

centre. The site is surrounded by existing residential areas with some low value employment

sites on Midland Road; the surrounding properties are of varying age, style and density. There

is an established local community.

5.3.8 The site is an irregular shape and not all of the land is available for development. The land is

in several different ownerships, with the Primary Care Centre building to remain on-site. The

land available for development comprises pockets of land which are not fully connected. This

makes it essential that there is a clear, co-ordinated redevelopment scheme put in place, and

why an SPD for this site has been produced.

Railway Station

5.3.9 The two Station Opportunity Areas are bisected by the main railway line and are not well

connected. This is why this area has been split into two Opportunity Areas, to enable the

delivery of the sites as separate parcels. The council will encourage extension of the station

footbridge to provide passengers access to the station from Midland Road.

5.3.10 Many of the redundant industrial buildings detract from the overall quality of the area, as well

as presenting a negative visual impression of the city for passengers who are either passing

through or arriving at the station.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

34 76



5.3.11 The Station East Opportunity Area includes a large area of open surface car parking for

approximately 900 vehicles to the south as well as a multi-storey car park with 600 spaces

linked to the station and Queensgate shopping area.

5.3.12 Directly opposite the station entrance is the Great Northern Hotel, which is identified as a

building of local importance. Outline planning permission has been granted for an extension

of the hotel and significant new office development. Outline planning permission has also been

granted for office development and a supermarket on the adjoining, former Royal Mail site.

5.3.13 Within the StationWest Opportunity Area, the southern part of the site was used as marshalling

and goods yards and includes the Grade II* crescent wagon repair shop andGrade II carpenters

workshop.

Map E: Railway Station Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.3.14 The redevelopment of this area is critical to the future success of the city. The overall vision

for this Policy Area is to deliver a transformation from part of the city characterised by unused

and underused land into one with a range of high quality, modern developments. There will

be an improved railway station with easier and more attractive pedestrian access into the rest

of the city centre, including, in particular, the main retail area.

5.3.15 There will be a high quality new city centre office development in Station East. The large vacant

hospital site provides an opportunity to create a new, high quality residential neighbourhood

which will integrate well into the existing local community and take advantage of the proximity

to public transport and the city centre, reducing the need to travel by car.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

3577



Policy CC4

Railway Station Policy Area

Within the area designated as the Railway Station Policy Area on the Policies Map, the

city council will support and encourage high qualitymixed-use developments which create

an attractive and legible gateway into the rest of the city centre.

Redevelopment in the following Opportunity Areas, as identified on the Policies Map,

should provide approximately the number of dwellings indicated as part of wider, mixed-use

schemes.

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

350NAHospital Opportunity Area**CC4.1

200 - 300NAStation West Opportunity Area***CC4.2

100NAStation East Opportunity AreaCC4.3

650 - 750Total

* Status at 1 April 2013. O = Outline. NS = Not started, with full planning permission. UC = under

construction. NA = New Allocation. ** This area includes 14 dwellings at Vawser Lodge (planning

permission granted after 1 April 2013). *** This area includes 90 dwellings at Midland Road

(planning permission granted after 1 April 2013).

All development must ensure sustainability of the area with regard to on-site drainage

and surface water flood risk.

Development proposals for the Hospital Opportunity Area should be in general conformity

with the adopted Peterborough District Hospital Site SPD.

Development proposals for the Station West Opportunity Area should:

deliver predominantly residential development, although office development would

also be supported;

provide community uses;

incorporate and enhance the listed railway sheds to the south of the site;

safeguard land for, and assist delivery of, a foot/cycle bridge over the railway line,

connecting to the Station East Opportunity Area; and

help to facilitate a new ‘west’ entrance to the station.

Development proposals for the Station East Opportunity Area should deliver a mixed-use,

commercial-led development, including:

high-quality office development;

retail uses ancillary to, and associated with, the railway station (other than the

consented convenience retail development on the former Royal Mail site);

bars, restaurants and leisure uses;

safeguarding of land for a foot/cycle bridge over the railway line, connecting to the

Station West Opportunity Area; and

assisting in the delivery of improved connections between the Area and the City

Core.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

36 78



5.4 Rivergate Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.4.1 The Rivergate Policy Area is an area of land between the City Core and the River Nene

(Riverside South Policy Area). It is located south of Bourges Boulevard, with a supermarket,

surface car park and the Rivergate shopping arcade at its centre. It also includes theMagistrates

Courts and Crown Courts buildings and Bridge Street police station which appear as “islands”

due to the Rivergate gyratory system. The mix of uses is completed with offices and shops in

former railway warehouses to the west and flats overlooking the River Nene to the south.

5.4.2 Part of the Rivergate area along Lower Bridge Street is included within the City Centre

Conservation Area.

5.4.3 This area provides an important link from the City Core to the River Nene and parts of the city

centre further south, but Bourges Boulevard acts as a physical barrier to the ease of movement

for pedestrians in both directions. Although Lower Bridge Street and the Rivergate Centre

form part of the Primary Shopping Area they are seen as secondary retail areas by many

visitors due to this physical separation.

Map F: Rivergate Policy Area

5.4.4 Vision for the Area

5.4.5 The vision for this area is to create a more prominent retail location that is better integrated

with the City Core and that provides a well connected, attractive and active route to the River

Nene, helping to draw people to the river and the Riverside South Policy Area.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

3779



5.4.6 This will be achieved through public realm improvements along the historic route of Bridge

Street, as set out in the Public Realm Strategy, including a significant change to the function

and character of Bourges Boulevard, as set out in chapter 6. There will be more active uses

along Lower Bridge Street throughout the day and evening, with the possibility of some

remodelling of the Rivergate Shopping Centre for retail and residential purposes.

Policy CC5

Rivergate Policy Area

Within the area designated as the Rivergate Policy Area on the Policies Map, the principle

of a retail-led, mixed-use development, incorporating approximately 100 dwellings, will

be supported provided that it:

assists the delivery of improved pedestrian and cycle connections through the area,

and between the City Core, Riverside South and Riverside North Policy Areas;

makes provision for active uses throughout the day and evening along Lower Bridge

Street; and

conserves the listed buildings located in the area, incorporating them sympathetically

into the design solution.

Where a development site adjoins the River Nene, opportunities should be taken to improve

the river and/or its banks for boaters, anglers, wildlife and those wishing to access and

enjoy the river.

Any proposals that would result in a comprehensive redevelopment of this area, including

the Rivergate Centre and/or the Rivergate gyratory system, must be supported by a

development brief, masterplan or SPD.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

38 80



5.5 Riverside South Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.5.1 This Policy Area is located to the south of the city centre and mainly south of the River Nene.

The area includes former industrial land and contains a number of vacant and derelict sites

in a prime central location.

5.5.2 The Fletton Quays Opportunity Area is located within this Policy Area, between the River Nene

and the Peterborough to March railway line, and consists of approximately 6.8ha of derelict

land which presents an excellent opportunity for high profile redevelopment of a major brownfield

site.

5.5.3 The Carbon Challenge Site (Vista) is located south of the railway line; this site commenced

construction in 2012 and will deliver 295 new zero carbon homes.

5.5.4 This area also contains a variety of uses including the Peterborough United Football Ground,

Pleasure Fair Meadow car park, community allotments (registered as a community asset) and

Railworld land either side of the river.

5.5.5 Currently this Policy Area is poorly connected to the City Core and other surrounding residential

areas, and the railway lines act as barriers to movement. Part of the area is located in flood

zones 2 and 3, particularly the areas to the west.

Map G: Riverside South Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.5.6 This Policy Area will see substantial change over the plan period. There will be a number of

major new mixed-use developments which will enhance the southern gateway into the city

centre and make the most of the attractive riverside setting.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

3981



5.5.7 The Fletton Quays Opportunity Area will be transformed from an underused and derelict part

of the city into a vibrant and attractive residential, leisure and cultural area, providing active

uses such as bars and cafes along the river frontage. These will help attract visitors to this

part of the city and to establish the river as a prominent feature of the city. Development will

incorporate a pedestrian route alongside the river and an iconic pedestrian/cycle bridge over

the river, connecting to other parts of the city centre.

5.5.8 The football ground will see transformation into a community stadium and there will be an

enhanced visitor attraction at Railworld, on the south side of the river. Residential development

will take place on the opposite north side of the river, off Thorpe Lea Road.

5.5.9 A consistent theme running through all of the changes in this area will be measures to make

the river and its banks more accessible and more attractive for all users. There are excellent

opportunities on these sites to combine the management of flood risk, the enhancement of

wildlife and improved opportunities for boating as part of a holistic approach.

Policy CC6

Riverside South Policy Area

Within the area designated as the Riverside South Policy Area on the Policies Map,

development will be supported, in principle, where it helps to secure the transformation

of disused and underused land, in order to create an enhanced gateway into the city

centre.

Wherever appropriate, developments should help to improve pedestrian and cycle links

between the area and rest of the city centre and adjacent areas, and provide pedestrian

access along the river frontage. A site-specific flood risk assessment will be required for

all developments which have flood risk implications and this will need to demonstrate

that the development will be safe without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

Collectively, the development of sites within the Policy Area should provide approximately

820 dwellings, in accordancewith the number of dwellings indicated for each site, or area,

below:

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

251**UCCarbon Challenge SiteCC 6.1

400NAFletton Quays Opportunity AreaCC 6.2

50NARailworld North (prestige homes)CC 6.3

125Other locations within the Policy Area

826Total

* Status at 1 April 2013. O = Outline. NS = Not started, with full planning permission. UC = under

construction. NA = New Allocation

** Dwellings still be completed on this site at 1 April 2013.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

40 82



Within the Fletton Quays Opportunity Area, planning permission will be granted for a

mixed-use development which delivers approximately 400 new dwellings. Offices, culture

and leisure uses (excluding a cinema, unless it can be demonstrated that this cannot be

provided within the City Core), with restaurants and bars along the river frontage will also

be acceptable. Development should:

maximise the advantages of the riverside setting with a high-quality design solution;

deliver an attractive public riverside walk and cycle path with a new foot/cycle bridge

across the River Nene to the Embankment;

incorporate and enhance the listed buildings (railway engine sheds and goods sheds)

and building of local importance (the Mill), with imaginative new uses;

incorporate appropriate flood risk mitigation measures, as identified through a

site-specific flood risk assessment;

deliver opportunities to naturalise the river corridor and enhance biodiversity in ways

that complement existing river functions and in line with the objectives of the Nene

Valley Nature Improvement Area.

Any retail use will be limited to that which is ancillary to serve the Opportunity Area itself.

Individual proposals for development which would prejudice the comprehensive

redevelopment of this Opportunity Area will not be permitted.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

4183



5.6 Riverside North Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.6.1 This area is located to the south and east of the Cathedral and to the west of the Frank Perkins

Parkway. It includes the Embankment which will remain a protected area of open space, and

the regional pool and athletics track to the north of the Policy Area.

5.6.2 The Policy Area also includes the Key Theatre and Lido, which is a Grade II listed building,

and large areas of surface car parks along Bishops Road.

5.6.3 To some extent, the area is seen as a secondary part of the city centre due to the poor links

and connectivity with the City Core and Riverside South Policy Areas. This means that this

area of open space with a river setting in the city centre is relativity underused and not of the

quality that it could be. The use of this space for large formal events is very positive and more

needs to be done to encourage wider improvements to the use of this space.

Map H: Riverside North Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.6.4 The vision for this area is to bring the southern part of the Embankment into much greater

use, making the most of its riverside setting. This will be achieved through improving

connections with other parts of the city centre, including the provision of a new foot/cycle bridge

over the River Nene from the Fletton Quays Opportunity Area and improved foot/cycle links

between the Rivergate area and the new residential development which is proposed to the

east of Frank Perkins Parkway.

5.6.5 It is also a citywide vision to improve the existing sports facilities towards the north of the Policy

Area; this may include provision of a new 50 metre swimming pool. There will also be

improvements to the entrance and access to the sports area.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

42 84



Policy CC7

Riverside North Policy Area

TheRiverside North Policy Area, as shown on the PoliciesMap, will remain a predominately

open area for social, recreational, leisure and cultural uses.

Any built development will be confined to the northern part of the site and along the

frontage to Bishops Road. Development proposed for this area will include provision for

a new swimming pool and other sports facilities.

The following site, as identified on the Policies Map, is allocated for the provision of not

more than 25 prestige homes.

Maximum number of

dwellings
Status*Site Name

Site

Reference

25NABishops RoadCC7.1

NA = New Allocations

Any proposals for this area must:

be of a high standard of design and low density;

ensure that the height of dwellings does not exceed the height of the trees that exist

around the western, southern and eastern sides of the site; and

include additional landscaping.

This site includes existing trees and landscaping which must be retained and enhanced

as an integral part of the design solution for the site.

Further residential development in this area (other than on site CC7.1) will not be supported

by the council.

Elsewhere in this Policy Area, new development must be of high design quality and

improve the pedestrian and cycle links to the City Core Policy Area and Fletton Quays

Opportunity Area, including a new foot/cycle bridge over the River Nene.

The council will support proposals which will improve and enhance the Key Theatre by

making the most of its riverside location and links to the Fletton Quays Opportunity Area.

Views of the Cathedral from the south and south-east and the settings of the Lido and

Customs House should be preserved.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

4385



5.7 Fengate South Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.7.1 The Fengate South Policy Area is located to the east of Frank Perkins Parkway. In the north

of the area, a large area of former derelict land off Potters Way is being redeveloped for

residential purposes, with the second phase under construction. The area to the south is

currently an open area of land which is unused except on an informal basis for recreation.

(This area was a former landfill site.)

5.7.2 In the east, the Policy Area includes an area of land of high biodiversity value which will be

retained and managed as a natural habitat area.

5.7.3 The Policy Area is currently poorly connected to the wider city centre, although there are

pedestrian links along the River Nene which form part of a river walk that runs the length of

the site.

5.7.4 Parts of this Policy Area area are located within flood zones 2 and 3; therefore any future

development will be restricted to the areas at a lower risk of flooding and will need to incorporate

suitable flood mitigation measures.

Map I: Fengate South Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.7.5 The vision for this area is the creation of an attractive river front residential development which

will provide mainly family accommodation and associated community facilities.

5.7.6 Any development will incorporate and enhance the existing pedestrian route alongside the

River Nene and improve the river frontage in accordance with policy PP15 of the Peterborough

Planning Policies DPD. It will also enhance the existing access to the river.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

44 86



Policy CC8

Fengate South Policy Area

Within the area designated as the Fengate South Policy Area on the Policies Map, planning

permission will be granted for residential and associated ancillary development on the

following sites:

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

210**UCPotters WayCC8.1

300 - 400NAFengate SouthCC8.2

510 - 610Total

* Status at 1 April 2013. O = Outline. NS = Not started, with full planning permission. UC = under

construction. NA = New Allocation

** Dwellings still be completed on this site at 1 April 2013.

Prior to the granting of any planning permission for residential development on the Fengate

South site (CC8.2), the council will require the developer to submit a development brief

or other evidence documents that address the following matters:

how flood risk issues are to be addressed, including the location of dwellings in areas

at lowest probability of flooding and the proposed flood risk mitigation measures;

the arrangements for the remediation of the site to a standard suitable for residential

and associated uses;

transport issues, including vehicular access arrangements, measures to address

transport impacts beyond the site and measures to improve pedestrian and cycle

infrastructure from the area to the City Core (thus reducing the need to travel by car);

impacts on biodiversity, including, in particular, any impacts on the Nene Washes

SSSI, SAC, SPA and Ramsar Site;

visual and landscape impacts (including countryside and cathedral views);

a design solution that creates a high quality residential environment with associated

community facilities, providing an attractive frontage to the river with the possibility

of moorings; and

the creation of an attractive public riverside walk and cycle path which runs the length

of the site, connecting with the foot and cycle paths from the Embankment west of

the Parkway.

If proposals come forward for the development of a marina on this site, these will be

supported in principle by the council, provided that it is demonstrated that the scheme

is deliverable, taking into account the criteria listed above (to the extent that they apply

to marina development).

The council will require the submission of sufficient information from the applicant to

enable it to complete a project-level screening exercise under the Habitats Regulations,

and, if that screening concludes that full Appropriate Assessment is needed, sufficient

information to enable it to complete that Appropriate Assessment. This process will need

to demonstrate that the development will not have a significant adverse effect on the

integrity of the Nene Washes.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

4587



5.8 Boongate Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.8.1 This area is located on the eastern edge of the city centre and forms an important entrance

into the city centre from the east and particularly from the Frank Perkins Parkway. The area

is dominated by the Boongate roundabout and includes the gasholder station and two surface

car parks either side of Boongate. The Policy Area also includes a church and community

centre along Dickens Street.

Map J: Boongate Policy Area

Vision for the Area

5.8.2 The vision for this area is to create a more attractive gateway into the city centre. There will

be more efficient use of the land around Boongate, including improvements to the existing car

parks and new residential development.

5.8.3 Improvements to the Boongate roundabout are proposed. These will include signalization and

improved pedestrian crossing arrangements for the benefit of residents from the Eastgate and

Eastfield areas of the city.

5.8.4 Any development in this Policy Area must comply with guidance from the Health and Safety

Executive in respect of proximity to the Wellington Street gasholder.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

46 88



Policy CC9

Boongate Policy Area

Within the area designated as the Boongate Policy Area on the Policies Map, planning

permission will be granted for a high quality residential-led development which creates

an enhanced gateway into the city centre.

The following sites, as identified on the Policies Map, are allocated primarily for residential

use:

Indicative number

of dwellings
Status*Site NameSite Reference

30NADickens Street Car ParkCC9.1

40NAWellington Street Car ParkCC9.2

70Total

* Status at 1 April 2013. O = Outline. NS = Not started, with full planning permission. UC = under

construction. NA = New Allocation

TheWellington Street car park site will include residential development and amulti-storey

car park providing at least the same number of parking spaces as exist on the site at

present.

No residential development in this Policy Area will be permitted within the inner

consultation zone around the Wellington Street gasholder station.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

4789



5.9 City North Policy Area

Description of the Area

5.9.1 This area is towards the north of the city centre and is seen as a transitional area between

the commercial City Core and the inner city residential areas. It includes many public buildings

such as the Central Library and the Broadway Theatre building. A large part falls within the

Park Conservation Area and it includes a number of listed buildings and buildings of local

importance.

5.9.2 The area has a mix of commercial and residential properties, including substantial

Victorian/Edwardian villas and terraced housing. It includes the Stanley Recreation Ground,

which is a valued area of green space.

5.9.3 Broadway is a key thoroughfare approaching the City Core from outlying residential areas to

the north. The street includes small-scale commercial uses and small retail units, with several

restaurants and bars.

5.9.4 Themajority of this Policy Area forms part of the wider regeneration area covered by 'Operation

Can-Do', which is a 10 year multi-agency initiative in the Gladstone, Millfield and New England

areas, supporting a range of physical and community regeneration projects. To the east, many

houses do not meet modern standards of insulation, heating and general upkeep.

5.9.5 The area adjoins the North Westgate Opportunity Area, where it is proposed that there should

be a major redevelopment of vacant and underused land. Care will be needed to ensure that

any scheme creates an attractive and integrative frontage onto Bright Street.

Map K: City North Policy Area

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

48 90



Vision for the Area

5.9.6 This is a part of the city that will see incremental change over the lifetime of this plan, unless

there is commercial demand for more fundamental change in some locations. At 1 April 2013

there were 19 dwellings with planning permission on a number of small infill sites.

5.9.7 Development will seek to create a sensitive transition between high density commercial uses

to the south and terraced residential streets to the north. Particular effort must be made to

ensure effective and seamless linkages between the commercial core and outlying residential

areas.

5.9.8 New residential development will take place at various locations, and there will be infill

development where this can be achieved in a sensitive manner. Given the high density of

residential use and the need to maintain a balanced housing offer including family homes, the

subdivision of houses to flats will not be supported.

5.9.9 The overall vision for the area is to create pride, safety and community cohesion as part of

the overall ‘Operation Can-Do’ initiative, with any new development in the Park Conservation

Area preserving or enhancing its character.

Policy CC10

City North Policy Area

Within the area designated as the City North Policy Area on the Policies Map development

will be acceptable provided that it respects the character and built form of the surrounding

area and, in the case of housing proposals, assists in improving the quality of the housing

stock and the residential environment. The intensification of residential use through the

subdivision of existing properties, including the creation of houses inmultiple occupation,

will not be supported.

The city council will support, in principle, development that would:

involve replacement dwellings (at a density no greater than the density of any

dwellings demolished);

improve the mix of uses, including, in particular, increases in open space and other

community facilities;

complement and support any community regeneration projects; and

improve connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists to the City Core and, in particular,

to North Westgate.

The Stanley Recreation Ground will be protected and enhanced with new facilities for

local users. Proposals for development adjoining the Recreation Ground should help to

reconnect it to the rest of the city centre and ensure activity and overlooking across the

open space to enhance the sense of safety.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas 5

4991



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Policy Areas5

50 92



6.1 Transport

Introduction

6.1.1 This section sets out the transport strategy required to support the delivery of the City Centre

Plan.

6.1.2 The levels of growth and major regeneration proposed for the city centre will have a significant

impact on the wider strategic transport network and will require transport masterplanning to

ensure improvements are in place to support growth.

Local Transport Policy

6.1.3 The main transport policies and infrastructure requirements are set out in the Peterborough

Long Term Transport Strategy (2011 to 2026) (LTTS) and Local Transport Plan 3 (2011 to

2016) (LTP3), both of which were adopted in April 2011.

6.1.4 The LTTS covers the same 15 year timescale as the Core Strategy and this City Centre Plan.

The overall growth targets and broad locations for growth set out in the Core Strategy, including

city centre issues, were used to assess the transport situation and future impact on the network.

6.1.5 The LTP3 sets out the more short-term transport policies, infrastructure requirements, funding

and timescales. It also defines a spatial strategy for the authority area, as set out

diagrammatically below. Two zones align with this City Centre Plan: the ‘city centre’ has the

same boundary as this City Centre Plan; and the smaller sub-section called the ‘core’ has the

same boundary as the City Core Policy Area in this Plan.

6.1.6 The LTTS and LTP3 have policies and proposals covering a wide range of matters, only some

of which have ‘land use’ implications. Taking the land use principles and policies set out in

the LTTS and LTP3, an overarching land use Transport Vision has been prepared for this City

Centre Plan and is set out on the following page.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Transport 6

5193



City Centre Transport Vision

In 2026 the city centre will have become cleaner and greener with improved local air quality.

There will be fewer non-stopping vehicles passing through the city centre and fewer vehicles will

enter the city core. Public transport will continue to increase, helped by improved transport

interchanges and a transformed railway station.

Additional priority will be given to pedestrians in the city centre and the city core. Particular

attention will be given to improving accessibility for all including those with disabilities. There

will be improved facilities for cyclists to encourage them to access the city centre and city core,

and to provide alternative routes to bypass the city core for those on through trips. More high

quality, attractive and accessible public realm will be provided, including improved wayfinding,

making it easier for pedestrians to find the quickest, easiest and most pleasant routes through

and around the city centre.

Bourges Boulevard will no longer act as a barrier to movement. It will be transformed to give

greater priority to pedestrians, with additional pedestrian crossing points created, including a

new landmark entrance from the railway station to the city core. Phase by phase, the number of

non-stopping vehicles using Bourges Boulevard will fall.

A transformation of car parking provision will have been undertaken, based on the principle of

relocating car parks out of the city core towards the edge of the city centre. Priority parking (and

charging points) will be given to low emission vehicles or other more sustainable vehicles and

vehicle users. New parking provision will allow for greater efficiency of land use, with less surface

parking than today. New development will take advantage of this freed-up space.

The River Nene and its banks will become a transport gateway, for boats, pedestrians and

cyclists.

Retail and other commercial activity will continue to have access for service vehicles, but

arrangements for this will be carefully controlled to minimise unnecessary disturbance to the

public.

6.1.7 The delivery of the vision will require investment from a wide range of sources. However,

development proposals can also play their part, by complying with the following policy.

Policy CC11

Transport

Within the area of the City Centre Plan, all development which has transport implications

will be expected to make a contribution to the delivery of the City Centre Transport Vision

set out above (or any subsequent vision set out in a more recent Peterborough Local

Transport Plan). This will be in the form of on-site provision, such as the creation of a

high quality public realm; the provision of cycling infrastructure and/or attractive pedestrian

facilities; and the making of appropriate accessibility improvements for people with

disabilities; as well as off-site contributions (by way of a planning obligation) where these

are necessary as a direct result of the proposed development.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Transport6

52 94



Development which would have a negative impact on the ability of the council to achieve

the City Centre Transport Vision will not be supported.

The council will resist the provision of additional car parking spaces within the City Core

Policy Area. In this Policy Area, the provision of spaces as part of a new development

may be allowed if there is a planning obligation, or other legally binding commitment, to

make an equivalent (or greater) reduction in the number of spaces elsewhere in the Policy

Area.

Elsewhere in the city centre (i.e. outside the City Core Policy Area), new residential

development within Use Classes C3 and C4 will be required to make provision for car

parking spaces in accordance with policy PP13 and Appendix A of the Peterborough

Planning Policies DPD. There will be nominimum requirement for the provision of parking

spaces in association with any other type of development (i.e. other than C3 and C4) and

developers will be encouraged to explore the shared use of existing spaces or rely on

spaces in public car parks to meet the needs of their development before the council will

consider allowing any on-site provision of spaces. The council will only allow additional

on-site or off-site spaces if the developer has provided a full justification for such a need

(for example, on the basis of an essential operational requirement which cannot be met

by the use of existing spaces off the site).

Explanatory text for the Vision

6.1.8 Pedestrian Connections: The city centre has a number of barriers to pedestrian movement.

The council will seek to remove these barriers to help people move around the city centre

easily, in comfort and feel safe and secure. Part of this improvement will be through enhanced

public realm and part through the improvements to pedestrian footways and pedestrian zones.

6.1.9 Accessibility: The city centre should be as accessible as possible for all. The council will

consult with disability forums and other disability organisations, the RNIB and other local and

national organisations on city centre and city core proposals to ensure that the maximum

benefit to disabled people can be incorporated into schemes.

6.1.10 Cycling Provision: Infrastructure to support an increase in cyclists entering the city centre

will be a priority for the council. Increased cycling leads to better air quality, less need for

wasteful car parking spaces, less traffic on the city centre roads and healthier lifestyles.

6.1.11 However, the city centre should be regarded as a destination rather then a thoroughfare. This

means cyclists are encouraged to get access into the city centre and core area but not to cycle

through it. For those wanting to pass through, a number of city cycle routes will be created to

allow cyclists to bypass the city centre.

6.1.12 Bourges Boulevard: Bourges Boulevard was constructed as a dual carriageway during the

new town expansion of the city and designed to contain the city centre. Peterborough city

centre has since grown and expanded and it is now bisected rather than contained by Bourges

Boulevard. This has led to access problems for residents and visitors, constraint on further

growth and a lack of cohesion of the wider city centre. A number of options will be considered

to improve Bourges Boulevard and the access points to the city core.

6.1.13 There are limited pedestrian and cycling crossing points. Visitors arriving at the railway station

are forced into subways beneath the roundabout to access Cowgate and the city core. New

pedestrian crossings will be provided at strategic points along Bourges Boulevard and the

road itself enhanced through public realm improvements to create a much more attractive

route into and through the city centre.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Transport 6

5395



6.1.14 A phased approach to the treatment of Bourges Boulevard will be taken during the plan period.

As development comes forward on sites adjacent to the road, additional pedestrian facilities

will be provided. As a long-termmeasure, highway space will be reconfigured to enable greater

priority for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport.

6.1.15 Car Parking: In the city centre there are over 8,800 publicly available car parking spaces,

providing plentiful and affordable parking, making the city centre highly accessible. However,

car parks, and particularly surface parks, occupy a significant area, limiting land available for

development. The city’s car parks are dispersed around the city centre and city core which

directs traffic to inappropriate roads.

6.1.16 Surface car parks within the city centre, and particularly in the City Core (excluding Car Haven)

- for example, sites CC3.1 and CC3.3 - will be consolidated in the city centre to provide areas

for new development, whilst maintaining a level of car parking consistent with current provision.

6.1.17 The council will develop a parking strategy that:

supports the vitality and viability of the city centre by providing, maintaining and managing

an appropriate supply of parking space, for all motorised vehicles (cars, coaches, goods

vehicles and motorcycles)

supports and promotes the use of more sustainable modes, including vehicles with lower

emissions (smaller engine size), low emission propulsion and multiple occupancy

makes more land available for development and reduces pressures on both car parking

spaces in the city centre and the city core road network

except for the provision of parking bays for the disabled, reduces publicly available spaces

in the core through relocation to the periphery of the city centre.

6.1.18 The provision of park and ride or other modal interchanges will be explored to reduce parking

demand and the number of vehicles entering the city centre.

6.1.19 The provision of additional car parking spaces within the City Core Policy Area will not be

supported. Elsewhere in the city centre for non residential development there will be a

requirement to make use of existing public car parks before the provision of additional car

parking spaces will be considered. This offers a flexible approach for each site and particularly

Opportunity Areas.

6.1.20 The council will encourage provision of coach parking facilities to attract visitors to the city

centre. Within the Opportunities Areas where there is a mix of uses including leisure (D2) the

developer will be required to provide coach or bus parking spaces as set out in Appendix a

(PP13) of the Planning Policies DPD. Individual parking requirements will be assessed for

each application based on the mix of uses proposed.

6.1.21 The River Nene: The council is looking to improve mooring and boating leisure facilities as

well as access from the river to the city core and other locations.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Transport6

54 96



7.1 Infrastructure

7.1.1 It is recognised that infrastructure is required to support and in some cases enable the scale

and location of growth set out in the Core Strategy. This includes up to 4,300 new dwellings

and 3.5 hectares of employment land located within the City Centre Plan boundary. The

infrastructure types and projects vary, and are inclusive of transport, education, health and

utilities, such as electricity, water and waste.

7.1.2 All have been taken into account within the Peterborough Integrated Development Programme

(IDP) (2009) which provided a full breakdown of infrastructure needs based on the Core

Strategy.

7.1.3 Since 2009, and the subsequent adoption of the Peterborough Core Strategy, development

has progressed although in some areas the rate of change has slowed due to the recession.

The IDP has subsequently been updated to reflect this, and now forms the basis of its successor

document known as the Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS).

7.1.4 The Infrastructure Delivery Schedule (IDS) is a live document produced to identify the range

of infrastructure types and projects required to support growth. Importantly, it identifies likely

funding sources, delivery agents, timescales and priorities, and forms an important supporting

document in relation to the council’s planned adoption of a Community Infrastructure Levy

(CIL) Charging Schedule in 2014. The document is produced through close working with key

partners and infrastructure providers and will be regularly updated to reflect project delivery

and change.

7.1.5 The mechanisms for requiring and encouraging infrastructure delivery include existing policy,

planning conditions, S106 agreements and planning contributions (via the Peterborough

Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme SPD); and in future the use of CIL funds. These

mechanisms are broadly set out in the Peterborough Core Strategy (section 6.6, policies CS12

and CS13) and for this reason is not repeated here.

7.1.6 The council is also preparing to adopt a Planning Contributions SPD to coincide with the

introduction of a CIL Charging Schedule, primarily to make clear the relationship between CIL

and S106 for the purpose of infrastructure delivery.

7.1.7 The city centre by definition is the location of a number of key existing infrastructure networks,

items and future projects, which relate to the city’s wider growth, as well as the growth

specifically earmarked for the city centre. Such infrastructure includes roads, parking, bridges,

sewerage, railway station, the athletics track, the museum etc. many of which will need to be

enhanced or upgraded to support the increase in the city’s population.

7.1.8 Future housing development in the city centre is expected to result in a notable increase in

population. It is important that these residents have access to health, education and other

community facilities in convenient locations to minimise the need to travel. The provision of

primary school places within the Central area is a pressure identified within the Draft Schools

Organisation Plan 2013-18. A number of potential projects to address this are itemised within

the IDS, the precise timing of which will be dependent on the pace and precise location of

proposed growth within and close to the City Centre Plan area.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Infrastructure 7

5597



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Infrastructure7

56 98



8.1 Implementation and Monitoring

8.1.1 This section outlines how the City Centre Plan and its policies will be implemented and

monitored. It seeks to show how each policy will be delivered, by whom and when. In some

cases, this will be via other policies, such as those in the Core Strategy, or through the

production of Supplementary Planning Documents for specific areas of the city centre.

Implementation

8.1.2 Implementation of the City Centre Plan will be dependent on the provision of necessary

infrastructure such as roads, schools, and water and electricity capacity. The infrastructure

requirements are explained in the previous chapter, which identifies the key infrastructure to

be secured and demonstrates that there is a good understanding of infrastructure and

reasonable prospects of timely provision, to support the planned growth of the city centre.

Monitoring

8.1.3 Monitoring is a key element of the planning system as it allows the council to keep a check

on targets and delivery. It allows the council and other partners the opportunity to identify any

problems in the delivery of the policies and identify the need for intervention or management

actions. It also highlights if there is a need to review any policies.

8.1.4 The council carries out comprehensive monitoring of all DPDs, which is reported on an annual

basis for a year which begins on 1 April and ends on 31 March. The results for the monitoring

of all DPDs are brought together through the Peterborough Monitoring Report.

8.1.5 The overall housing and employment requirements for the city centre are established through

the Core Strategy. Policies CS2 and CS3 set the targets and this City Centre Plan identifies

the available land to meet the targets. Therefore, the housing and employment requirements

for the city centre will be monitored in accordance with the indicators and targets set out in

chapter 7 of the Core Strategy for policies CS2 and CS3.

8.1.6 Any housing or employment areas identified in policies CC3 to CC10 will bemonitored alongside

all sites allocated in the Site Allocations DPD. The results of the housing and employment

monitoring will be broken down by growth zones and will include a figure specifically for the

City Centre.

8.1.7 The following tables show how the City Centre Plan policies will be implemented andmonitored.

As most of these subjects are covered by other city wide policies, such as those in the Core

Strategy or Planning Policies DPD, they will be monitored using the indicators and targets

which have already been adopted in those plans.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring 8

5799



C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
S
tr
a
te
g
y

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
1
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
o
s
t
to
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
y

C
S
1
0

T
h
ro
u
g
h
th
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
th
e
p
o
lic
ie
s
in
th
e
C
o
re

S
tr
a
te
g
y
a
n
d
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
lic
ie
s
D
P
D
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
b
e
lo
w

T
h
ro
u
g
h
th
e
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n

o
f
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
th
a
t
n
e
w
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
m
e
e
ts
th
e
la
te
s
t

d
e
s
ig
n
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
in
c
lu
d
in
g
th
o
s
e
re
la
ti
n
g
to

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
a
n
d
e
n
e
rg
y
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
a
s
w
e
ll
a
s
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
is
s
u
e
s
fo
r
d
is
a
b
le
d
.

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t
C
it
y
T
ru
s
t

(P
E
C
T
)

G
re
a
te
r
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip

(G
P
P
)

P
u
b
lic
a
n
d
p
ri
v
a
te
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
0
,
C
S
1
1
,
C
S
1
6
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
,
P
P
2

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
2
R
e
ta
il

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

R
e
lia
n
c
e
o
n
p
ri
v
a
te
s
e
c
to
r

fu
n
d
in
g
a
n
d
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r
in
te
re
s
t

L
a
c
k
o
f
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
r
in
te
re
s
t
in

re
ta
il
s
it
e
s

O
u
t
o
f
c
e
n
tr
e
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts

re
d
u
c
in
g
th
e
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
to

s
u
p
p
o
rt
c
it
y
c
e
n
tr
e
re
ta
il

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
y

C
S
1
5

T
h
ro
u
g
h
th
e
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n

o
f
p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

A
n
n
u
a
l
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
o
f
re
ta
il
fl
o
o
r
s
p
a
c
e
a
n
d
re
fr
e
s
h
e
s

o
f
th
e
re
ta
il
s
tu
d
y

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
u
b
lic
a
n
d
p
ri
v
a
te
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring8

58 100



P
o
li
c
y
A
re
a
s

8
.1
.8

T
h
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
ta
b
le
s
s
h
o
w
h
o
w
th
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
e
a
c
h
p
o
lic
y
a
re
a
w
ill
b
e
im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
a
n
d
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
.
A
s
m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
,
th
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
a
n
y
s
it
e
s
o
r

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
A
re
a
s
w
ill
b
e
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
v
ia
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s
,
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
C
S
2
a
n
d
C
S
3
.

8
.1
.9

D
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
in
th
e
p
o
lic
y
a
re
a
w
ill
re
ly
o
n
p
ri
v
a
te
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
fu
n
d
in
g
,
a
n
d
th
e
w
ili
n
g
e
s
s
o
f
la
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
to
m
a
k
e
th
e
ir
la
n
d

a
v
a
ila
b
le
.

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
3
C
it
y
C
o
re
P
o
li
c
y
A
re
a

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
d
if
fe
re
n
t

la
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
o
w
in
g
s
m
a
ll

p
a
rc
e
ls
o
f
la
n
d

F
ra
g
m
e
n
te
d
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

L
a
c
k
o
f
in
te
re
s
t
in
re
ta
il
in
C
it
y

C
e
n
tr
e

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
,

C
S
1
6
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8

N
o
rt
h
W
e
s
tg
a
te
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
c
o
m
in
g
fo
rw
a
rd

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
o
f
w
id
e
r
p
u
b
lic
re
a
lm
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
to
B
o
u
rg
e
s
B
o
u
le
v
a
rd

M
a
s
te
r
P
la
n
fo
r
N
o
rt
h
W
e
s
tg
a
te
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
A
re
a
a
n
d

N
o
rt
h
m
in
s
te
r
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
A
re
a

C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
A
re
a
A
p
p
ra
is
a
l

C
a
th
e
d
ra
l
P
la
n

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs

E
n
g
lis
h
H
e
ri
ta
g
e

D
e
a
n
&
C
h
a
p
te
r,
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h

C
a
th
e
d
ra
l

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
,
C
S
1
6
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
7

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring 8

59101



P
o
li
c
y
C
C
4
R
a
il
w
a
y
S
ta
ti
o
n
P
o
li
c
y
A
re
a

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

N
u
m
b
e
r
o
f
d
if
fe
re
n
t

la
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
o
w
in
g
s
e
p
a
ra
te

p
a
rc
e
ls
o
f
la
n
d

F
ra
g
m
e
n
te
d
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

C
o
s
t
o
f
s
it
e
c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
a
n
d

re
m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n

L
a
c
k
o
f
in
te
re
s
t
in
o
ff
ic
e

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4

H
o
s
p
it
a
l
S
P
D

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
to
B
o
u
rg
e
s
B
o
u
le
v
a
rd

H
o
s
p
it
a
l
–
o
ff
s
it
e
h
ig
h
w
a
y
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

S
it
e
c
le
a
ra
n
c
e
a
n
d
re
m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t
th
a
t
fi
ts
a
ro
u
n
d
c
o
n
s
tr
a
in
ts
o
f
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l

ra
ilw
a
y
la
n
d

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs

N
e
tw
o
rk
R
a
il

N
H
S
H
o
s
p
it
a
l
T
ru
s
t
(
a
n
d
n
e
w
la
n
d

o
w
n
e
rs
)

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
,
C
S
1
6
,
C
S
1
7
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
7

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
5
R
iv
e
rg
a
te
P
o
li
c
y
A
re
a

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

Im
p
a
c
t
o
f
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
re
ta
il

fl
o
o
rs
p
a
c
e
a
t
N
o
rt
h
W
e
s
tg
a
te

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

L
o
n
g
te
rm
re
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra
ti
o
n
o
f
R
iv
e
rg
a
te
g
y
ra
to
ry
–
b
u
t

n
o
t
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
to
m
e
e
t
p
o
lic
y

N
e
e
d
fo
r
S
P
D
o
r
m
a
s
te
rp
la
n

T
h
ro
u
g
h
d
o
w
n
g
ra
d
in
g
o
f
B
o
u
rg
e
s
B
o
u
le
v
a
rd
,

im
p
ro
v
in
g
p
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
a
c
c
e
s
s
to
th
e
a
re
a

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs

A
S
D
A

U
N
E
X

R
iv
e
rg
a
te
C
e
n
tr
e

P
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

P
o
lic
e

C
o
u
rt
s

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
5

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring8

60 102



P
o
li
c
y
C
C
6
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
S
o
u
th

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

L
a
c
k
o
f
in
te
re
s
ti
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
,

C
S
1
6
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8
,
C
S
1
9
,

C
S
2
2

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
a
jo
in
t
v
e
n
tu
re
c
o
m
p
a
n
y
to
s
u
p
p
o
rt
th
e

c
o
u
n
c
il
in
th
e
d
e
liv
e
ry
o
f
th
e
F
le
tt
o
n
Q
u
a
y
s
s
it
e

F
lo
o
d
ri
s
k
a
n
d
m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
.

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

J
o
in
t
V
e
n
tu
re
C
o
m
p
a
n
y

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs
–
R
a
ilw
o
rl
d

M
ilt
o
n
E
s
ta
te
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
U
n
it
e
d
F
C

E
D
F

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
5
,
C
S
1
6
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8
,
C
S
1
9
,
C
S
2
2
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
5

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
7
R
iv
e
rs
id
e
N
o
rt
h

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

L
a
c
k
o
f
fu
n
d
in
g

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8
,

C
S
1
9
,
C
S
2
2

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

W
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
V
iv
a
c
it
y
o
n
p
ro
v
is
io
n
o
f
n
e
w
s
p
o
rt
s

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

V
iv
a
c
it
y

S
p
o
rt
E
n
g
la
n
d

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
1
7
,
C
S
1
8
,
C
S
1
9
,
C
S
2
2
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
5

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring 8

61103



P
o
li
c
y
C
C
8
F
e
n
g
a
te
S
o
u
th

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
r'
s
la
c
k
o
f
in
te
re
s
t
in

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
s
it
e
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
p
la
n

p
e
ri
o
d

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
2
2

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
o
f
c
o
m
m
it
te
d
h
o
u
s
in
g
s
it
e
a
t
P
o
tt
e
rs
W
a
y

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
rs

M
ilt
o
n
E
s
ta
te
s

K
ie
r
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l
c
o
s
t
o
f
re
m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n

a
n
d
fl
o
o
d
ri
s
k

O
u
tc
o
m
e
o
f
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
a
n
d
/o
r

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t
u
n
d
e
r

H
a
b
it
a
ts
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
2
2
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
5

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
9
B
o
o
n
g
a
te

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

L
a
n
d
o
w
n
e
r'
s
la
c
k
o
f
in
te
re
s
t
in

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
s
it
e
d
u
ri
n
g
th
e
p
la
n

p
e
ri
o
d

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
4

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l
G
ri
d

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
4

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring8

62 104



P
o
li
c
y
C
C
1
0
C
it
y
N
o
rt
h

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

P
la
n
n
in
g
p
e
rm
is
s
io
n
s

g
ra
n
te
d
fo
r
s
u
b
d
iv
is
io
n
o
f

s
in
g
le
d
w
e
lli
n
g
-
n
il

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

P
a
rk
C
o
n
s
e
rv
a
ti
o
n
A
re
a
A
p
p
ra
is
a
l

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
ri
v
a
te
a
n
d
p
u
b
lic
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

H
e
a
lt
h

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
ie
s

C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
6
,
C
S
1
5
,

C
S
1
7

"O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
C
a
n
-D
o
"
re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
p
ro
je
c
ts

P
o
lic
e

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
2
,
C
S
3
,
C
S
4
,
C
S
6
,
C
S
1
5
,
C
S
1
7
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
3

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

P
o
li
c
y
C
C
1
1
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

R
is
k
s

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

In
d
ic
a
to
rs
a
n
d
T
a
rg
e
ts

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n

K
e
y
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s

L
a
c
k
o
f
fu
n
d
in
g
fo
r
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

p
ro
je
c
ts

A
s
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
p
o
lic
y

C
S
1
4

T
h
ro
u
g
h
c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
a
n
d
d
e
te
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
o
f

p
la
n
n
in
g
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

J
o
in
t
w
o
rk
in
g
w
it
h
p
ri
v
a
te
o
p
e
ra
to
rs
o
f
p
u
b
lic
c
a
r
p
a
rk
s

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
C
it
y
C
o
u
n
c
il

P
u
b
lic
a
n
d
p
ri
v
a
te
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs

L
o
c
a
l
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
o
p
e
ra
to
rs

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
P
D
:
C
S
1
4
P
la
n
n
in
g
P
o
li
c
ie
s
D
P
D
:
P
P
1
2
,
P
P
1
3
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
L
o
c
a
l
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
P
la
n
3
:

C
h
a
p
te
r
1
3

O
th
e
r
R
e
le
v
a
n
t
P
o
li
c
ie
s

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring 8

63105



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Implementation and Monitoring8

64 106



Appendix A: Local Plan Policies to be Replaced

Prior to the adoption of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD, the most significant part of the statutory

‘development plan’ for the Peterborough area was the Peterborough Local Plan (First Replacement)

(adopted in July 2005). The majority, but not all, of the policies in that Plan were saved by a Direction

from the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government beyond July 2008. Those which

were not explicitly saved were therefore deleted and no longer formed part of the development plan.

Subsequently, the Core Strategy DPD (February 2011), the Site Allocations DPD (February 2012)

and Planning Policies DPD (December 2012) have, upon adoption, deleted most of the saved 2005

Local Plan policies.

This City Centre Plan is proposing to delete the remaining 14 Local Plan policies, and these are set

out in the table below.

Policies in the Peterborough Local Plan (First

Replacement) 2005 which are to be replaced

City Centre Plan Policy

CC1 - Sustainable Development

CC1, CC2, CC3CC2 - Retail

CC10CC3 - City Core

CC12, CC13CC4 - Railway Station

CC5 - Rivergate

CC11CC6 - Riverside South

CC6CC7 - Riverside North

CC8 - Fengate South

CC9 - Boongate

CC10 - City North

CC15, CC16CC11 - Transport

CC7, CC9, CC19, T12These policies in the Local Plan (First

Replacement) 2005 are deleted as they

are no longer necessary or are

superseded by national policy

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix A: Local Plan Policies to be Replaced

65107



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix A: Local Plan Policies to be Replaced

66 108



Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

This Appendix explains how the City Centre Plan fits with other plans and strategies; how these have

influenced the production of the Plan; and how the policies and proposals aim to deliver wider

objectives.

National Planning Policy

Any DPD must be consistent with the principles and policies set out in the Government’s National

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). At the heart of the NPPF is the requirement for all development

to be sustainable and there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.

The City Centre Plan has been produced to reflect this presumption in favour of sustainable

development. It has been separately assessed against a wide ranging sustainability framework,

looking at the social, environmental and economic implications of the Plan. This assessment process

is contained in a separate City Centre Sustainability Appraisal Report.

Local Planning Policy

The City Centre Plan forms part of the council’s wider statutory development plan. It is one of the

collection of DPDs to be taken into consideration in the determination of planning applications.

Figure 1 provides a basic summary of the documents that make up the wider development plan for

Peterborough, and shows where the City Centre Plan fits within this context.

Figure 1

You will find definitions of the terms used in Figure 1 in the glossary (Appendix D).

Further information on the documents listed above can be found in the council’s Local Development

Scheme, which can be viewed at:

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/planning_and_building/planning_policy/

planning_policy_framework/local_development_scheme.aspx

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

67109



Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (February 2011)

The overarching plan for Peterborough is the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. This sets the overall

strategic vision and objectives for Peterborough and the broad principles for the location of new

development. The Core Strategy establishes the ‘headlines’ for development to be accommodated

within the City Centre Plan area. The City Centre Plan sits beneath the Core Strategy and provides

more detailed planning policies and designations for the city centre.

The Core Strategy has a number of particularly important policies and ‘headlines’ to which this City

Centre Plan must conform, and expand upon, as necessary. Policy CS4 is the most relevant as it

sets the broad requirements for the city centre. The policies of particular relevance to the city centre

are summarised as follows:

Applicable details for the City Centre, which this plan must conform to

Core

Strategy

Policy

Approximately 4,300 new dwellings in the city centre (at 1 April 2009)CS2

Equivalent of at least 3.5 hectares of employment land; mixed use development in

the city centre encouraged

CS3

Detailed policy on the city centre, including:CS4

City centre to be developed and maintained as a centre of regional significance

Major cultural and leisure developments encouraged

Confirms the 4,300 dwelling target

Promoted for employment, especially B1 uses

Areas of change identified, but not limited to, South Bank, Hospital site, land

beside the River Nene, railway station area, land for university

Public realm and natural environment improvements

Protection of historic environment

Enhance the city centre in order to improve connectivity and reduce need to travelCS14

Peterborough City Centre (Primary Shopping Area) identified as top in the hierarchy

of retail centres. Preference for all comparison goods retail proposals to be directed

to the city centre. Some additional convenience floorspace.

CS15

Protection of views of the cathedralCS17

Focus of new culture, leisure and tourism facilities in the city centre, which:CS18

Make the most of existing assets such as the river

Promote a regional multi-use venue for large scale events

Improve the evening and night time economy

Make use of sustainable travel modes (walking, cycling, public transport and

water taxis)

Support the shared use of any university facilities such as sport and libraries

Large attractions should be located in the city centre

Promotion of the River Nene as a sub-regional corridor for biodiversity and landscape

retention, restoration and creation; and the promotion of access, navigation and

recreation.

CS19

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

68 110



All other policies in the Core Strategy apply across the whole city council area, including the city

centre, particularly policies CS12 Infrastructure and CS16 Urban Design.

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (April 2012)

The Peterborough Site Allocations DPD allocates sites for future housing and employment development

to meet the growth requirements set by the Core Strategy. It applies to all of the local authority area

except the city centre. The document identifies the boundary of the city centre and the area to be

covered by the City Centre DPD.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (December 2012)

The Planning Policies DPD sets out the detailed policies and standards against which planning

applications will be assessed. It applies throughout the local authority area; therefore many of the

policies are relevant to any development which may be proposed in the city centre. There is no need

to repeat policies in this Plan, but attention is drawn to specific policies from the Planning Policies

DPD whenever relevant. Policies of particular relevance are as follows:

PP2 - Design Quality

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development

PP13 - Parking Standards

PP14 - Open Space Standards

PP15 - Nene Valley

PP17 - Heritage Assets

PP20 - Development on Land affected by Contamination

Peterborough Policies Map (December 2012)

The Policies Map is a separate document, which forms part of the statutory development plan. It

shows the location and extent of sites allocated for development, and areas within which, or outside

which, planning policies will apply.

The Policies Map will be updated each time that the council adopts a DPD which has policies for

specific geographical areas. The current Policies Map was adopted alongside the Planning Policies

DPD in December 2012.

The City Centre Plan only applies within the defined city centre boundary as shown on Inset 2 of the

Policies Map. Therefore the adoption of the City Centre Plan will only result in the replacement of

Inset 2.

Peterborough District Hospital Site SPD (June 2010)

An SPD was produced for the former District Hospital site to provide detailed guidance for the

redevelopment of this large and important part of the city centre. The hospital site is located on the

western edge of the city centre and has been identified as an Opportunity Area.

Policy CC4 (for the Railway Station Policy Area) requires that development proposals for the Hospital

Opportunity Area (site CC4.1) should be in general conformity with the requirements of the SPD.

Peterborough Flood and Water Management SPD (December 2012)

The Flood andWater Management SPD supplements policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy

DPD and policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD. The SPD provides further advice

for developers for city centre sites.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

69111



Peterborough Shop Front Design Guidance SPD

This is an SPD providing guidance on the appropriate design of shop fronts, signage, external security

shutters and canopies. It supports policy PP11 (Shop Frontages, Security Shutters and Canopies)

of the Planning Policies DPD and policy CS16 (Urban Design and the Public Realm) of the Core

Strategy DPD. It applies throughout Peterborough, including the area covered by this City Centre

Plan.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix B: Relationship with Other Documents

70 112



Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy Requirements

This Appendix explains how the provisionmade for new residential development in this Plan contributes

to the overall requirements established by the Peterborough Core Strategy.

Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy (dealing with the location of new residential development) makes

provision for approximately 25,500 additional dwellings across the local authority area between 1

April 2009 and 31March 2026 and divides this figure between various areas of the city and surrounding

villages, including approximately 4,300 dwellings for the city centre.

As the Core Strategy housing figures have a base date of 1 April 2009, the figures need updating to

reflect completions that have taken place and permissions that have been granted over the last four

years.

The updated Core Strategy housing figures are summarised in Table 4 (overleaf). The table is split

into three rows. The first row updates and presents housing figures for the local authority area,

excluding the city centre. These are based on actual completions and permissions and the indicative

dwelling figures for sites allocated in the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD. The second row shows

similarly updated figures for the city centre only (including the dwellings proposed on sites in this

Plan). The final row shows the total for the whole local authority area and demonstrates how the Core

Strategy target will be met.

The second column of the table presents the approximate dwelling requirement figure from the Core

Strategy, for which provision must be made over period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2026. The third

column provides details of the gross dwellings actually gained during the years from 1 April 2009 to

31 March 2013. Once these have been deducted from the original Core Strategy requirements from

1 April 2009, a revised Core Strategy requirement for 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2026 appears in the

fourth column.

The column headed “Committed Sites at 1 April 2013” provides details of the number of dwellings

committed. Commitments are defined as dwellings which remain to be completed on sites under

construction, dwellings which have full planning permission and dwellings which have outline planning

permission as at 31 March 2013. The 2013 Housing Monitoring Report provides information on all

committed sites.

The column headed “Required New Dwellings” shows the additional dwellings that are required in

order to meet the Core Strategy target once the completions and commitments at 31 March 2013

have been subtracted from the original 2009 Core Strategy target. This identifies the approximate

requirement for new dwellings that should be included in this Plan (3,407 dwellings).

For the City Centre, the column headed “New Allocations” shows the number of dwellings that are

assumed to be deliverable from sites that are allocated in this Plan. These are sites without permission

at 31 March 2013. The figure for the rest of the local authority area is the total number of dwellings

from allocated sites in the Site Allocations DPD without planning permission at 31 March 2013. This

figure is taken from the Peterborough Housing Monitoring Report 2013.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy

Requirements

71113



T
a
b
le
4
:
D
w
e
ll
in
g
F
ig
u
re
s
fo
r
th
e
C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e
-
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
w
it
h
C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y
D
w
e
ll
in
g
R
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts

D
if
fe
re
n
c
e
fr
o
m

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y

(a
d
ju
s
te
d
2
0
1
3

to
2
0
2
6
)

T
o
ta
l

D
w
e
ll
in
g
s

2
0
1
3
to
2
0
2
6

N
e
w

A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d

N
e
w

D
w
e
ll
in
g
s

C
o
m
m
it
te
d

S
it
e
s
a
t1

A
p
ri
l
2
0
1
3

C
o
re
S
tr
a
te
g
y

(a
s
a
d
ju
s
te
d

2
0
1
3
to
2
0
2
6
)

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
1

A
p
ri
l
2
0
0
9
to
3
1

M
a
rc
h
2
0
1
3

(g
ro
s
s
)

C
o
re

S
tr
a
te
g
y

2
0
0
9
to
2
0
2
6

+
1
,2
1
2

1
9
,4
0
7

1
1
,6
0
5
*

1
0
,3
9
3

7
,8
0
2

1
8
,1
9
5

3
,0
0
5

2
1
,2
0
0

L
o
c
a
lA
u
th
o
ri
ty

A
re
a
E
x
c
lu
d
in
g

C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e

-9
6
4

3
,0
0
7

2
,4
4
3
**

3
,4
0
7

5
6
4

3
,9
7
1

3
2
9

4
,3
0
0

C
it
y
C
e
n
tr
e

+
2
4
8

2
2
,4
1
4

1
4
,0
4
8

1
3
,8
0
0

8
,3
6
6

2
2
,1
6
6

3
,3
3
4

2
5
,5
0
0

T
o
ta
l

*
S
it
e
s
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
in
th
e
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
S
it
e
A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
D
P
D
w
it
h
o
u
t
p
la
n
n
in
g
p
e
rm
is
s
io
n

**
B
a
s
e
d
o
n
th
e
m
id
-p
o
in
t
o
f
d
w
e
lli
n
g
n
u
m
b
e
rs
w
h
e
re
th
e
re
is
a
ra
n
g
e
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
in
th
is
p
la
n
.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy

Requirements

72 114



The column headed “Total Dwellings 2013 to 2026” shows the sum of the dwellings in “Committed

Sites at 1 April 2013” and “New Allocations”. The difference between the Total Dwellings in this column

and those in the “Core Strategy (as adjusted 2013 to 2026)” column are presented in the final column.

For the city centre, this reveals the extent to which dwellings from sites allocated in this Plan would

meet the approximate requirements from the Core Strategy.

Although the dwelling numbers from allocated sites in the city centre fall short of the approximate

Core Strategy requirements, the overall requirement to provide 25,500 new homes by 2026 across

Peterborough as a whole will be more than met during the plan period.

The reduced anticipated number of dwellings coming forward also reflects the market realities. Since

the latter stages of finalising the Core Strategy (around 2009/2010) the market for flats and high

density residential development schemes has dramatically fallen. It is no longer realistic to expect

developers to deliver high density flat-based development.

The lower level of housing is more realistic, will still deliver the overall Core Strategy housing target

and will still lead to a transformation of the City Centre into one which has a significant residential

population.

In chapter 5 of this Plan, each Policy Area includes a list of allocated sites, some of which may already

have planning permission (at 1 April 2013). For sites where no development has started, the indicative

number of dwellings is the number of dwellings for which permission was granted. Where development

has already started (at 1 April 2013), the figure is the remaining number of dwellings still to be

completed in accordance with the permission.

For the Opportunity Areas and other allocated sites without permission, the indicative dwelling figure

is an estimate based on the size of the site, the potential mix of uses and an assumption about density

and net developable area; in some cases this is based on information from prospective developers.

For the Opportunity Areas, the indicative number of dwellings is sometimes expressed as a range,

in order to allow for some flexibility in the mix of other uses.

It is important to note that the indicative numbers of dwellings for each Policy Area are used to

demonstrate how the approximate Core Strategy dwelling requirements can be met. It is emphasised

that the dwelling numbers are only “indicative”, and do not represent a fixed policy target for each

individual site unless otherwise stated.

Developers are encouraged to produce the most appropriate design-led solution, taking the mix of

uses, all national policies and local policies into account, in arriving at a total dwelling figure, and they

need not be constrained by a figure that appears in any of the policies in chapter 5.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy

Requirements

73115



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix C: Residential Development to meet Core Strategy

Requirements

74 116



Appendix D: Glossary

Adoption - the formal decision by the city council to approve the final version of a document, at the

end of all the preparation stages, bringing it into effect.

Amenity - a general term used to describe the tangible and intangible benefits or features associated

with a property or location, that contribute to its character, comfort, convenience or attractiveness.

Appropriate Assessment (AA) - a requirement of the European Habitats Directive. Its purpose is

to assess the impact of plans and projects on internationally designated nature conservation sites.

Biodiversity - all species of life on earth including plants and animals and the ecosystem of which

we are all part.

Brownfield Land (also known as Previously Developed Land) - land which is or was occupied

by a permanent structure, including the curtilage of the developed land and any associated fixed

surface infrastructure. Development of such land is preferable to development of greenfield land

under the sequential approach.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - A levy allowing the council to raise funds from owners or

developers of land undertaking new building projects in their area.

Compulsory PurchaseOrder (CPO) - power given to a local authority to obtain land for redevelopment

purposes. This may include development undertaken by the private sector.

Conservation Area - a formally designated area of special historic or architectural interest whose

character must be preserved or enhanced.

Core Strategy - a Development Plan Document (DPD) which contains the spatial vision, main

objectives and policies for managing the future development of the area.

Development Plan - see Statutory Development Plan.

Development Plan Document (DPD) - A Statutory Planning Document that sets out the spatial

planning strategy, policies and/or allocations of land for types of development across the whole, or

specific parts, of the LPA's area.

Examination - a form of independent public inquiry into the soundness of a submitted DPD, which

is chaired by an inspector appointed by the Secretary of State. After the examination has ended the

inspector produces a report which, if necessary, may includemain modifications to make the document

sound.

Infrastructure - a collective term which relates to all forms of essential services like electricity, water,

and road and rail provision.

Local Development Framework (LDF) - the collective term for the whole package of planning

documents which are produced by a local planning authority to provide the planning framework for

its area, including DPDs such as the Core Strategy, Planning Policies DPD and the City Centre DPD.

Local Development Scheme (LDS) - a document which sets out the local planning authority's

intentions and timetable for the preparation of new DPDs.

Local Planning Authority (LPA) - the local authority which has duties and powers under the planning

legislation. For the Peterborough area, this is Peterborough City Council.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix D: Glossary

75117



Monitoring Report - a report that must be produced by the local planning authority (often on an

annual basis) to explain how the the local development scheme is being implemented and the extent

to which policies in the LDF are being achieved.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - the government’s national planning policies for

England and how these are expected to be applied.

Previously Developed Land (PDL) - see Brownfield Land.

Policies Map - a map on an Ordnance Survey base map which shows where policies in DPDs apply.

For an interim period it will also show where saved policies from Local Plans apply. It needs to be

revised as each different DPD is adopted.

Statutory Development Plan - the overall term for a number of documents which, together, have a

particular status under the planning legislation in decision-making. The Development Plan includes

all adopted DPDs for the area.

Submission stage - the stage at which a DPD is sent to the Secretary of State as a prelude to its

examination, having previously been published for public inspection and formal representations.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) - A document which expands on policies or provides

further detail to policies contained in a DPD.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) - a formal, systematic process to assess the environmental, economic

and social effects of strategies and policies in a DPD from the start of preparation onwards. The

process includes the production of reports to explain the outcomes of the appraisal.

Sustainable Community Strategy - a document which plans for the future of Peterborough across

a wide range of topics, setting out a vision and a series of aspirations. The local strategic partnership

(Greater Peterborough Partnership) has responsibility for producing the document which sets out

four main priorities that all partners work towards. It does not form part of the LDF.

Sustainable Transport - can be any form of transport other than the private car. The term most

commonly relates to travel by bus, train or light rail, but walking and cycling are sustainable means

of transport as well.

Water Framework Directive (WFD) - a European Directive (2000/60/EC) that requires member

states to prevent any deterioration in the status of aquatic ecosystems and to make plans to protect

and improve water bodies to achieve 'good ecological status’. The Directive applies to all surface

freshwater bodies, groundwater, estuaries and coastal waters out to one mile.

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix D: Glossary

76 118



Appendix E: Submission Policies Map

The submission version of the City Centre DPD is accompanied by a Submission Policies Map.

The current version of the Peterborough Policies Map was adopted in December 2012. It consists of

a large map of the whole local authority area at a scale of 1:25,000, together with Inset maps.

Inset Map 1 is a map of the urban area of Peterborough which is printed on the back of the main

Policies Map. Inset Map 2 is a separate map of the city centre. There are separate maps (Insets 3

to 28) for the 25 villages.

The purpose of the Submission Policies Map is to show how the adopted map will be changed when

the City Centre Plan is adopted. It is important to note that the adoption of the City Centre Plan will

not replace the adopted Policies Map in its entirety. Firstly, it will only replace Inset Map 2 and secondly,

it will only replace certain elements, leaving the remainder unchanged.

The contents of the Submission Policies Map shows the following items from this City Centre Plan:

Policy Areas

Opportunity Areas

Primary Shopping Area

Primary Retail Frontages

Sites Allocated Primary for Residential Development

Nene Valley

These will replace the following items shown on Inset Map 2 of the adopted Policies Map:

Opportunity Areas

Central Retail Area

Primary Retail Frontages in City Centre

City Centre Residential Areas

Land Safeguarded for a Rail Link

The Embankment

Nene Valley

There are no other changes proposed. Therefore the following items will remain as shown on Inset

Map 2 of the adopted Policies Map.

City Centre Plan Boundary

Local Centre

Conservation Area

Building of Local Importance

Scheduled Monument

Areas of Historic Landscape or Parkland

Site of Local Nature Conservation Importance

Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix E: Submission Policies Map

77119



Peterborough City Council | City Centre Plan (Proposed Submission)

Appendix E: Submission Policies Map

78 120



1
2
1



1
2
2

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



1
2
3



1
2
4

T
h
is

 p
a
g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

 
COUNCIL  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 14(a) 

4 DECEMBER 2013  PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance 

 

Tel. 452361 

 
REVIEW OF PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL’S MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME – 
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES PANEL 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

 
FROM : Independent Members’ Allowances Panel Deadline date : N/A 

 

 
Council is requested to: 
 

1. Note the recommendations of the Independent Members’ Allowances Panel, as       
summarised in paragraph 3 below; and 

2. Determine the action it wishes to take in response to the recommendations contained within 
the report.  

 

 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

1.1 The Council has a statutory requirement to establish and maintain an Independent 
Members’ Allowances Panel. This Panel will broadly have the functions of providing 
the local authority with advice on its Members’ Allowances Scheme and the nature and 
level of allowances to be paid.  

 
1.2 The Council is requested to consider the recommendations of the Independent 

Members’ Allowances Panel, as outlined at paragraph 3 below, following its review of 
the Council’s current Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

 
1.3 The Council must ‘have regard’ to the Panel’s recommendations but may then 

determine what actions, if any, it wishes to take. 
 
2. BACKGROUND AND CONSULTATION 

 
2.1 The Panel met on a number of occasions during October 2013 in order to review the 

current Members’ Allowances Scheme. The Panel’s report, which is attached at 
Appendix A, sets out its findings and recommendations.  

 
2.2 All Members of the Council were invited to make representations to the Panel, either in 

writing or in person, and the recommendations arising from the review were informed 
from a number of sources including those representations received. 

 
2.3 The role of the Panel is a challenging one and consideration was given to 

recommending any increase in the allowances, whilst also recognising the current 
budget pressures being faced by the Council.   
 

2.4 Allowances, in their basic form, are paid to Councillors to ‘cover all expenses and time 
incurred by a City Councillor in carrying out his/her duties for the Council’. Although it 
should be recognised that the role of Councillor carries with it an element of public 

125



 

service which does not require financial recompense, it should also be recognised that 
Members’ Allowances Schemes should seek to remove financial disadvantage as a 
barrier to people standing for election, in order to ensure the inclusion of the widest 
possible range of the community, irrespective of personal or economic circumstances.  
 

2.5 The continued deferment of any increase in allowances on an annual basis may not 
only have a negative impact on the calibre of people attracted into the role of 
Councillor, but may also cause significant issues for the future once the economic 
pressures have eased.  
 

2.6 The rationale behind any proposed increase in allowances should however be 
balanced against the current budget pressures being faced by the Council and 
obtaining support for any such proposed increases will require careful consideration of 
all relevant factors.  

 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS ARISING FROM THE REVIEW 
 
3.1 The Panel recommends: 
 
3.2 Basic Allowance 
 

• That the current Basic Allowance, payable to all Members, should be increased 
from £7165.95 to £9300.00 per annum. 

• That no changes be made to the telephone allowance or travel and subsistence 
elements of the scheme.  

 
3.3 Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) 
 

• That Members continue to be restricted to one SRA.  

• That the Leader’s SRA remains at the current multiple of the Basic Allowance, this 
being three times.  

• That the Deputy Leader’s SRA should be paid at the rate of 66.67% of the Leader’s 
SRA to recognise the role of Deputy in addition to the post holder’s Cabinet 
responsibility.  

• That Cabinet Members receive an SRA which is 50% of that paid to the Leader of 
the Council.  

• That Cabinet Advisors receive an SRA which is 25% of the Leader’s SRA.     

• That the Chairmen of the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee and 
the Licensing Committee receive an SRA which is 30% of the Leader’s SRA.  

• That the Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an SRA which is 25% of the 
Leader’s SRA. 

• That the payment to the Independent Member of Audit Committee remains 
unchanged. 

• That the Chairman of the Employment Committee receives an SRA which is 6.25% 
of the Leader’s SRA.    

• That the SRAs payable to Chairmen of Scrutiny Commissions and Committees be 
paid at 25% of the Leader’s allowance.  

 
3.3 Leader of Opposition Groups 

 

• To be paid at 25% of the Leaders SRA, to be divided pro rata as at present and in 
accordance with existing conditions. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 

4.1 All Members were invited to make written representation to the Panel and offered the 
opportunity to address the Panel in person. The Panel has considered all submissions 
in detail.  

126



 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Legal - The legal implications are referred to within the report. 
 
5.2 Finance – The Panel’s proposals, if accepted, would result in an additional cost of 

£128,107 to the Council.  The effect of these recommendations are set out in 
Appendix B. The budget for 2014/15 has not yet been determined.  

 
6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
  
 None.  

127



128

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL 

(the “Council”) 

 

 

REVIEW OF MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 

 

Report of the 

Independent Remuneration Panel 2013  

129



 

 

 

Panel Members 

 

The Panel comprised the same members as in 2012 

Mr Jim Winstone    Retired Secondary School Headmaster 

     With local Government experience 

Mr Richard Dix    Consultant Solicitor 

Former local authority Chief Executive 

Mr Tony King     Retired Insurance and Finance Manager 

Also on the Council Core Group for the 

Great Eastern Run 

Support to the Panel 

Gemma George     Senior Governance Officer, Regulatory 

Meetings 

Wednesday 11th September  Initial planning and timetabling 

Thursday 3rd October   Interviews with Councillors and Officers 

Friday 4th October    Interview with the Leader of the Council 

Thursday 31st October   To finalise draft report 

130



 

 

1. Context 

1.1 This report considers the issues which were referred to the Panel by the Council and 

matters raised by those who gave evidence to it. It also sets out a number of matters 

which it considers warrants more detailed consideration before the next review of the 

Allowances Scheme (Annex 1). 

1.2 The agreed way forward, arising from the initial planning meeting, was as follows: 

i)  For 2012 it had been agreed to use percentage calculations and there had 

been no opposition to this. It therefore felt appropriate to continue with this 

methodology. 

ii)  The focus this year would be on the specific areas detailed in last year’s 

report along with any issues raised through interviews and submissions. 

iii) A ‘comparables’ update had been requested and this confirmed that there 

was very little movement throughout similar authorities. 

iv) The Council, at its meeting in January 2013, had not rejected the Panel’s 

recommendations outright and this was regarded as a positive view of the 

principles involved. 

v)  Owing to the issues faced by Local Government, any increase in the basic 

allowance was considered to be inappropriate by the Council. 

vi)  The basic allowance should remain as recommended by the Panel last year, 

as there had been no major shifts in other councils and this was agreed 

unanimously by the Panel. 

vii) It was noted that the Neighbourhood Committees had been disbanded and 

although an increase in the Leader’s allowance had been discussed in 2012, 

the uncertainty around Cabinet Advisors had held this back. It was also noted 

that there had been an increase in the number of Cabinet Advisors by one 

and a decrease in the number of Cabinet Members by one.  

viii) The Deputy Leader’s portfolio responsibilities were discussed and clarified. 

ix) This report also contains the outcomes of discussions over actions from the 

last report, items referred to the Panel by the Council and matters raised by 

those who gave evidence to it. It also sets out a number of new matters which 

it considers warrants more detailed consideration before the next review of 

the Allowances Scheme (Annex 1). 

131



 

 

2. Acknowledgements 

 

2.1 The Panel is extremely grateful to those Councillors who provided information via 

written statements and interviews, to Gemma George whose organising skills and 

knowledge were invaluable, and to Paulina Ford (Senior Governance Officer, 

Scrutiny) for her advice and expert knowledge on the work of the Scrutiny 

Commissioners and Committees. 

  

3. Documents Considered  

 

3.1 The Council’s Members Allowance Scheme as set out in its Constitution. Extract of 

Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances. 

 

3.2 The Local Authorities (Member Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. Extract 

showing Regulations 4 and 5.  

 

3.3    Report of the previous Members’ Allowances Panel dated December 2012.  

 

3.4 Summary of issues raised by Members in their evidence. 

3.5 A document setting out the delegation and portfolios of individual Cabinet Members.  

3.6 A matrix showing the allowances payable in a number of other Councils including 

those in Peterborough’s CIPFA comparator group as well as ones selected by the 

Panel.  

3.7 Documents defining Scrutiny Functions and Committees. 

 

3.8 Issues raised by the last report requiring further investigation. 

132



 

 

4. The Basic Allowance  

4.1    The Council’s Constitution specifies that the basic allowance is the sum paid to all 

Councillors “to cover all expenses and time incurred by a City Councillor in carrying 

out his/her ordinary duties for the Council “ 

4.2    Members interviewed considered that the existing level of the basic allowance still 

appeared relatively low in relation to comparable Councils.  However it was noted 

that the level of the allowance had not been increased for at least two years and 

when compared with other similar authorities within the CIPFA Grouping and a 

number of other comparable Councils, the basic allowance recommended by the 

Panel in its report last year was not considered to be out of line. 

4.3  From the information provided it was clear that Councillors spent at least 20-22 hours 

per week on Council business. Time was spent particularly on Ward business and 

responding to constituents, as well as attending meetings of the Council and other 

associated bodies. The Panel was still of the opinion that there was little evidence to 

signify that Councillors wished to see job descriptions or an hourly rate payable. They 

considered that the role of Councillor carried with it an element of public service 

which did not require financial recompense. However, the call upon a Member’s time 

was frequently excessive and often affected Members’ employment situations and 

family life but it was recognised that this went with the position. Most Members 

considered that the present situation had an effect on the number and type of people 

prepared to come forward to stand for election. Ultimately this had an effect on the 

profile of the Council’s membership. Ideally the Council should be reflective of the 

profile of the Peterborough community which it represents. 

4.4  The Panel agreed with the comments made to it as set out above. It was conscious 

of the ever increasing calls upon a Councillor’s time. Balancing “the rate for the job” 

and the element of public service was far from easy. However, in making its 

recommendations the Panel was mindful that being a Councillor should be open to 

the widest possible range of the community, irrespective of personal economic 

circumstances. The role of the Panel was to make recommendations on the level of 

allowances, not to decide upon them. Also, it has to be appreciated that the continual 

deferment of paying the “going rate” stored up a very real problem for the future when 

economic pressures eased. The Council may therefore wish to consider phasing in 

any increase that it may deem appropriate. 

133



 

 

4.5  The Panel reviewed the level of the basic allowance with that of similar authorities. It 

concerned itself with attempting to determine levels of allowances that were fair, both 

within the scheme, and which withstood scrutiny alongside comparative figures from 

other Local Authorities with similar characteristics to Peterborough.  However, the 

Panel was aware that Peterborough’s dynamics made simple comparison with other 

unitary authorities very difficult and due account was taken of demographic and 

economic issues and the Council’s pro-active response to these factors. The 

additional responsibilities and time commitment needed to meet these challenges 

were acknowledged by the Panel. 

4.6  In the circumstances the Panel recommends that the basic allowance should be 

increased from £7,165.95 to £9,300 p.a. 

 

5. Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) 

5.1.  The extract from the Council Constitution Members’ Allowances Scheme provides 

that a SRA may be paid to some Councillors who, in the Council’s opinion, make a 

significant additional contribution to the work of the Council.  

5.2  Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Member Allowances) (England) Regulations 

2003 provides guidance on the categories of roles to which SRAs should be paid, 

e.g. the Leader, those presiding at meetings of the Council’s Committees, and those 

representing the Council on outside bodies. Regulation 5(f) provides additional 

guidance; it states that even though an activity may not fall into one of the categories 

described in the regulation, if any other activity is carried out by a Councillor which 

requires of the Member an amount of time and effort equal to or greater than that 

required to carry out a specified role (e.g. as Leader or Committee Chairman) then 

that Member may also be paid a SRA. 

5.3  The Council has adopted a practice generally of paying SRAs on the basis of 

multipliers of its basic allowance i.e. the Leader at present receives 3x the basic 

allowance, and Chairman of Employment Committee receives a SRA of 25% of the 

basic allowance in addition to the basic allowance. There are a number of exceptions 

e.g.  The Deputy Leader receives 75% of the Leader’s Allowance. The Council has 

set these usually as a multiplier of the basic allowance. Given the way in which SRAs 

are allocated by the Council at present, it should be noted that any increase in the 

basic allowance would be automatically multiplied in its effect on SRAs. In the 

circumstances the Panel continues to recommend that, with the exception of the 

134



 

 

Leader of the Council, other SRAs should be paid at a rate which is a percentage of 

the allowance paid to the Leader.  

5.4  Leader of the Council: The Council has adopted the ‘Strong Leader with a Cabinet’ 

model for its local political management structure. The model is intended to provide a 

clear framework for decisive and accountable local leadership both internally for the 

Council and externally for the city’s community. This includes partnership working 

and leadership with other community stakeholders. The Leader is able to appoint up 

to nine other Councillors as Cabinet Members. Under this system the Leader has 

appointed the Cabinet and has given each Cabinet Member a degree of individual 

executive decision making powers. Other executive decisions are taken jointly by the 

Cabinet.   

5.5  Under the Council’s delegation and portfolio holder structure, it is clear that the 

Leader of the Council has retained functions which are of major importance to the 

Council and its community e.g. political leadership, strategic direction, strategic 

planning, city growth and the status of ‘Environment Capital’. Those that were 

interviewed generally supported the level of SRA currently paid to the Leader and 

indeed some would have supported a higher figure.  

5.6  The Panel was once again impressed with the role, profile and energy which the 

Leader displayed in order to carry out the responsibilities of his position. It appeared 

to the Panel that this was a very personal and individual role which involved 

tremendous personal energy and pressure. The only issue which held back the Panel 

from recommending a higher level of SRA for the Leader was some uncertainty 

about the role of Cabinet Advisors, which is considered later in this Report. This 

situation should be reviewed in the Panel’s next consideration of Members’ 

Allowances.  

5.7  Deputy Leader:  The Deputy Leader is a member of the Cabinet, and is appointed by 

the Leader to both of these roles. The post holder’s portfolio is for education, skills 

and university. The post receives 75% of the leader’s allowance equivalent to 2.25 

times the basic allowance as a SRA.  

5.8  The Panel was concerned that the Deputy’s Leader’s SRA, at 75% of the Leader’s 

allowance, appeared to be a high percentage.  This concern arose from the fact that 

the Leader’s role appeared to be of such a personal and individual character. 

Comparator Councils appeared to pay an allowance more in the region of 65% of 

135



 

 

that of the Leader, although it appeared that some authorities did not pay any Deputy 

Leader allowance. However, the post holder was a Cabinet Member and the 

allowances for the Cabinet were 2x the basic allowance. In the circumstances the 

Panel recommends that the SRA for the Deputy Leader should be paid at the 

rate of 66.67% of the Leaders allowance to recognise the role of Deputy in 

addition to the post holder’s Cabinet responsibility. 

5.9  Cabinet Members. Some Councillors expressed concern at the number of Members 

with roles on the Cabinet i.e. Cabinet Members and Advisors. Legislation restricts the 

number of Cabinet Members to nine plus the Leader.  

The position of the Cabinet Members in relation to the Leader’s role was considered 

in terms of weighting. As set out at paragraphs 5.5-5.6 above, the Leader has a large 

strategic portfolio and has decided which powers to delegate to other portfolio 

holders. Having looked at the SRAs paid by similar councils most seem to be at or 

below 50% of the Leader’s allowance. In the circumstances the Panel recommends 

that the Cabinet Members receive a SRA which is 50% of that paid to the 

Leader of the Council. 

5.10  Cabinet Advisors. The Panel considered the role of the Cabinet Advisors. They are 

not voting members of the Cabinet (which is restricted by law to no more than nine 

Members plus the Leader of the Council.) Their role does not appear to be clearly 

defined and increased the member role at the Cabinet (even though not voting) to 

more than ten members. The Panel heard conflicting views on the role of the 

Advisors. One view was that they perform a very important role in the work of the 

Cabinet. However there was a view that they were unnecessary and simply added to 

the size of the Cabinet.  

5.11  However, it might be seen that they dilute the individual accountability and clarity of 

the role of the “strong” Leader and Cabinet model of local political management. The 

issue was raised as to whether the Advisors were providing a professional role in 

relation to the matters they were providing advice upon i.e. was their role really that 

usually more associated with Council officers or external consultants? The Panel did 

not think that it had sufficient information within the existing time constraints to 

consider recommending change in respect of the Cabinet Advisors. However, it has 

agreed to carry out a deeper review of these posts and the SRAs payable in its next 

review. In the meantime in accordance with the percentage payment approach to 

SRAs it recommended that the posts be paid at 25% of the Leader’s allowance. 

136



 

 

5.12 Chairmen of Regulatory Committees. The Council pays SRAs to the four Chairmen 

of its Regulatory Committees. The level of the allowance is equivalent to a basic 

allowance in respect of the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee, the 

Licensing Committee and the Audit Committee and 25% of the basic allowance for 

the Employment Committee. It was recommended in the last report that the Panel 

look more closely at these allowances along with the relative weighting of the 

payments made. The matter was further discussed in the light of evidence provided 

this year and it was therefore agreed that the Chairmen of the Planning and 

Licensing Committees should receive a higher allowance, but that the matter should 

also be revisited next year.  

In the circumstance it was agreed to recommend that the Chairman of Planning 

and Licensing be paid at 30% of the Leader’s allowance, the Chairman of  Audit 

Committee be paid at 25% of the Leader’s allowance and the Chairman of the 

Employment Committee receive 6.25 % of the Leader’s allowance.  

5.13 Chairmen of Scrutiny Commissions and Scrutiny Committees. The Panel 

acknowledged the importance of the work of Scrutiny Commissions/Committees in 

the review and policy development of the Council. This was described in great detail 

by the Senior Governance Officer. With the particular model of political governance 

which the Council had adopted it was essential that there was an effective scrutiny 

mechanism to hold the executive to account. Further information would be sought in 

time for the next Panel Review to allow for the matter to be revisited in more detail, 

but in the meantime in accordance with the percentage payment approach to SRAs it 

was recommended that the posts be paid at 25% of the Leader’s allowance. 

6. Other issues referred to the Panel  

6.1  Telephone Allowance. Members receive, in addition to the basic allowance, a 

telephone allowance of £568.68. This allows Councillors to use their own telephone 

and be paid towards calls. The Council also has a system whereby all Members are 

entitled to an iPhone. This system is more secure from a Data Protection viewpoint 

as the issue of the Council holding information on third parties on a Member’s private 

telephone does not then arise. The issue was raised as to whether the telephone 

allowances should be adjusted to encourage Members to take advantage of the 

system of iPhones developed by the Council. After consideration the Panel 

recommended that the type of equipment being used should be investigated further, 

but that no changes be made to the Telephone Allowance at this stage.  

137



 

 

6.2 Travel and Subsistence Allowance. Members receive, in addition to the basic 

allowance, a travel and subsidence allowance of £227.45. This figure is intended to 

cover travel and subsistence within the City Council’s area and further payments 

could be claimed outside of the area. The issue of Councillors responsible for the 

more rural areas should be looked into as their mileage was by nature much higher. 

The availability of public transport in some of these areas is very limited. 

6.3 The Panel considered the points raised and had sympathy with regards to this 

matter. However, the Council’s area is basically urban in nature and the Panel 

understood that it would be very difficult to identify and pay enhanced mileage 

allowances only to Members who live in rural areas. The increased level of basic 

allowance recommended by the Panel may help Members experiencing difficulty in 

respect of this issue mitigate some of the effects of increased fuel cost. The Panel 

suggested that a different way of dealing with travel could be looked into, for example 

the method of booking train tickets, along with the rate at which mileage s currently 

paid. 

7. Summary of Proposals 

        Present   Proposed  

                £    £ 

Basic Allowance       7,165.95    9,300.00 

Telephone Allowance          568.68       568.68 

Subsistence Allowance           227.45       227.45 

Leader of the Council  

(3x Basic Allowance)                21,497.85  27,900.00 

Deputy Leader of the Council               16,123.00  18,600.93 

(66.67 % of Leader) 

Cabinet Members (50% of Leader)              14,331.90  13,950.00 

Cabinet Advisors (25% of Leader)      7,165.95     6975.00 

Chairman Planning and Environmental 

Protection Committee (30% of Leader)              7,165.95     8,370.00 

Chairman of Licensing Committee 

(30% of Leader)         7,165.95     8,370.00 

 

138



 

 

Chairman of Audit Committee 

(25% of Leader)         7,165.95     6975.00 

Independent Member of Audit Committee         784.50       784.50 

Chairman of Employment Committee  

(6.25% of Leader)          1,791.48     1743.75 

Chairmen of Scrutiny Commissions (2 Members) 

(25% of Leader)          7,165.95     6975.00 

Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees (3 Members) 

(25% of Leader)          7,165.95     6975.00 

 

Leader of Opposition Groups (25% of Leader) to be divided  

pro rata as at present and in accordance with existing  

conditions                                         7,165.95      6975.00 

Note: All Members receive a basic allowance; in addition certain Members may receive ONE 

Special Responsibility Allowance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



 

 

ANNEX 1 

Items for Future Consideration by the Panel 

1. The role of Committee Chairmen and SRA payments to them; 

2. The role of Cabinet Advisors and the SRA payments to them; 

3. The payment of travel and subsistence allowances and whether these should be integrated 

into the basic allowance. Also whether it would be possible to devise a scheme to ensure that 

the rural area of the city were not disadvantaged by e.g. devising a ‘rural rate’ for some wards 

of the Council; and 

4. To review the future use of telephones and the relevant allowance. 

 

 

 

 

140



P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3

S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 O
F
 C
H
A
N
G
E
S
 T
O
 M
E
M
B
E
R
S
 A
L
L
O
W
A
N
C
E
 S
C
H
E
M
E
 (E
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
n
y
 N
I 
c
o
s
ts
)

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 2

N
o
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
rs
 

R
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e

C
u
rr
e
n
t

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d

Im
p
a
c
t

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

B
a
s
ic
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e

B
a
s
ic
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 (
G
2
3
0
0
 0
9
5
2
0
)

5
7

4
0
8
,4
5
9

  
5
3
0
,1
0
0

  
  
 

1
2
1
,6
4
1

  
  
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 (
G
2
3
0
0
 1
0
6
3
0
)

5
7

3
2
,4
1
5

  
  

3
2
,4
1
5

  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
 (
G
2
3
0
0
 0
9
4
1
0
)

5
7

1
2
,9
6
5

  
  

1
2
,9
6
5

  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
o
ta
l 
B
a
s
ic
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e

4
5
3
,8
3
9

  
5
7
5
,4
7
9

  
  
 

1
2
1
,6
4
1

  
  
 

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
ty
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e
 (
S
R
A
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il

1
2
1
,4
9
8

  
  

2
7
,9
0
0

  
  
  
 

6
,4
0
2

  
  
  
  
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r

1
1
6
,1
2
3

  
  

1
8
,6
0
1

  
  
  
 

2
,4
7
8

  
  
  
  
 

C
a
b
in
e
t

7
1
0
0
,3
2
3

  
9
7
,6
5
0

  
  
  
 

2
,6
7
3

- 
  
  
  
  

C
a
b
in
e
t 
A
d
v
is
o
rs

4
2
8
,6
6
4

  
  

2
7
,9
0
0

  
  
  
 

7
6
4

- 
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
7
,1
6
6

  
  
  

8
,3
7
0

  
  
  
  
 

1
,2
0
4

  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
7
,1
6
6

  
  
  

8
,3
7
0

  
  
  
  
 

1
,2
0
4

  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
7
,1
6
6

  
  
  

6
,9
7
5

  
  
  
  
 

1
9
1

- 
  
  
  
  
  
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
7
8
5

  
  
  
  
 

7
8
5

  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e

1
1
,7
9
1

  
  
  

1
,7
4
4

  
  
  
  
 

4
7

- 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s

2
1
4
,3
3
2

  
  

1
3
,9
5
0

  
  
  
 

3
8
2

- 
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e

3
2
1
,4
9
8

  
  

2
0
,9
2
5

  
  
  
 

5
7
3

- 
  
  
  
  
  
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
O
p
p
o
s
it
io
n
 G
ro
u
p
 -
 D
is
tr
ib
u
te
d

1
7
,1
6
6

  
  
  

6
,9
7
5

  
  
  
  
 

1
9
1

- 
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
o
ta
l 
S
p
e
c
ia
l 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 A
ll
o
w
a
n
c
e

2
3
3
,6
7
8

  
2
4
0
,1
4
4

  
  
 

6
,4
6
6

  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
O
T
A
L
S

6
8
7
,5
1
7

  
8
1
5
,6
2
4

  
  
 

1
2
8
,1
0
7

  
  
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S
c
h
e
m
e

141



142

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

  

 
COUNCIL 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 14(b) 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

  

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK – REVISED BUDGET TIMETABLE 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Executive Director Resources 
 

That Council: 
 

1. Approve a revised budget process and timetable that includes commencing budget 
consultation at the Cabinet meeting on 3 February 2014. 

 

 
 

1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 

The September Cabinet meeting considered a report ‘Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/15 to 
2023/24’ and within this report (paragraph 7.2ii) considered that it maybe necessary to review the 
budget process and timetable due local government funding changes and the potential delay in the 
local government finance settlement in accordance with the council’s constitution. This report is 
presented to Full Council regarding a proposed budget process and timetable. 
 
1.1 The current budget consultation process is outlined in Part 4, Section 6 - Budget and Policy 

Framework Procedure Rules: 

2.1 Commencing in the September immediately preceding the financial year to which the 
Budget relates the Cabinet shall consider the Council’s Budget and Financial 
Strategy; including provisional cash limits for the forthcoming financial year and its 
medium term financial plan, together with the Council’s Corporate Strategy. In doing 
so the Cabinet shall consult with local stakeholders and the Sustainable Growth and 
Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee. Cabinet Members may also consult and 
seek advice from other Scrutiny Committees and Commissions about relevant service 
issues in relation to the formulation of budget proposals and the Corporate Strategy. 
Details of the Cabinet’s consultation process shall be included in the Forward Plan. 
This process shall be completed no later than the publication of the provisional 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) settlement in late November/early December 
immediately preceding the financial year to which the Budget and Corporate Strategy 
relates. 

 

2.2 At least one month before the Budget and the Corporate Strategy is to be adopted the 

Cabinet shall publish both its Budget and Corporate Strategy proposals. Both these 
proposals shall set out full details of any consultations, representations and the views 
of the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee received by 
the Cabinet during the process set out in paragraph 2.1 above and may also include 
any views on relevant service issues given by the other Scrutiny Committees and 
Commissions.  

143



 

 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

1.2 The proposed process and timetable differs to this requirement, and as such requires Full 
Council approval.  

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The Cabinet values the opinions and engagement of all residents, partner organisations, 

businesses and other interested parties as part of the budget setting process, not least to 
ensure that the council’s priorities, accompanying strategies and policy documents are 
robust and right for Peterborough. The budget consultation process is integral to ensuring 
that available resources support council priorities and have regard to the impact of service 
users and businesses across Peterborough.   
 

2.2. Ordinarily Cabinet would commence budget consultation during December and 
recommend budget proposals to Full Council during the February Cabinet meeting. 
 

2.3. However, there are currently a number of issues that mean that releasing proposals 
during December would be challenging. For example, there remains great uncertainty 
over the future of local government funding nationally that may influence Cabinet 
proposals further. These issues include: 
 

i. Recent consultations on Local Government Funding Settlement 2014/15 and 2015/16 
and New Homes Bonus and Local Growth Fund. Government consultation responses 
are likely to be published later in the autumn. The proposals within government’s 
consultation will have financial consequences on the council’s budget plans in 
2014/15 and more significantly from 2015/16. The council’s concerns have been 
included in a response to government; 

ii. The provisional local government finance settlement is expected to be announced 
later than usual in December. This is because it has recently been announced of the 
Chancellors Autumn Statement will not be published until 5 December. The local 
government finance settlement cannot be released before this. Indeed as it is 
expected that national spending controls affecting local government funding will be 
adjusted downwards, CLG may have considerable work to do before they can finalise 
the local government settlement;  

iii. There is a significant level of uncertainty about the settlement given the significant 
changes to the funding arrangements and potential changes to national spending 
levels outlined above; and 

iv. The council is now able to retain a proportion of locally retained income growth 
through business rates and it is therefore in the interest of the council to use the 
latest information available on business rate forecasts. The statutory requirement is 
for council’s to declare surplus business rate income in January. 

 
2.4. Cabinet firmly believe that sustainable budgets over the medium term that support the 

council’s priorities should be put forward. Cabinet would therefore intend to meet in 
February to consider budget proposals. This would mean that consultation would start in 
February, which is not dissimilar to the approach followed for this financial year. 
Commencing the consultation at this stage will still ensure that all residents, partner 
organisations, businesses and other interested parties have sufficient time to feed into the 
budget setting process before Full Council consider the budget on 5 March 2014. This 
date is also proposed to accommodate the budget setting timetable of the Police Authority 
and is in advance of the statutory requirement for the council to set a budget by 11 March. 
 

2.5. There will also be knock effects on the timing of other meetings that support the process, 
including the following: 

 

• Budget scrutiny 

144



 

 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

• Other consultation events 

• February Cabinet (that makes the formal budget recommendation to Council) 

• February Council (that approves the final budget)  
 

Alternative dates have been discussed and agreed with relevant chairs of these meetings. 
A fully updated timetable will be communicated to all Members, as well as other interested 
parties as necessary. The revised timetable is as follows: 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. ANTICPATED OUTCOMES 
 
3.1. Based on the information contained within this report, Full Council to approve a revised 

budget process and timetable that includes commencing budget consultation during 
February 2014. The budget consultation papers will be available to the public late January 
on release of the February Cabinet reports and it is intended that the consultation will 
remain open until the day before Full Council, allowing almost six weeks for the 
consultation period. 

 
3.2. A similar report was presented to Full Council last year for a one off change in the process 

for setting the current budget with reference that a review of the budget policy and 
framework would be undertaken in advance of the 2014/15 budget setting process. This 
was on the condition that government legislation would be available on the new funding 
arrangements. It is expected that further legislation on funding arrangements will be 
published over the coming months coupled with the significant funding reductions in 
2015/16, it is too early for the council to review and recommend, if required, a permanent 
change to the Constitution to coincide with setting future budgets and therefore this 
revision is being considered for this round only, so is not presented as a permanent 
change to the Constitution. 

 

4. IMPLICATIONS 
 

Financial 
 

4.1. There are no financial implications. 
 

Legal 
 
4.2. The proposals in this report comply with all legal requirements. 
 

Governance 
 
4.3. The budget timetable will require a change to the following council meetings: 
 

 Date Meeting Proposed Content 

3 February 2014 Cabinet • Commence budget 
consultation 

10 February 2014 Joint Meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committees 
and Commissions 

• Budget consultation 

24 February 2014 (move 
the meeting of 17 
February) 

Cabinet • Recommend budget to 
Full Council 

5 March 2014 (move the 
meeting of 19 February) 

Full Council • Approval of budget 
 

145



 

 

CMT Performance Reporting Pack 

Cabinet – 17 February – This meeting would be moved to 24 February 2014 
Full Council – 19 February – This meeting would be moved to 5 March 2014 

 
   The change to meeting dates and budget timetable has been discussed with the Group 

Leaders and relevant scrutiny leads.  
 

 Equalities 
 

4.4. A full equalities impact assessment is undertaken as part of the budget setting process 
including consultation with vulnerable groups. 
 

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to 

Information) Act 1985). 
   
 Council Constitution. 
 

                                                                                                                                                        

146



 

 

 

COUNCIL  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 14(c) 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance 

 

Tel: 01733 452361 

 

 
CHANGES TO THE DATE OF ANNUAL COUNCIL 2014 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

 

FROM : Director of Governance 
 
 
It is recommended that: 
  
1 Standing Orders are varied in that Council: 
 

(a) revoke the following Standing Orders as set out in the Constitution at: 
(i) Part 4, Section 1 of the Council’s Constitution  

- The Council’s Rules of Procedure; 
(ii) Part 4, Section 2 of the Council’s Constitution  

– Standing Orders which relate to Committees only; and 
(iii) Part 4, Section 3 of the Council’s Constitution  

– Standing Orders which apply to Council and Committees; and 
 

(b) adopt the Council Standing Orders set out at Appendix A  
 
2 That the proposed variation is postponed without discussion to the next ordinary meeting of 

council, in accordance with Standing Order 10 of the General Standing Orders. 
 
3 That the Constitution Working Group consider the revisions following six months of operation 

and report to Council as necessary. 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 

 
1.1 A Constitutional Working Group is undergoing a process of reviewing and updating the Council’s 

Constitution. The first tranche of work was to assess the standing orders applying to meetings of 
the Council and its Committees and Sub-Committees, resulting in the recommendations 
contained within this report. 

 
1.2 Unless the monitoring officer advises otherwise, changes to Council Standing Orders are 

presented at one meeting and not debated until the next, allowing Members the time to fully 
consider the changes. 

 
 
2.       BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Constitutional Working Group (CRG) has been meeting in its current form as of July 2013, 

charged with reviewing the Council’s Constitution. The CRG is made up of Cllr Harrington, Cllr 

147



 

Johnson, Cllr Sandford and Cllr Seaton. Officers in attendance and supporting the Group’s work 
were the Law & Governance Interim, Mr Philip McCourt; Head of Governance, Mrs Diane Baker; 
and Senior Governance Officer, Ms Gemma George. 

 
2.2 Given previous comments in Council, the CRG began with standing orders for the council and its 

committees and sub-committees. 
 
2.3 The approach took two forms. The first was to compare the current standing orders to the model 

standing orders provided as part of the model constitution exercise for the introduction of the 
Local Government Act 2000 and a revised model produced in 2012, both of which are an iteration 
of much earlier model standing orders issued to local government. This process could then 
highlight those elements where Peterborough City Council’s standing orders differ from the 
models, allowing consideration of whether this ‘drift’ from the model was a conscious choice or 
not and whether the differences should remain as part of revised standing orders or be discarded 
as being an error or no longer relevant.  

 
2.4 Alongside this, Members of the CRG also raised areas of possible change to the current Standing 

Orders, based on requests for change or criticisms of current practice. Some of these were about 
custom and supporting practice rather than a change to the core rules, but overall these were: 

(a) Motions and how put (withdrawal, single member support, etc.) 

(b) Amendments – consideration of submission in writing on prior notice deadline unless 
consent of the mayor at the meeting 

(c) Flow and process – notes for Mayor and members  

(d) Points of order, etc., - consideration of how these are used and whether they should be 
altered or  condensed into one ‘point of accuracy’, together with actions to assist Mayor’s 
regulation of debate 

(e) Public question time 

(i) Supplementary limited to 1 minute 

(ii) Extended to 30 minutes 

(f) Drafting of questions submitted in advance and replies  - time limit or word count on 
responses 

(g) Requests for recording the meeting (– identified ‘spot’ for recorders to avoid infringing 
privacy of other members of the public) 

(h) Webcasting 

(i) Standing when speaking and problems with the recording and sound loop/amplification 
system (– only to be considered after technical assessment of microphone layout 

(j) Order of business: 

(i) Members’ questions to the end of the meeting to ensure that business items are not 
adjourned 

(ii) Cabinet decision item to be taken before public questions 

(iii) Order to be varied at request to Mayor 

(iv) Closure of business procedure captured 
 
2.5 These two sets of considerations led to a set of revised standing orders being drafted, allowing 

for a number of choices of wording, approach and effect. These were considered by the members 
of the CRG, and the governance officers, over a number of meetings and exchanges. The 
resulting standing orders to be recommended by the CRG to Council are attached as Appendix 
A.  

 

148



 

2.6 The revised standing orders are intended to replace those currently in place for Council and the 
committees and sub-committees of Council, combining and amending the procedure rules set out 
in Part 4, Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the Council’s Constitution. 

 
2.7 Many of the changes are technical in nature, to correct errors or to account for changes in the 

law, but a number will be seen to be fundamental to the flow of the Council meeting. The principle 
changes and most obvious to Members and the public will be: 

(a) Questions from the public and from Members to the Leader, cabinet members, chairs 
and group leaders under separate procedures. 

(b) A clear 30 minutes allowed for public questions 

(c) A set of time limits for both the asking and answering of questions and supplemental 
questions.  

(d) In response to the legal requirement for a policy on submission of petitions, a clear and 
simple process. 

(e) Amendments to motions to be submitted in advance of the council meeting and in 
writing, other than in exceptional circumstances, to be shared with members and the 
public prior to the meeting.  

(f) The deletion of a ‘point of information’, which is an uncommon addition, and the 
introduction of a ‘point of accuracy’ which may only be raised with the consent of the 
Member speaking 

(g) Members to no longer be required to stand when talking so as to make full use of the 
technology for amplification, recording and the hearing loop 

(h) Provision for the public to record the meeting 

(i) Description of the Annual Meeting in two parts 

(j) Inclusion of a standing order to respond to the updated Nolan Principle on conflicts of 
interest. 

 
2.8 A few elements are what might be termed experimental or involve a cultural change, such as 

moving members’ questions to the end, the use of “points of accuracy” to allow a short 
interruption of a speaker with their consent and speaking without standing. For this reason, the 
Constitution Working Group has recommended that the revisions be reviewed after six months of 
operation. 

  
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
3.1  There are no financial implications for any of the above report. 
 
 

4.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1  There are a number of standing orders that are mandatory or are direct repetition of the relevant 

Act or Regulation. These are included where required.  
 
 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 
  Notes and agenda of the Constitution Review Group. All other background papers are otherwise 

published. 

149



150

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

DRAFT COUNCIL STANDING ORDERS 

 
CONTENTS 
 
Standing Order Page 

 
1. Annual meeting of the Council 1 

2. Ordinary meetings 2 

3. Extraordinary meetings  4 

4. Appointment of substitute members of committees and sub-
committees 

4 

5. Time and place of meetings 5 

6. Notice of and summons to meetings 5 

7. Chair of meeting 5 

8. Quorum 6 

9. Duration of meeting 6 

10. Questions by the public 7 

11. Petitions 9 

12. Questions by members 9 

13. Motions on notice 10 

14. Notions without notice 11 

15. Standing orders of debate 12 

16. State of the City debate 16 

17 Previous decisions and motions 17 

18. Voting 17 

19. Minutes 18 

20. Record of attendance 18 

21. Exclusion of public 18 

22. Members’ conduct 19 

23. Disturbance by public 20 

24. Suspension and amendment of Council Procedure Standing 
Orders 

20 

25. Application to committees and sub-committees 21 

151



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BLANK PAGE 

   

152



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 1 of 21 

1. ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
1.1. Timing and business 
 
 In a year when there is an ordinary election of councillors, the annual 

meeting will take place within 21 days of the retirement of the outgoing 
councillors. In any other year, the annual meeting will take place in 
March, April or May.  

 
1.1.1 The Ceremonial Meeting (Mayor Making)  
 
 The Meeting will: 

 
i. elect a person to preside if the chair of Council (the Mayor) is 

not present;  
 

ii. elect the chair of Council (the Mayor);  
 

iii. elect the vice chair of Council (the Deputy Mayor);  
 

iv. receive the retiring mayor’s report. 
 
1.1.2 The Business Meeting 
 
 The Meeting will: 
 

i. approve the minutes of the last meeting;  
 

ii. receive any announcements from the Mayor and/or Head of the 
Paid Service;  

 
iii. upon retirement of the previous Leader, which shall be at least 

once every four years, elect the Leader of the executive (the 
Cabinet)  

 
iv. be notified by the Leader of  the number of members to be 

appointed to the Cabinet, those Members’ names and their 
intended portfolio of responsibilities;  

 
v. appoint a licensing committee, a health and wellbeing board, at 

least one overview and scrutiny committee and such other 
committees as are required or the Council considers appropriate 
to deal with matters that are neither reserved to the Council nor 
are executive functions (as set out or will be set out in Part 3(2) 
of this Constitution);  

 
vi. receive the Leader’s scheme of delegation of executive 

functions (as set out or will be set out in Part 3(3) of this 
Constitution);  

 

153



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 2 of 21 

vii. approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council for 
the year; and 

 
viii. consider any business set out in the notice convening the 

meeting. 
 
1.1.3 Unless otherwise determined by statute, the Mayor may vary the order 

of the agenda at his/her absolute discretion and may allocate or re-
allocate an appropriate time for the transaction of each item. 

 
1.2. Selection of Councillors on Committees and Outside Bodies 
 

At the annual (business) meeting, the council meeting will: 
 
i. decide which committees to establish for the municipal year;  

 
ii. decide the size and terms of reference for those committees; 

 
iii. decide the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance 

with the political balance Standing Orders 
 

iv. receive nominations of councillors to serve on each committee 
and outside body; and 

 
v. appoint to those committees and outside bodies except where 

appointment to those bodies has been delegated by the Council 
or is exercisable only by the executive 

 
vi. appoint the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of all the Council’s 

committees, other than those which the Council has decided 
should be appointed by the committee itself.  

 

The Council may decide at subsequent meetings to dissolve 
committees, alter their terms of reference or to appoint new 
committees. 
 
The Council shall always have the power to exercise any power 
delegated to a committee, sub-committee or an officer. 
 
 

2. ORDINARY MEETINGS 
 
2.1 Ordinary meetings of the Council will take place in accordance with a 

programme decided at the Council’s annual meeting. The order of 
business at ordinary meetings will be as follows: 

 
i. elect a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are not 

present;  
 
ii. approve the minutes of the last meeting;  

154



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 3 of 21 

 
iii. receive any declarations of interest from members;  

 
iv. receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader or the head 

of paid service (which, with the exception of the Mayor, will 
normally be limited to five minutes), followed by any question on 
the announcement from a leaders of an opposition group (which 
will normally be limited to one minute); 

 
v. receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public in 

relation to matters which in the opinion of the person presiding 
at the meeting are relevant to the business of the meeting 
(which will normally be limited to 30 minutes);  

 
vi. receive petitions from the public in relation to matters which in 

the opinion of the person presiding at the meeting are relevant 
to the business of the meeting;  

 
vii. deal with any business from the last Council meeting;  

 
viii. receive reports from the Cabinet and Council Committees for 

consideration, including consideration of proposals from the 
Cabinet in relation to the Council’s budget and policy framework 
and reports of the overview and scrutiny committees for debate;  

 
ix. receive reports about and receive questions and answers on 

decisions made by members of the Cabinet;  
 
x. receive any other reports from the Council’s committees and 

receive questions and answers on any of those reports;  
 

xi. receive any reports about and receive questions and answers 
on the business of joint arrangements and external 
organisations; 

 
xii. receive questions from, and provide answers to, Members in 

accordance with Standing Order 12; 
 

xiii. consider motions; and 
 

xiv. consider any other business specified in the summons to the 
meeting.  

 
2.2 Unless otherwise determined by statute, the Mayor may vary the order 

of the agenda at his/her absolute discretion and may allocate or re-
allocate an appropriate time for the transaction of each item. 

 
2.3 The Mayor may determine that an item of business that has not been 

open to public inspection, both as an item set out in the agenda and 
any accompanying published report, may be considered because s/he 

155



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 4 of 21 

is of the opinion that, by reason of special circumstances, which shall 
be specified in the minutes, the item should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

3. EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS 
 
3.1. Calling extraordinary meetings 
 

Those listed below may request the proper officer to call Council 
meetings in addition to ordinary meetings: 
 
(a) the Council by resolution;  
 
(b) the Mayor (or the Deputy mayor if the mayor is unable to act); 
 
(c) the Monitoring Officer; or 
 
(d) any five members of the Council if they have signed a requisition 

presented to the Mayor and s/he has refused to call a meeting or 
has failed to call a meeting within seven days of the presentation 
of the requisition.  

 
3.2. Business 

 
The business to be conducted at an extraordinary meeting shall be 
restricted to the item of business contained in the request for the 
extraordinary meeting and there shall be no consideration of previous 
minutes or reports from committees etc. except that the Mayor may at 
his or her absolute discretion permit other items of business to be 
conducted for the efficient discharge of the Council’s business. 
 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES 
AND SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

4.1 Allocation 
 
Committee members (including substitute members) are appointed by 
the Council or the monitoring officer under delegated powers (as 
requested in writing by the relevant Party Whip or Leader or Deputy 
Leader and in accordance with political balance Standing Orders) on 
the same day where the request is made before noon. Sub-Committee 
members (including substitute members) are appointed by the parent 
committee or the monitoring officer under delegated powers (as 
requested by the relevant Party Whip (or Leader or Deputy Leader) 
and in accordance with political balance Standing Orders) on the same 
day where the request is made before noon. 
 

4.2 Number 

156



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 5 of 21 

 
For each committee or sub-committee, the Council will appoint the 
same number of substitutes in respect of each political group as that 
group holds ordinary seats on that committee or sub-committee.  
 

4.3 Powers and duties 
 

Substitute members will have all the powers and duties of any ordinary 
member of the committee but will not be able to exercise any special 
powers or duties exercisable by the person they are substituting.  
 

4.4 Substitution 
 

Substitute members may attend meetings in that capacity only: 
 
(a) to take the place of the ordinary member for whom they are the 

designated substitute; 
 

(b) where the ordinary member will be absent for the whole of the 
meeting; and 

 
(c) after notifying the monitoring officer by noon on the day of the 

meeting of the intended substitution.  
 
 

5. TIME AND PLACE OF MEETINGS 
 

The time and place of meetings will be determined by the monitoring 
officer and notified in the summons.  
 
 

6. NOTICE OF AND SUMMONS TO MEETINGS 
 

The proper officer will give notice to the public of the time and place of 
any meeting in accordance with the Access to Information Standing 
Orders (Procedure Rules). At least five clear days before a meeting, 
the monitoring officer will send a summons signed by him or her by 
post to every member of the Council or leave it at their usual place of 
residence. The summons will give the date, time and place of each 
meeting and specify the business to be transacted (the agenda) and 
will be accompanied by the relevant reports.  
 
 

7. CHAIR OF MEETING 
 

The person presiding at the meeting may exercise any power or duty of 
the Mayor. Where these Standing Orders apply to committee and sub-
committee meetings, references to the Mayor also include the chair of 
committees and sub-committees.  
 

157



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 6 of 21 

8. QUORUM 
 

The quorum of a meeting will be one quarter of the whole number of 
members. During any meeting if the Mayor counts the number of 
members present and declares there is not a quorum present, then the 
meeting will adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be 
considered at a time and date fixed by the Mayor. If s/he does not fix a 
date, the remaining business will be considered at the next ordinary 
meeting.  
 
 

9. DURATION OF MEETING 
 
9.1 Meeting recess 
 

The Mayor will adjourn the meeting for a period of ten minutes at a 
convenient time after two hours. 
 

9.2 Interruption of the meeting 
 
Where four hours have elapsed after the commencement of any 
Council meeting (and in the case of an Extraordinary meeting when 
two hours have elapsed since commencement of the meeting) the 
Mayor shall interrupt the meeting and call for the vote immediately on 
the item under discussion.  Any Member speaking must immediately 
cease doing so and if standing sit down.  The vote will be taken without 
further discussion  
 

9.3 Motions and recommendations not dealt with 
 

If there are other motions or recommendations on the agenda that 
have not been dealt with within the four hour period (or two hour period 
in the case of an Extraordinary meeting), they are deemed formally 
moved and seconded (together with any amendments). No speeches 
will be allowed on these items and the vote will be taken in the usual 
way.  
 

9.4 Recorded vote 
 

If a recorded vote is called for during this process it will be taken 
immediately.  
 

9.5 Motions which may be moved 
 

During the process set out in Standing Order 9.2 above, the only other 
motions which may be moved are that a matter be withdrawn or that a 
matter be delegated or referred to an appropriate body or individual for 
decision or report. 
 

9.6 Close of the meeting 

158



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 7 of 21 

 
When all motions and recommendations have been dealt with, the 
Mayor will declare the meeting closed.  

 
 
10. QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC 
 
10.1 General 
 
10.1.1 Members of the public who are residents of the City may ask questions 

of Members of the Cabinet, the Chair of a Committee, the Chair of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Commission or a leader of a political 
group on the Council at meetings of the Council, other than the Annual 
Meeting and, except at the discretion of the Mayor, Extraordinary 
Meetings. 

 
10.1.2 The total time allocated for Questions by the Public shall be limited to 

30 minutes. 
 

10.2 Order of questions 
 

The order in which questions shall be presented to the meeting shall be 
determined by a draw for each section of the meeting. The draws shall 
be conducted by the monitoring officer (or senior officer appointed for 
this purpose). The draws may be attended by any Member of the 
Council by prior notice delivered in writing to the monitoring officer 
before the deadline for submission of questions. 

 
10.3 Notice of questions 
 

A question may only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it 
in writing or by electronic mail to the monitoring officer no later than 
midday five working days before the day of the meeting. Each question 
must give the name and address of the questioner and must name the 
member of the Council to whom it is to be put.  
 

10.4 Number of questions 
 

At any one meeting no person may submit more than two questions 
and no more than two such questions may be asked on behalf of one 
organisation.  
 

10.5 Scope of questions 
 

If the monitoring officer considers a question: 
 

• is not about a matter for which the local authority has a 
responsibility or which affects the City;  

• is illegal, improper, defamatory, frivolous or offensive;  

159



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 8 of 21 

• is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 
meeting of the Council in the past six months; or 

• requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
 

s/he will inform the Mayor who will then decide whether or not to reject 
the question. 
 

10.6 Record of questions 
 

The monitoring officer will enter each question in a book open to public 
inspection and will immediately send a copy of the question to the 
member to whom it is to be put. Rejected questions will include 
reasons for rejection.  
 
Copies of all questions will be circulated to all members and will be 
made available to the public attending the meeting.  
 

10.7 Asking the question at the meeting 
 

The Mayor will invite the questioner to put the question to the member 
named in the notice. Three minutes are allowed for putting the 
question. If a questioner who has submitted a written question is 
unable to be present, they may ask the Mayor to put the question on 
their behalf. The Mayor may ask the question on the questioner’s 
behalf, indicate that a written reply will be given or decide, in the 
absence of the questioner, that the question will not be dealt with.  
 

10.8 Supplemental question 
 

A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one 
supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied 
to his or her original question. A supplementary question must arise 
directly out of the original question or the reply. The Mayor may reject a 
supplementary question on any of the grounds in Standing Order 10.5 
above. One minute is allowed for putting the supplementary question. 
 

10.9 Answers 
 

Three minutes are allowed for answering a question and two minutes 
are allowed for answering a supplementary question. Any question 
which cannot be dealt with, either because of lack of time or because 
of the non-attendance of the member to whom it was to be put, will be 
dealt with by a written answer.  
 

10.10 Reference of question to the Cabinet or a committee 
 

Unless the Mayor decides otherwise, no discussion will take place on 
any question, but any member may move that a matter raised by a 
question be referred to the Cabinet or the appropriate committee or 

160



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 9 of 21 

sub-committee. Once seconded, such a motion will be voted on without 
discussion.  

 
 
11. PETITIONS 
 
11.1 Petitions may be presented to the Council. The person presenting the 

petition will be allowed to address the meeting briefly (not exceeding 
one minute) to outline the aims of the petition. The Mayor will refer the 
matter to another appropriate body of the Council within whose terms 
of reference it falls without discussion unless a relevant item appears 
elsewhere on the Agenda. 

 

 
12 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 

 
12.1 On reports of Cabinet or Committees 
 

At a meeting of the Council, other than the Annual Meeting, a Member 
of the Council may ask the Leader or the chair of a committee any 
question without notice upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a 
committee when that item is being received or under consideration by 
the Council. 
 

12.2 Questions on notice at full Council 
 

Subject to Standing Order 12.4, a member of the Council may ask: 
 

• the Mayor;  
 

• the Leader or member of the Cabinet; or 
 

• the chair of any committee or sub-committee 
 

a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or 
duties or which affects the City.  
 

12.3 Questions on notice at committees and sub-committees 
 

Subject to Standing Order 12.4, a member of a committee or sub-
committee may ask the chair of it a question on any matter in relation 
to which the Council has powers or duties or which affect the City and 
which falls within the terms of reference of that committee or sub-
committee.  
 

12.4 Notice of questions 
 

A member may only ask a question under Standing Order12.2 or 12.3 
if either: 
 

161



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 10 of 21 

a) they have given at least five working days notice in writing of the 
question to [the proper officer]; or 

 
b) the question relates to urgent matters, they have the consent of the 

Mayor to whom the question is to be put and the content of the 
question is given to [the proper officer] by noon on the day of the 
meeting.  

 
12.5 Response 
 

An answer may take the form of: 
 
a) a direct oral answer of up to three minutes; 
 
b) by reference to published material of the Council which is readily 

available to Members; or 
 

c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written 
answer circulated later to the questioner.  

 
12.6 Supplementary question 
 

Every question, which will be limited to one part, will be asked and 
answered without discussion. Upon receiving the answer, the Member 
who put the question shall be allowed one supplementary question, of 
up to one minute, provided that it arises directly out of the original 
question or the reply and does not introduce any new subject matter.  
 
The supplementary question will be asked and answered orally, but the 
person to whom the supplementary question has been asked will have 
up to two minutes to answer or may decline to answer. 
 
 

13 MOTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
13.1 Notice 
 

Except for motions which can be moved without notice under Standing 
Order 14, written notice of every motion, must be delivered to [the 
proper officer] not later than ten o’clock six clear working days before 
the date of the meeting (not including the day of the meeting). These 
will be entered in a book open to public inspection.  
 

13.2 Motion set out in agenda 
 

Motions for which notice has been given will be listed on the agenda in 
the order in which notice was received, unless the member giving 
notice states, in writing, that they propose to move it to a later meeting.  
 

13.3 Scope 

162



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 11 of 21 

 
If the monitoring officer considers a question: 
 

• is not about a matter for which the local authority has a 
responsibility or which affects the City;  

 

• is illegal, improper, defamatory, frivolous or offensive;  
 

• is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 
meeting of the Council in the past six months; or 

 

• requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
 

s/he will inform the Mayor who will then decide whether or not to reject 
the motion. 
 

14 MOTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE 
 

The following motions may be moved without notice: 
 
a) to appoint a chair of the meeting at which the motion is moved;  
 
b) in relation to the accuracy of the minutes;  

 
c) to change the order of business in the agenda;  

 
d) to refer something to an appropriate body or individual;  

 
e) to appoint a committee or member arising from an item on the 

summons for the meeting;  
 

f) to receive reports or adoption of recommendations of committees or 
officers and any resolutions following from them;  

 
g) to withdraw a motion;  

 
h) to amend a motion;  

 
i) to proceed to the next business;  

 
j) that the question be now put’  

 
k) to adjourn a debate;  

 
l) that the meeting continue beyond 4 hours in duration (2 in the case 

of an extraordinary meeting); 
 

m) to suspend a particular standing order;  
 

163



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 12 of 21 

n) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Standing Orders;  

 
o) to not hear further a member named under Standing Order 22.3 or 

to exclude them from the meeting Standing Order 22.4; and 
 

p) to give the consent of the Council where its consent is required by 
this Constitution.  

 
 

15 STANDING ORDERS OF DEBATE 
 
15.1 No speeches until motion seconded 
 

No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded.  
 

15.2 Right to require motion in writing 
 

Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Mayor may 
require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it is 
discussed.  
 

15.3 Seconder’s speech 
 

When seconding a motion or amendment, a member may reserve their 
speech until later in the debate.  
 

15.4 Content and length of speeches 
 

Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a 
personal explanation, statement of accuracy or point of order.  
 
No speech may exceed five minutes by the mover of the motion or by 
three minutes in all other cases without the consent of the Mayor.  
 

15.5 When a member may speak again 
 

A member who has spoken on a motion may not speak again whilst it 
is the subject of debate, except: 
 
a) to speak once on an amendment moved by another member;  
 
b) to move a further amendment if the motion has been amended 

since s/he last spoke;  
 

c) if his/her first speech was on an amendment moved by another 
member, to speak on the main issue (whether or not the 
amendment on which s/he spoke was carried0; 

 

164



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 13 of 21 

d) in exercise of a right of reply;  
 

e) on a point of order;  
 

f) by way of personal explanation and 
 
g) statement of accuracy. 

 
15.6 Amendments to motions 
 

a) An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will 
either be: 

 
(i) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for 

consideration or reconsideration;  
 
(ii) to leave out words;  
 
(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or 
 
(iv) to insert or add words.  

 
as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to negate the motion.  
 

b) Except for motions which can be moved without notice under 
Standing Order 14, written notice of every intended amendment to a 
motion or to recommendations from Cabinet or the Council’s 
committees: 

 
(i) must be delivered to [the proper officer] in its initial form not 

later than noon two working days before the date of the 
meeting (not including the day of the meeting) at which the 
motion is to be considered; and 

 
(ii) must be delivered to [the proper officer] in its intended final 

form not later than noon one working day before the date of 
the meeting (not including the day of the meeting) at which 
the motion is to be considered. If no withdrawal, confirmation 
or change is received by the monitoring officer, it will be 
assumed that the amendment is to be considered in its initial 
form. 

 
No other amendment may be moved at the meeting except where 
the Mayor may permit, at his or her absolute discretion and to 
ensure the efficient or proper discharge of the Council’s business, a 
further amendment or amendments to be moved. 
 

c) Only one amendment may be moved and discussed at any one 
time. No further amendment may be moved until the amendment 
under discussion has been disposed of.  

165



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 14 of 21 

 
d) If an amendment is not carried, other amendments to the original 

motion may be moved.  
 

e) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the place 
of the original motion. This becomes the substantive motion to 
which any further amendments are moved.  

 
f) After an amendment has been carried, the Mayor will read out the 

amended motion before accepting any further amendments, or if 
there are none, put it to the vote.  

 
15.7 Alteration of motion 
 

a) A member may alter a motion of which s/he has given notice with 
the consent of the meeting. The meeting’s consent will be signified 
without discussion.  

 
b) A member may alter a motion which s/he has moved without notice 

with the consent of both the meeting and the seconder. The 
meeting’s consent will be signified without discussion.  

 
c) Only alterations which could be made as an amendment may be 

made.  
 
15.8 Withdrawal of motion 
 

A member may withdraw a motion which s/he has moved with the 
consent of both the meeting and the seconder.  The meeting’s consent 
will be signified without discussion. No member may speak on the 
motion after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless 
permission is refused.  
 

15.9 Right of reply 
 

a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate 
on the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.  

 
b) If an amendment is moved, the mover of the original motion has the 

right of reply at the close of the debate on the amendment, but may 
not otherwise speak on it.  

 
c) The mover of the amendment has no right of reply to the debate on 

his or her amendment.  
 
15.10 Motions which may be moved during debate 
 

When a motion is under debate, no other motion may be moved except 
the following procedural motions:  
 

166



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 15 of 21 

a) to withdraw a motion;  
 
b) to amend a motion;  

 
c) to proceed to the next business;  

 
d) that the question be now put;  

 
e) to adjourn a debate;  

 
f) that the meeting continue beyond 4 hours in duration (or two hours 

if an extraordinary meeting); 
 

g) to exclude the public and press in accordance with the Access to 
Information Standing Orders;  

 
h) to not hear further a member named under Standing Order22.3 or 

to exclude them from the meeting under Standing Order 22.4; and 
 

i) that a specific standing order be suspended 
 
15.11 Closure motions 
 

a) A member may move, without comment, the following motions at 
the end of a speech of another member;  

 
(i) to proceed to the net business;  
 
(ii) that the question be now put;  
 
(iii) to adjourn a debate; or 
 
(iv) to adjourn a meeting. 

 
b) If a motion to proceed to next business is seconded and the Mayor 

thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, he or she will give 
the mover of the original motion a right of reply and then put the 
procedural motion to the vote.  

 
c) If a motion that the question be now put is seconded and the Mayor 

thinks the item has been sufficiently discussed, s/he will put the 
procedural motion to the vote. If it is passed s/he will give the mover 
of the original motion a right of reply before putting his/her motion to 
the vote.  

 
d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is 

seconded and the Mayor thinks the item has not been sufficiently 
discussed and cannot reasonably be so discussed on that 
occasion, s/he will put the procedural motion to the vote without 
giving the mover of the original motion the right of reply.  

167



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 16 of 21 

 
15.12 Point of order 
 

A member may raise a point of order at any time.  The Mayor will hear 
them immediately. A point of order may only relate to an alleged 
breach of these Council Standing Orders or the law. The member must 
indicate the Standing Order or law and the way in which s/he considers 
it has been broken. The ruling of the Mayor on the matter will be final.  
 

15.13 Personal explanation 
 

A member may make a personal explanation at any time.  A personal 
explanation may only relate to some material part of an earlier speech 
by the member which may appear to have been misunderstood in the 
present debate. The ruling of the Mayor on the admissibility of a person 
explanation will be final.  
 

15.14 Statement of accuracy 
 

Where the consent of the member speaking is granted, another 
member may make a statement of accuracy at any time.  The 
statement is limited to the accuracy of a fact cited by the member 
speaking and may not exceed twenty seconds.  The ruling of the Mayor 
on the admissibility of a statement of accuracy will be final.  

 
 
16 STATE OF THE CITY DEBATE 
 
16.1 Calling of debate 
 

The Leader may call a state of the City debate annually on a date and 
in a form to be agreed with the Mayor.  
 

16.2 Form of debate 
 

The Leader will decide the form of the debate with the aim of enabling 
the widest possible public involvement and publicity. This may include 
holding workshops and other events prior to or during the state of the 
City debate.  
 

16.3 Chairing of debate 
 

The debate will be chaired by the Mayor.  
 

16.4 Results of debate 
 

The results of the debate will be: 
 
(a) disseminated as widely as possible within the community and to 

agencies and organisation sin the area; and 

168



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 17 of 21 

 
(b) considered by the Leader in proposing the budget and policy 

framework to the Council for the coming year.  
 
17 PREVIOUS DECISIONS AND MOTIONS 
 
17.1 Motion to rescind a previous decision 
 

A motion or amendment to rescind a decision made at a meeting of 
Council within the past six months cannot be moved unless the notice 
of motion is signed by at least 5 members.  
 

17.2 Motion similar to one previously rejected 
 

A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected 
at a meeting of Council in the past six months cannot be moved unless 
the notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least 5 members. 
Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can propose a 
similar motion or amendment for six months.  

 
 
18 VOTING 
 
18.1 Majority 
 

Unless this Constitution provides otherwise, any matter will be decided 
by a simple majority of those members voting and present in the room 
at the time the question was put.  
 

18.2 Mayor’s casting vote 
 

If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Mayor will have 
a second or casting vote. There will be no restriction on how the Mayor 
chooses to exercise a casting vote.  
 

18.3 Show of hands 
 

Unless a recorded vote is demanded under Standing Orders 17.4 and 
17.5, the Mayor will take the vote by show of hands, or if there is no 
dissent, by the affirmation of the meeting.  

 
18.4 Recorded vote 
 

If one quarter of members present and entitled to vote at the meeting 
demand it, the names for and against the motion or amendment or 
abstaining from voting will be taken down in writing and entered into 
the minutes.  
 

18.5 Right to require individual vote to be recorded 
 

169



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 18 of 21 

Where any member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, 
their vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether they 
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting.  
 

18.6 Voting on appointments 
 

If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled 
and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then 
the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off 
the list and a new vote taken. The process will continue until there is a 
majority of votes for one person.  

 
 
19 MINUTES 
 
19.1 Signing the minutes 
 

The Mayor will sign the minutes of the proceedings at the next suitable 
meeting. The Mayor will move that the minutes of the previous meeting 
be signed as a correct record. The only part of the minutes that can be 
discussed is their accuracy.  
 

19.2 No requirement to sign minutes of previous meeting at extraordinary 
meeting 

 
Where in relation to any meeting, the next meeting for the purpose of 
signing the minutes is a meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 
12 to the Local Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then 
the next following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than 
under that paragraph) will be treated as a suitable meeting for the 
purposes of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of Schedule 12 relating to signing 
of minutes.  
 

19.3 Form of minutes 
 

Minutes will contain all motions and amendments in the exact form and 
order the Mayor put them.  
 
 

20  RECORD OF ATTENDANCE 
 

All members present during the whole or part of a meeting must sign 
their names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every 
meeting to assist with the record of attendance.  
 
 

21  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 

170



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 19 of 21 

Members of the public and press may only be excluded either in 
accordance with the Access to Information Standing Orders in Part 4 of 
this Constitution or Standing Order 23 (Disturbance by Public).  
 
 

22  MEMBERS’ CONDUCT 
 
22.1 Speaking and address system 
 

When a member speaks they must do so through the microphone 
system provided and must address the meeting through the Mayor. If 
more than one member signifies their intention to speak, the Mayor will 
ask one to speak. Members signifying their wish to speak will be invited 
to speak in an order determined by the Mayor. Other members must 
remain silent whilst a member is speaking unless they wish to make a 
point of order, a point of personal explanation or statement of accuracy.  
 

22.2 Mayor  
 

When the Mayor speaks or stands during a debate or otherwise 
indicates that the meeting should come to order, any member speaking 
at the time must stop and, if standing, sit down. The meeting must be 
silent.  
 

22.3 Member not to be heard further 
 

If a member persistently disregards the ruling of the Mayor by behaving 
improperly or offensively or deliberately obstructs business, the Mayor 
or another member may move that the member be not heard further. If 
seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion.  
 

22.4 Member to leave the meeting 
 

If the member continues to behave improperly after such a motion is 
carried, the Mayor or another member may move that either the 
member leaves the meeting or that meeting is adjourned a specified 
period. If seconded, the motion will be voted on without discussion.  
 

22.5 General disturbance 
 

If there is a general disturbance making orderly business impossible, 
the Mayor may adjourn the meeting for as long as s/he thinks 
necessary. 
 

22.6 Conflicts of Interest 
 
Members of the Council are under a duty to base their decision making 
on a consideration of the public interest. Members must avoid conflict 
between personal interest and the public interest, declare any personal 

171



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 20 of 21 

interest when it arises and resolve any conflict between the two 
interests, at once, and in favour of the public. 

 
 
23 DISTURBANCE BY PUBLIC 
 
23.1 Removal of member of the public 
 

If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Mayor will warn 
the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Mayor will order 
their removal from the meeting room.  
 

23.2 Clearance of part of meeting room 
 

If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open 
to the public, the Mayor may call for that part to be cleared.  
 

23.3 Inappropriate audio/visual recording of the meeting 
 
If a person is recording the meeting in a manner that  
 
(a) records a member of the public in the public gallery without 

having first obtained that person’s permission or  
 
(b) the Mayor considers causes offence or is otherwise 

inappropriate in respect of other members of the public or press,  
 

the Mayor may order that the recording cease. If recording in such a 
manner persists, despite the order of the Mayor, the Mayor may order 
that person’s removal from the meeting room. 

 
 
24 SUSPENSION AND AMENDMENT OF COUNCIL PROCEDURE 

STANDING ORDERS 
 
24.1 Suspension 
 

All of these Council Standing Orders of Procedure except Standing 
Order18.5 and 19.2 may be suspended by motion on notice or without 
notice if at least one half of the whole number of members of the 
Council are present. Suspension can only be for the duration of the 
meeting.  
 

24.2 Amendment 
 

Any motion to add to, vary or revoke these Council Standing Orders of 
Procedure will, when proposed and seconded, stand adjourned without 
discussion to the next ordinary meeting of the Council.  

 
 

172



DRAFT Council Standing Orders  Appendix A 

   Pg 21 of 21 

25 APPLICATION TO COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES 
 

All of the Council Standing Orders of Procedure apply to meetings of 
full Council. None of the Standing Orders apply to meetings of the 
Cabinet.  
 
Standing Orders 1-4, 10, 15.6(b), 16, 20 and 22.1 do not apply to 
committees or sub-committees. 

 
 

173



174

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
COUNCIL  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 14(d) 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Contact Officer: Kim Sawyer, Director of Governance 

 

Tel: 01733 452361 

 

 
DATE OF ANNUAL COUNCIL 2014 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Director of Governance 
 

That Council: 
 
In respect of the Programme of Meetings June 2014 to May 2015, agrees to confirm the date of 
Annual Council as Monday 16 June 2014.  
 

 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
1.1 This report concerns the programme of meetings, which was agreed by Council on 17 April 2013, 

and requests that Council agrees to confirm the date of Annual Council in 2014. 
 
2.       BACKGROUND 

 
2.1 The annual meeting of Council must be held on the eighth day after the retirement of Councillors 

or such day within 21 days immediately following the date of retirement and is to be agreed by 
Council. 

 
2.2   The local elections have been confirmed as taking place on Thursday 22 May 2014 and therefore 

the proposed date for Annual Council is Monday 16 June 2014 in order to allow adequate time 
for necessary administrative procedures. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1  There are no financial implications.  
 
4.  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  In accordance with legislation, Council must agree the date of Annual Council. 
 
5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

 Peterborough City Council Constitution 
 Local Government Act 1972 

 Representation of the People Act 1983 
The Local Elections (Ordinary day of election in 2014) Order 2013 

   

175



176

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
COUNCIL  
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 14(e) 

4 DECEMBER 2013 PUBLIC REPORT 

 
APPOINTMENT TO FIRE AUTHORITY 
 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
FROM : Director of Governance 
 

That Council: 
 
Agrees to appoint Councillor David Over to the Cambridgeshire Fire Authority following the 
resignation of Councillor Sue Day as a member of the Fire Authority. 
 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT 
 
1.1 This report if for Council to note the resignation of Councillor Sue Day from the Cambridgeshire 

Fire Authority and to agree the appointment of Councillor David Over. 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND (& CONSULTATION) 
 
2.1 Appointments to the Cambridgeshire Fire Authority are approved at Annual Council each year.  

Councillor Sue Day is resigning her place on the Authority with effect from 30 November 2013.   
 
2.2 There are 17 seats on the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority, four of which are 

allocated to Peterborough City Council representatives and 13 of which are allocated to 
Cambridgeshire County Council representatives. The seats are allocated on a proportionate 
basis; three Conservative Group representatives and one Labour Group representative from 
Peterborough. 

 
2.3 Councillor Over has been nominated by the Conservative Group to fill the vacancy. 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1  Councillor Over is from the same political group as Councillor Day so there will be no change to 

the political balance of the Authority. 
 
3.2  No financial remuneration is paid from Peterborough City Council to its Members on the 

Cambridgeshire Fire Authority.   
 
 

4. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985) 
 
 

4.1 None. 
 
 

177



178

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 9 October 2013
	4 Mayor's Announcements
	12 Questions without Notice on the Record of Executive Decisions
	13 Executive Recommendations
	13 (a) Peterborough City Centre Development Plan Document
	13a. City Centre Plan Full Council final
	13a. app2 City Centre Summary Map
	13a. app 3 Draft City Centre Policies Map

	14 (a) Report of the Independent Members Remuneration Panel
	14a. Members Allowances Panel Report 1415
	14a. Members Allowances Proposed Scheme 1415 Appendix 2

	14 (b) Budget and Policy Framework - Revised Budget Timetable
	14 (c) Governance Issues - Amendments to Rules of Procedure
	14c. app A constitution report

	14 (d) Governance Issues - Date of Annual Council
	14 (e) Governance Issues - Appointment to Fire Authority

